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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MBRE

Note Change
Bt 2013 2012 Bl
Contracted sales BRHE
Contracted sales (RMB'000) BRHESE(ARETT) 7,004,554 1,306,184 436.3%
Contracted average sales price (RMB/sqm.) BHIHEFHEEB(BFHRARK) 7,833 5432 44.2%
Selected Financial Information FRBEER
Turnover (RMB'000) LEBARETT) 4,756,464 1,607,114 196.0%
Gross profit (RMB'000) EMARETT) 2,932,355 776271 277.7%
Profit from operations (RMB'000) mENBARETT) 2,487,234 521,057 377.3%
Profit for the year attributable to equity AR AR R EN F AN
shareholders of the Company (RMB000) (AR T L) 1,177,782 216,506 444.0%
Core operating net profit for the year
attributable to equity shareholders AN AR REGFEAZD
of the Company (RMB'000) BEFFARETT) 1,418,184 362,741 291.0%
At the end of year: =
Total Assets (RMB'000) BELBBARBTT) 11,003,697 5,143,105 114.0%
Net cash position (RMB'000) FHE(ARETT) 2 3,512,165 (142,179) 2.570.2%
Bank loans and other borrowings (RMB'000) SR1TER M EMEE(ARETIL) 883,860 749,000 18.0%
Total Equity attributable to equity ARAERRREGRRERE
shareholders of the Company (RMB'000) (AR FT) 4,421,071 949,782 365.5%
Selected Financial Ratios kg 3n s
Gross profit margin EES 61.6% 48.3% 27.5%
Net profit margin EyE 24.8% 13.5% 83.7%
Core operating net profit margin RO FN R 29.8% 22.6% 31.9%
Earnings per share (Basic), (RMB cents) BREMER)(ARES) 3 408 90 3533%
Core eamings per share (Basic), (RMB cents) SRZ LA (ER)(ARES) 49.2 150 228.0%
Asset turnover ratio BERBX 4 58.9% 39.6% 487%
Return on equity BRERE 5 51.7% 50.8% 1.8%
Gearing ratio BERRLX 6 8.0% 25.9% -69.1%
Proposed final dividend (per share) BRARHRE(BR) 7 HK19.5 cents — N/A
19.5784L TEA
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MBREE

Notes

Our core operating net profit for the year represents our profit for the year attributable to
equity shareholders of the Company adjusted to exclude non-operating income/loss (mainly
the financial impact of preferred shares issued to Hony Capital), employee share option

scheme expenses and withholding tax on undistributed profits of PRC subsidiaries.

Our net cash position represents the Group's cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash less

bank loans and other borrowings.

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the profit attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company of RMBI,177,782,000 (2012: RMB216,506,000) and the
weighted average of 2,883,306,000 ordinary shares (2012: 2,414,858,000 ordinary shares

after adjusting for the capitalization issue in 2013) in issue during the year.

Our asset turover ratio s calculated as the Group's turnover for the year divided by average

total assets and multiplying by 100%.

Our return on equity is calculated as the Group's core operating net profit divided by average

equity and multiplying by 100%.

Our gearing ratio is calculated as the Group's total interest bearing borrowings (includes bank
loans and other borrowings and redeemable convertible preference shares) divided by total

assets at the end of the reporting period and multiplying by 100%.

Or equivalent to approximately RMBI15.3 cents per share, the dividend proposed after the
end of the reporting period has not been recognized as a liability at the end of the reporting

period.
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Dear shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board™) of Hydoo International Holding Limited (“Hydoo"
or the “Company”), | am pleased to present the first annual report of the Company and
its subsidiaries (the "Group”) since the Company's successful listing on the Main Board of

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The listing of the Company's shares (“Shares”) on the Stock Exchange on 31 October
2013 was a key milestone to the development of the Company. With its unique market
position, proven business model, strong execution capability, and extensive project
development experience, the Group gained extensive recognition from both the public
shareholders and investors. The Company's listing marked the first significant move in
tapping into the global capital market and made a solid foundation for its future business
expansion. | would like to express my gratitude to all our colleagues for their significant

contributions to the Company.

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ETREHE
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EREHRE

RESULTS AND PROPOSED FINAL DIVIDEND EENESRERE

The Group recorded significant growth in its financial performance in FY2013, during RWIBHBFE  AEERGEHEEEENH
which turnover and gross profit significantly increased to approximately RMB4,756.5 BRE  SZEREFNIFRBRAZHAR
million and approximately RMB2,932.4 million, representing an increase of approximately BaT56SAETRMNARE 2932488 T
196.0% and 277.7% respectively. The turnover was mainly attributable to the revenue B3 BI3E N 47 196.0% ] 277.7% - € %X &
recorded from sales of properties in Ganzhou Trade Center, Mianyang Trade Center and REREM BEREHEEDRTLONME
Yulin Trade Center. Core operating net profit for FY2013 also rose to approximately HEWAR R 203 HEENZOEEF
RMBI,418.2 million representing a year-on-year increase of 291.0%. Basic earnings per  FIEIF EAZHARE 141828 & T - BN
share for FY2013 were RMB40.8 cents. 291.0% ° BRERBFAARE 4085

The Board proposed a final dividend of HK19.5 cents per share (or equivalent to EX2RROBHBEENRBREATR

approximately RMBI15.3 cents per share) for FY2013, subject to our shareholders’ 95 BIGEERNBRARE 1535)  1HE
approval at the Company's forthcoming annual general meeting (‘“AGM") to be held on FIREN2014E5 A 13 BRTHAR A EER
13 May 2014. REAFRg((RRAFAG AR - FAE

L

o
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REVIEW OF MARKET TRENDS AND THEIR IMPACT ON THE GROUP

Our business is strategically positioned to benefit from two significant industry and
regulatory trends in China — a shift in the government's urbanization focus from major
cities to small and mid-sized cities and increasing government support for the development
of wholesale trading markets. In a new national economic and social development
strategy for the years 201 | to 2015 (“the Twelfth Five-Year Plan"), the PRC government
announced its focus on the urbanization of small and mid-sized cities. We believe the
urbanization of small and mid-sized cities will be one of the major drivers for China's
economic growth in the coming decade. As widely known, more than half of China's
population reside in small and mid-sized cities and smaller satellites. The urbanization
of these cities will require a more streamlined flow of goods, the creation of efficient
wholesale network and a significant increase in domestic consumption - changes that our
trade center projects are well positioned to facilitate. We have received strong support
from various government authorities, reflecting the scale of our trade center projects and

our compelling value propositions.

Additionally, as part of the Twelfth Five-Year Plan, the Chinese government adopted
a policy to increase domestic consumption and explicitly stated its plan to promote
integrated wholesale trading markets and large-scale trade and logistics enterprises.
Such favorable market and political environment has created much stronger demand for

integrated logistics and trade centers during FY2013.

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ETREHE
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
TREHE

BUSINESS MODEL

Our business focuses on the development and operation of large-scale trade centers in
third-and fourth-tier, and selected second-tier, cities in China. We generate substantially all

our tumover through the sales of properties.

From our experience, when small and medium-sized enterprises (the “SMEs") relocate
to new trade centers, they prefer to own properties to conduct their business instead of
leasing such properties. We plan the early stages of our development projects to consist
primarily of properties for sale, such as wholesale trading market units, and focus to sell
the vast majority of our properties at reasonable prices to SMEs in these regions and try
to reduce sales to customers for investment purpose as much as possible. These SMEs
will actively conduct businesses at our trade centers, and as such, create a lively and
bustling commercial environment. This supports the continued growth of our customers'
businesses and is the foundation of our projects’ later development phases. We also
believe this contributes to the value appreciation of their purchased properties. Sales
proceeds from the earlier stages of our development projects provide a good source of

working capital for the later stages of our development projects.

The success of our initial-stage sales and the development of an active trading environment
also allows us to increase the sales and lease prices of our properties and capture higher
property value in later development stages. Following a lively and bustling early-stage
development environment, we plan to retain a proportion of trade center properties in
the later development phases as investment properties for long-term recurring income

and capital appreciation.
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REVIEW OF FY2013 PERFORMANCE

During the year under review, we developed new projects in fast growing small and mid-

sized cities in China in a bid to achieve sustainable business growth.

LAND ACQUISITION AND LAND BANK

In FY2013, we have entered into master investment agreements with local government
authorities regarding two new trade center projects, namely Yantai Trade Center and
Lanzhou Trade Center. We also acquired land-use rights with an aggregate site area of
1.6 million sq.m., which is expected to have an aggregate estimated GFA of approximately
2.1 million sgm. In addition to the recent developments as set out in the section headed
“Business - Our Trade Center Projects - Recent Development” in the prospectus of
the Company dated 18 October 2013 (the “Prospectus”), from | October 2013 to 31
December 2013, we acquired land-use rights with an aggregate site area of 0.3 million
sq.m. for Phase Il in Mianyang Trade Center. As of 31 December 2013, we had a total
land bank of 7.8 million sq.m., and we were simultaneously developing ten trade center

projects in seven provinces and autonomous regions in China.

SALES PERFORMANCE AND PROPERTY DELIVERY

Benefitting from the massive increase in saleable resources, the Group's contracted sales
and contracted sales area achieved record high in FY2013. During the year under review,
the Group's contracted sales and contracted sales area reached RMB7,004.6 million and

894,182 sq.m. respectively, representing increases of 436.3% and 271.9% respectively.

During the year under review, the Group also delivered properties with a total GFA
amounting to approximately 694,000 sq.m., representing an increase of 95.1%. The
significant increase in the Group's turnover and gross profit during the year under
review to approximately RMB 4,756.5 million and approximately RMB 2,932.4 million,
respectively, demonstrates our successful operating strategies and our strong execution

capabilities.

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EREHRE

STRONG FINANCIAL POSITION

We have a build-to-sell business model in the early stage of project development and a
short development cycle, leading to an efficient turover rate and a lower need for capital
investments. This helps us to achieve a high financial leverage level. As of 31 December
2013, our bank loans and other borrowings were RMB883.9 million and we had a net cash
position of RMB 3,512.2 million. Our net cash position can help to reduce our operation
risk, provide funding for our investment in new projects, and allow leverage for external

financing.

PROSPECTS

Our prospects are even brighter than our past achievements. We plan to strategically
expand our geographic presence by entering into additional third-and fourth-tier, and
selected second-tier, cities with rapid economic growth and the need for large-scale trade
center projects. We plan to commence at least two to three new projects every year. By
focusing on developing trade centers in rapidly-growing third-and fourth-tier, and selected
second-tier, cities, we seek to assist local governments in further stimulating the growth of

local commerce, facilitating urbanization and, uttimately, upgrading and transforming cities.

Steady and sustainable development of our business is the consistent practice of our
Group. Based on our abundant salable resources, we estimate our contracted sales to
be RMB8,500 million to RMB9,500 million by the end of financial year 2014. We remain
optimistic about the long-term development of trade and logistics centers in China
in light of the new urbanization strategies promulgated in the Twelfth Five-Year Plan.
Leveraging our proven business model, extensive industry experience and ample potential
development opportunities, we believe we can capture such favourable opportunities in

the future in order to bring greater value to our shareholders.
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2014 is widely believed to be a year of internet and offline enterprises integration. As an
enterprise conventionally focusing on offline transactions, the Group is determined to
embrace the internet market development and integrate into the new, growing online
trading economy. Our customers for our projects are primarily local SME owners, and
thousands of these SME owners conduct offline transactions daily in our completed trade
and logistics centers. Also, considering the further transactions that each of these owners
would have with dozens of its downstream small and medium-sized retailers, we decided
to launch Hydoo Technology, introducing new internet market concepts and technology,
building up an online platform, and improving our membership and transaction information
systems. Leveraging on our solid role in facilitating offline transactions in our trade centers,
going forward, we strive to merge the offline and online transactions seamlessly with a goal
of providing more value-added services to numerous SME owners in our trade centers,
and, in turn, bringing more successes to the Group in the future. Further, witnessing
the rapid growth of the internet trading market, we note the importance of forming
cooperations with strategic partners in this aspect and are actively exploring opportunities
to collaborate with leading e-commerce companies. We believe that the business
expansion by e-commerce companies into third and fourth-tier cities will also provide new
development opportunities for our trade and logistics center business, particularly given
each of our projects under planning has reserved land for storage and logistics purpose,
we trust that we can facilitate our strategic partners to establish a nationwide network of

storage and logistics centers.

APPRECIATION

Lastly, on behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to express my sincere
gratitude to our valued shareholders, customers and business partners for their trust
and support. | would also like to thank all our staff for their important contribution and

wholehearted commitment.

WONG CHOIHING

Chairman

Hong Kong, 24 March 2014
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEFNWR D

BUSINESS REVIEW
Review of FY2013 performance

The Group's business is strategically positioned to benefit from two significant industry and
regulatory trends — a shift in Chinese government's urbanization focus from major cities
to small and mid-sized cities and increasing government support for the development of
wholesale trading markets. In the Twelfth Five-Year Plan, the PRC government announced
its focus on the urbanization of small and mid-sized cities. Additionally, as part of the
Twelfth Five-Year Plan, the Chinese government adopted a policy to increase domestic
consumption and explicitly stated its plan to promote integrated wholesale trading
markets and large-scale trade and logistics enterprises. Such favorable market and policy
environment has created much stronger demand for integrated wholesale trading centers

during FY2013.

Land acquisition and land bank

In FY2013, the Group developed new projects in fast growing small and mid-sized cities
in China in a bid to achieve sustainable business growth. In FY2013, we have entered
into master investment agreements with local government authorities regarding two
new trade center projects, namely Yantai Trade Center and Lanzhou Trade Center. We
also acquired land-use rights with an aggregate total site area of 1.6 million sqm., which
is expected to have an aggregate estimated GFA of approximately 2.1 million sq.m. In
addition to the recent developments as set out in the the section headed “Business - Our
Trade Center Projects - Recent Development” in the Prospectus, from | October 2013
to 31 December 2013, we acquired land-use rights with aggregate site area of 0.3 million
sg.m. for Phase Il in Mianyang Trade Center. As of 31 December 2013, we had a total
land bank of 7.8 million sq.m., and we were simultaneously developing ten trade center

projects in seven provinces and autonomous regions in China.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEBNWmRDM

Details of land bank for each project are shown in the table below:

BRA HFEEHBENTE

Estimated GFA
of properties
Estimated GFA planned
Actual GFA of properties for future Total GFA Total GFA
of completed under development with land of properties
properties development REE use rights delivered
BERINE EBUE  ARERUE B BRI Land bank
EREREERE HHARRER MHEREER BREER EEER TG
(sqm,) (sqm) (sgm) (sqm,) (sq.m,) (sqm)
(F5R) (FEAK) (FHR) (F5R) (FER) (F5HR)
Ningxiang Trade Center  EHEBMRF L 381949 61518 N/A 443467 275301 168,166
Jining Trade Center ~ EEEZWHHL 423875 184563 594,360 102,798 299787 903011
Yuln Trade Center ~ EMEEMRAL 229220 54744 409,574 693,538 140,546 552992
Mianyang Trade Center  #05 E B F L) 252,585 205732 109,574 567,891 175711 392,180
Ganzhou Trade Center S MEB YR L 509,262 250342 2,806,735 3,566,339 334125 332214
Wuzhou Trade Center &N BHIRA L NIANER 472,136 612880 1085016 NIANER 1,085,016
Heze Trade Center ~ SHEBBMRTL NANER 237785 373824 611609 NIANER 611,609
Xingning Trade Center ~ EEEE)RA L NIANER 4855 145903 194,158 NIAZNER 194,158
Yantai Trade Center B EBMRA L NIANER NIANER 204400 204400 NIANER 204400
Lanzhou Trade Center ~ E/NFE MR L NATEF NIATER 479577 479577 NATEF 479577
Haode Yinzuo RERE 48,650 NATER NATER 48,650 38,170 10480
Total @t 1,845,541 1,515,075 5,736,827 909743 1263640 7833803
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWmE DM

Sales performance and property delivery

In FY2013, the Group delivered properties with a total GFA amounting to approximately
694,000 sq.m., representing an increase of 95.1% (2012: 355,741 sqm.). The significant
increase in the Group's revenue and gross profit to approximately RMB4,756.5 million and
approximately RMB 2,932.4 million respectively, demonstrates our successful and proven
business model in China and our strong execution capabilities. In FY2013, the Group also

recorded contracted sales of approximately RMB7,004.6 million and contracted sales area
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWRE DM

of 894,182 sq.m., representing increases of 436.3% and 271.9% respectively. Details on BNgEGEaHEeBOARKT00468 8

contracted sales during the year under review are shown in the table below:

BAEEMIESY I182F K - A RIE M
436.3% % 2719% - BB EHAKREE S 4
EMFBNTRER

Average
contracted Contracted
sales price  sales amount
(before (before

deduction of  deduction of

business tax)  business tax) Project

Contracted BHHE EHWE  contribution
sales area FHEE &8 (%)

RRHE (Breg s (Bre HEEM

G BiAT) BAT) EEAl )

(contracted sales area in sq.m., average contracted sales price
in RMB per sq.m. and contracted sales amount
in thousands of RMB)
(BHHEARUF LKl - EHHETFLEEU
FFPHARARE T RENHELEUARE Fvit)

Ganzhou Trade Center
Wholesale trading market units
Shopping mall

Mianyang Trade Center
Wholesale trading market units

Jining Trade Center
Wholesale trading market units
Shopping mall

Yulin Trade Center
Wholesale trading market units
Shopping mall

Ningxiang Trade Center
Wholesale trading market units
Bus terminal and information center

Serviced apartments

Total

BMNEEDRP L
BURSERTRET
HERHETE

BEEBERT L
BURSRTRET

EEEEYRF O
BURHRRRET
FERHERE

EMEEDRE L
BURSERTRET

P RNE
Dilaally

%FT[@E

B AR

@Ei@%

o
N

P

N

%

':<|}

=
» o>

BH
<
& <k ma

b
m
¥

500,440 86!l 4,309,283 61.5%
34,147 15,856 541,422 7.7%
212,903 6,266 1,334,063 19.0%
82,726 4,520 373960 5.3%
894 6,739 6,024 0.1%
9,583 5,664 54,279 0.8%
35,521 8,607 305,726 44%
9,621 4,357 41,915 0.6%
5,302 4,030 21,366 0.3%
3,045 5424 16516 0.3%
894,182 7833 7,004,554 100%

HYDOO INTERNATIONAL HOLDING LIMITED £ Z B R ERER 2 3 17
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEFNWR D

Note:

(1) Project contribution (%) is calculated by dividing the contracted sales amount (before
deduction of business tax) by the total contracted sales amount (before deduction of

business tax) and then multiplying by 100%.

Strong financial position

We have a build-to-sell business model in the early stage of project development and a
short development cycle, leading to an efficient tumover rate and a lesser need for capital
investments. This helps us to achieve a healthy financial leverage level. As of 31 December
2013, our bank loans and other borrowings were RMB883.9 million and we had a net cash
position of RMB 3,512.2 million. Our net cash position can help to reduce our operation
risk, provide funding for our investment in new projects, and allow leverage for external

financing.

Ningxiang Trade Center

Ningxiang Trade Center is located approximately 3 kilometers west of Ningxiang's city
center, a county in Changsha, the capital of Hunan province. Highway 319 runs along the
eastern edge of the Ningxiang Trade Center and provides Ningxiang with convenient

access to other key cities in Hunan, such as Changsha, Zhuzhou and Xiangtan.

Ningxiang Trade Center is planned to cover a site area of 1.3 million sqm., and has an
aggregate estimated GFA of approximately 1.2 million sq.m., which is expected to be
developed in three phases. As of 31 December 2013, we had acquired land-use rights for
all of Phase | encompassing a total site area of 301,387 sqm. and expect a total GFA of
443,467 sq.m. upon full completion of Phase .
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEFNWR DN

As of 31 December 2013, we completed the construction of wholesale trading markets, a BZE013F12A318 BMTXTEIRS

freight-forwarding market, a commercial and exhibition center, warehouses, a bus terminal -~ BR& - ERT% - @& L - BREUARAE
and information center, serviced apartments and had a hotel under construction at this BURERPOARBEAABORSE - TR
trade center project. WEBMRPOEE —RERER S -

>

pmﬁ %

Jining Trade Center BEEFHEMRP O

SR BYIRPOATER LR A 7 R Ep AR T

BTN RER  RILRE=RTEAN

in Shandong province. It is easily accessible by a number of connecting bus lines, and lies Z BEZRAREERELERE  RABREARE

within 10 kilometers of the Jining train station and 30 kilometers of Jining Qufu airport. Mo HibEE ’é"’ﬂiﬂ)\iuﬁ [ORELAA - BEEE
i EHIHETR30 R

Jining Trade Center is located approximately 6 kilometers west of Jining, a prefecture-level

I8 I¥

45@ ~|Ef}

city in southwestern Shandong province, and is one of the three major industrial bases

Jining Trade Center is planned to cover a site area of approximately 2.0 million sqm., and BERBMRTOFERENGERE R

has an aggregate estimated GFA of approximately 3.0 million sq.m., which is expected to BREREDAN20B8EFARRLZ0EE

be developed in three phases. As of 31 December 2013, we had acquired land-use rights THAK EERESZHEE - BZE013F12

for all of Phase | and Phase Il encompassing a total site area of 975,863 sqm. and expect a A3 B BAERGE—BMERE _Sabhn

total GFA of 1,202,798 sq.m. for Phase | and Phase Il when fully completed. TRI75863 F A RKIM B LHEAE - 2ET
T BAF-HRE_HNEEERROR
1,202,798 ¥ 77K
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEE R D

As of 31 December 2013, we completed the construction of wholesale trading markets
and a shopping mall, were constructing a commercial center, a hotel and an office building,
and had warehouses, serviced apartments, office buildings, a residential area and additional

wholesale trading markets planned for future development at this trade center project.

Yulin Trade Center

Yulin Trade Center is located approximately 2 kilometers from Yulin, the fourth largest
city in Guangxi, located along the border with Guangdong province. The trade center’s
northem edge is bounded by Yulin Second Ring Road. It is 3 kilometers from Guang-Kun

Freeway and is within |0 kilometers of Yulin train station.

Yulin Trade Center is planned to cover a site area of approximately I.I million sqm. and
has an aggregate estimated GFA of approximately 2.0 million sq.m., which is expected to
be developed in three phases. As of 31 December 2013, we had acquired land-use rights
for all of Phase | and a portion of Phase Il encompassing a total site area of 415,868 sq.m.
with a total planned GFA of approximately 693,538 sq.m. upon full completion of Phase |

and Phase Il development.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As of 31 December 2013, we completed the construction of wholesale trading markets
and shopping malls, were constructing an additional shopping mall, and had serviced
apartments, shopping malls, a hotel, an office building and additional wholesale trading

markets planned for future development at this trade center project.

BEEENWRE DM

BZE2013F1A318 RMEEKEBIR S
ETRREERHERE  EEERNEGRE
RHETE - WHREARKNEFHEDRHOHR
REEARE HKeXFHETE BE - B3
BRELHBURHERRE -

+

Miangyang Trade Center

Miangyang Trade Center is strategically located in Mianyang, the second largest city in
Sichuan Province, approximately 120 kilometers northeast of Chengdu, the capital of
Sichuan province, along the key highway and railway that connects Sichuan province and

western and northem China.

Mianyang Trade Center is planned to cover a site area of approximately 0.9 million sq.m.
and has an aggregate estimated GFA of approximately 1.0 million sq.m., which is expected
to be developed in two phases. As of 31 December 2013, we had acquired land-use
rights for all of Phase | and a portion of Phase Il encompassing a total site area of 605,084
sgm. with a planned total GFA of approximately 567,891 sq.m. upon full completion of

Phase I and Phase Il development.

As of 31 December 2013, we completed the construction of wholesale trading markets,
were constructing a commercial pedestrian street and additional wholesale trading
markets, and had certain supporting buildings and facilities and additional wholesale trading

markets planned for future development at this trade center project.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEFNWR D

Ganzhou Trade Center

Ganzhou Trade Center is strategically located in southwestern Jiangxi province near the
intersection of Jiangxi, Hunan and Guangdong provinces. Ganzhou lies along a major
transportation route connecting the inland areas of China with China’s southeastern coast.

Two major railways intersect in Ganzhou, the Jing-Jiu Railway and the Gan-Long Railway.

Ganzhou Trade Center covers a net land area of 1,475,298 sqm. which is estimated to
consist of at least two phases, and is estimated to have a total GFA of approximately 3.6
million sg.m. when fully completed. As of 31 December 2013, we had acquired all the

land-use rights.

As of 31 December 2013, we completed the construction of wholesale trading markets
and we were constructing shopping malls and additional wholesale trading markets,
and had a commercial and exhibition center, shopping malls, a food street, warehouses,
bus terminal and shipping depot, office buildings, residential area, hotels and additional

wholesale trading markets, planned for future development at this trade center project.

EMNEEWRH D
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEENWE DM

Wouzhou Trade Center

Wuzhou Trade Center is strategically located in Wuzhou, a city in eastern Guangxi near
the border of Guangxi and Guangdong provinces. It is approximately 370 kilometers east
of Nanning, the capital of Guangxi, and approximately 270 kilometers west of Guangzhou,

the capital of Guangdong province.

Wuzhou Trade Center is planned to cover a site area of approximately [.3 million sq.m.
and has an aggregate estimated GFA of approximately 2.0 million sq.m., which is expected
to be developed in two phases. As of 31 December 2013, we had acquired land-use
rights for all of Phase | encompassing a total site area of 599,642 sq.m. with a total GFA of

1,085,016 sq.m. upon full completion of Phase | development.

As of 31 December 2013, we were constructing certain supporting buildings and facilities,
wholesale trading markets, a commercial and exhibition center, shopping malls and had a

residential area, office buildings and a hotel planned for future development at this trade

center project.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEFNWR D

Heze Trade Center

Heze Trade Center is located in the city's central Mudan District along National Highway

220 and is approximately two kilometers from Heze's city center.

Heze Trade Center is planned to cover a site area of approximately 8.0 million sq.m. and
has an aggregate estimated GFA of approximately 12.0 million sq.m. which is expected to
be developed in three phases. As of 31 December 2013, we had acquired land-use rights
for a portion of Phase | encompassing a total site area of 392,280 sq.m. with a total GFA

of approximately 611,609 sq.m. upon completion of development.

As of 31 December 2013 we were constructing wholesale trading markets, and had
shopping malls, office buildings, a residential area, certain supporting buildings and facilities
and additional wholesale trading markets planned for future development at this trade

center project.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Xingning Trade Center

Xingning Trade Center is located to the northeast of the Xingning Train Station in
Xingning's Diaofang township. Xingning is a county-level city of Meizhou city, in northeast
Guangdong province near Jiangxi and Fujian provinces, which is accessible by major

national highways connecting Guangdong and various other provinces in China.

Xingning Trade Center is planned to cover a site area of approximately |.3 million sq.m.
with a total GFA of approximately 2.0 million sq.m. which is expected to be developed in
three phases. As of 31 December 2013, we had acquired land-use right for a portion of
Phase | encompassing a total site area of 170,509 sq. m. with a total GFA of 194,158 sq. m.

upon full completion of development.

As of 31 December 2013, we were constructing wholesale trading markets and certain
supporting buildings and facilities, and had additional wholesale trading markets and office

buildings planned for future development at this trade center project

Yantai Trade Center

Yantai Trade Center is located in souther Zhifu District of Yantai City, west of Shenhai
Highway, 9 kilometers north of Yantai railway station, east of the Yantai wharf and 9.5
kilometers south of the Laishan International Airport and Rongwu Highway. The location

of Yantai Trade Center has exceptional geographical and transportation advantages.

Yantai Trade Center is planned to cover a site area of approximately 1.3 million sq.m. with
a total GFA of approximately 2.4 million sq.m. which is expected to be developed at least
in two phases. As of 31 December 2013, we had acquired land-use right for a portion of
Phase | encompassing a total site area of 44,233 sq.m. with a total GFA of 204,400 sqm.

upon full completion of development.

As of 31 December 2013, wholesale trading markets, office buildings, certain supporting
buildings and facilities, serviced apartments and shopping malls were planned at this trade

center project in the future.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEFNWR D

Lanzhou Trade Center

Lanzhou Trade Center is located in Lanzhou's Heping township, the middle of Lanzhou
City and Yuzhong County and next to the community of Lanzhou colleges. It is located
in the south of Qinglan Highway and National Road 312 and the north of National Road
309, and is approximately 15 kilometers from downtown Lanzhou City, 20 kilometers and

80 kilometers from the railway station and airport of Lanzhou City, respectively.

Lanzhou Trade Center is planned to cover a site area of approximately 4.0 million sqm.
with a total GFA of approximately 6.0 million sq.m which is expected to be developed
at least in two phases. As of 3|1 December 2013, we had acquired land-use rights for a
portion of Phase | encompassing a total site area of 318,380 sqm. with a total GFA of

479,577 sqm. upon completion of development.

As of 3| December 2013, wholesale trading markets, shopping malls and parking lots were

planned for future development at this trade center project.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW
DISCUSSION OF CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS ITEMS

Turnover

Turnover increased by RMB3,149.4 million, or 196.0%, from RMBI,607.1 million for
FY2012 to RMB4,756.5 million for FY2013. This increase was primarily derived from an
increase in revenue from sales of properties. The following table sets forth our turnover
from sales of properties, property management services and rental income during the

periods indicated.

BEEENWE DM
AHEE
AGHRERNEWHE
EX8

EEERWNIHREEMARKE 1607 BET
BMAR®314948 BTk 1960% 220138
BEREMARKEAT6SBET - 2 EBEME
ERERMEHEFEIEM - TREAIN B
RATTEREREMEHE  WEEERE LA
ERARE R

For the year ended 3| December

BZENA3IBLEE
2013 2012

Turnover Turnover

EXE L
(RMB’000) % (RMB000) %
(AE®Fr) % (ARETT) %
Sales of properties MEHE 4,748,766 99.8% 1,605907 99.9%
Property management services MEERRS 7,027 0.2% 847 0.1%
Rental income GEEA N 671 0.0% 360 0.0%
Total =5 4,756,464 100.0% 1,607,114 100.0%

Sales of properties MEHE

Revenue from sales of properties increased by RMB3,142.9 million, or 195.7%, from
RMBI,605.9 million for FY2012 to RMB4,748.8 million in FY2013. Our revenue from sales
of properties for FY2013 was primarily derived from the sales of wholesale trading market
units at our Ganzhou Trade Center, Mianyang Trade Center and shopping mall at our

Yulin Trade Center.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWmE DM

The following table sets forth the GFA, average sales price and revenue from properties

delivered during the periods indicated:

FHERREEE

For the year ended December 31

BZNA3NBLEE

TREJIRATHREERNYROEERE -

2013 2012
Average Average
GFA  sales price Revenue GFA sales price Revenue
BEER VHEE BXE RBEEEE  YHEE 2EH
GFA in sq.m., average sales price in RMB per sq.m.
and revenue in thousands of RMB
BEAR(FHK)  PHERB(GEFRARARET)
REXFEANREF)
Ganzhou Trade Center ENEEWRA L
Wholesale trading market units BURSHRTBET 334,125 8,102 2,707,127 — — —
Subtotal NEt 334125 NATER 2,707,127 — NATNER -
Mianyang Trade Center BHREEMREL
Wholesale trading market units BURGERNRET 175,711 5822 1,023,023 — — —
Subtotal Nt 175711 NATER 1,023,023 — NATNER -
Yulin Trade Center EREENRAD
Wholesale trading market units BURSRTEBET 25,081 5,051 126,692 62457 4828 301,567
Shopping mall HaxsETE 53,008 8182 433737 — — —
Subtotal Nt 78089 NATREM 560429 62457 NIATER 301,567
Jining Trade Center EEFEMRT L
Wholesale trading market units BUXSRTRETT 85,363 4,200 358,541 198,447 4,108 815246
Shopping mall FAERHERE 3,506 6,591 23,108 12471 6243 77,855
Subtotal N 88869 NATEA 381649 210918 NATER 893101
Ningxiang Trade Center ERHENRP O
Wholesale trading market units BURSHRTBETT 7,687 4322 33,226 44833 3,786 169,757
Bus terminal and information center BB R AL 5,302 3,808 20,191 - - -
Serviced apartments BEXAAE 3,045 5,126 15,608 — — —
Subtotal N 16034 NATEF 69,025 44833 NIATER 169,757
Other Properties Hith 4%
Shufan Xintian KEHK — — — 535 3908 2091
Haode Yinzuo Ri o RE 1,172 6,410 7513 36,998 6470 239,391
Subtotal N LI72 NATER 7513 37533 NATER 241482
Total @t 694000 NATEA 4748766 355741 NATER 1605907
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The GFA of properties sold increased by 338,259 sqm., or 95.1%, from 355,741 sq.m.
for FY2012 to 694,000 sq.m. for FY2013. The increase in the GFA of properties sold
was primarily from the partial delivery of wholesale trading market units at our trade

center projects in Ganzhou and Mianyang and shopping mall at our Yulin Trade Center in

FY2013.

The average sales price of our wholesale trading market units increased during the same
period, primarily due to a change of product mix in FY2013. In particular, the average sales
price of wholesale trading market units sold at Ganzhou and Mianyang Trade Centers was
generally higher than the price of similar properties sold in FY2012, mainly at Jining Trade
Center and Yulin Trade Center.

Property management services

Revenue from property management services increased by RMB6.2 million, from RMBO0.8
million for FY2012 to RMB7.0 million for FY2013. The increase of revenue from property
management services primarily reflected the continued expansion of our property
management portfolio, including our acquisition of a 51% equity interest in Ganzhou Jiuzhi

which further increased the scope of our property management service operations.

Rental income

Revenue from rental income increased by RMBO.3 million, or 75.0%, from RMB0.4 million
for FY2012 to RMBO.7 million for FY2013. The increase in FY2013 was primarily derived

from the eamings of certain office space at Haode Yinzuo.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEFNWR D

Cost of Sales

Cost of sales increased by RMB993.3 million or 119.6%, from RMB830.8 million for
FY2012 to RMBI,824.1 million for FY2013. The increase of cost of sales was generally in

line with our increase in turnover during the same periods.

Cost of properties sold increased by RMB988.2 million, or 19.2%, from RMB829.3
million for FY2012 to RMBI,817.5 million for FY2013, primarily reflecting increases in
GFA sold. In particular, (i) our construction costs increased by RMBI,033.7 million, or
124.6%, from RMB829.6 million for FY2012 to RMBI,863.3 million for FY2013, (i) our
land acquisition costs increased by RMB226.0 million, or 81.8%, from RMB276.2 million for
FY2012 to RMB502.2 million for FY2013, and (jii) our government grants credited to cost
of sales increased by RMB335.7 million, or [17.7%, from RMB285.2 million for FY2012
to RMB620.9 million for FY2013. The increase in major components of our cost of sales

reflected our increase in sales of properties and the expansion of business scale.

Gross Profit

As a result of the foregoing, gross profit increased by RMB2,156.1 million, or 277.7%, from
RMB776.3 million for FY2012 to RMB2,932.4 million for FY2013. Our gross profit margin
increased from 48.3% for FY2012 to 61.6% for FY2013. The increase in our gross profit
margin for FY2013 compared to FY2012 was primarily due to a higher proportion of
revenue being generated from Ganzhou Trade Center of our overall revenue in FY2013,
which yielded a relatively higher gross profit margin compared to that of Jining Trade
Center and Yulin Trade Center which contributed to a significant portion of our gross
profits in FY2012.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Other Revenue

We recorded a dividend income of RMB4.0 million in connection with a 0% minority

investment made to a local rural credit cooperative institution in Mianyang in FY201 3.

Other net income/(loss)

Other net income in FY2013 represents net gains on disposal of available-for-sale

investments.
Selling and Distribution Expenses

Selling and distribution expenses increased by RMB67.3 million, or 108.2%, from RMB62.2
million for FY2012 to RMBI129.5 million for FY2013. The increase primarily reflected an
increase in advertisement expenses and staff compensation. Such increases were generally
in line with our increase in turnover during this period. The selling and distribution
expenses as percentage of turnover decreased from 3.9% in FY2012 to 2.7% in FY2013,
primarily reflecting our continued efforts to enhance operating efficiency and our capability

in managing our sales and marketing activities.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEFNWR D

Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses increased by RMB124.8 million, or 66.5%, from RMB187.7 million
for FY2012 to RMB312.5 million for FY2013. The increase primarily reflected increases in
staff-related expenses and professional service fees. The increases were primarily due to
(i) a significantly higher level of administrative expenses incurred to support our growing
operational scale in FY2013 compared to FY2012, and (i) an increase of professional
service fees incurred in FY2013 in relation to the Global Offering. Our administrative
expenses as a percentage of turnover decreased from |1.7% in FY2012 to 6.6% in
FY2013. This decrease reflected our continued efforts to enhance operating efficiency in

managing our administrative activities.

Other Operating Expenses

Other operating expenses increased by RMB16.5 million, from RMB6.6 million for FY2012
to RMB23.1 million for FY2013. Other operating expenses primarily consisted of charity
donations and sponsorships made at our headquarters level as well as geographic regions
where we have operations or intended to enter into. The increase in FY2013 primarily
reflected charity donations and sponsorships for events in Yulin and Ganzhou. Our other
operating expenses represented 0.4% and 0.5%, of our turnover in FY2012 and FY2013,

respectively.

HYDOO INTERNATIONAL HOLDING LIMITED £ =R I=R B R 2 A
Annual Report 2013 4 $§

THAxX

TERXB20NHABRFENAREI1877E8E
TLEMARK 1248 BE T 66.5% * £20138
BREEMAREINSEEL  FERBETHE
AR REXRBEEN - EHEMEEHR
(VB 20128BEE - PR 20138 BFE
RAYREERARRERMEENTHR Y ABE
MEMRNBARFEREHRBEEELENE
ERBEENAY - BMNTHAXEEER
MBALLE202MRERMN 7%/ ZE2013
REER6.6%  BRRL REEMTES 7
RAGENEREBITREE

HitEEmx

HMGERTH0NHRFENARK66H
ETEMARE 165BET  Z2030KREE
MARBE2Z I BET HEERXFERR
REERBEERURRFXBEEMESEE
EMEREROBSEIRESD - R20138 K
FEMNENEIERBEEMRENS BTN
HREBRRED - R0NFEHFE R20I135
WEE  BZMMEMEERI DG S EEN
0.4% 2 0.5% °



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Share of Loss of a Joint Venture

We had a share of loss of a joint venture of RMB3.1 million in FY2012, which was
recorded in connection with our investment in Ganxian Haode Highway Construction
Co, Ltd, an entity in which we held a 60% equity interest. We disposed of such equity
interest in June 2012.

Gain on disposal of a subsidiary

We recorded a gain on disposal of a subsidiary of RMB306.6 million in FY2012 in
connection with our disposal of our Harbin Trade Center project. We did not have any
disposal of subsidiaries in FY201 3.

Finance Income

Our finance income increased by RMB9.7 million, from RMBI.4 million for FY2012 to
RMBI I.1 million for FY2013. The increase reflected an increase in interest income on our

bank deposit as a result of the increase in bank deposit during the same period.

Finance Costs

Our finance costs decreased by RMB3.0 million, or 4.1%, from RMB73.2 million for
FY2012 to RMB70.2 million for FY2013. The decrease primarily reflected a decrease of
RMB5.4 million in finance expenses recorded on our preferred shares issued to Hony
Capital Fund 2008, LP. (“Hony Capital”) offset by an increase of foreign exchange loss
of RMB2.1 million recorded in FY2013. Substantially all of the interest expenses paid
on bank loans and other borrowings in FY2013 were capitalized into properties under

development.

Change in Fair Value of Embedded Derivative on Redeemable Convertible Preference

Shares

We recorded a charge of RMBI03.3 million for FY2013, compared to a charge of
RMB292.3 million for FY2012, reflecting changes in the fair value of embedded derivative
on the redeemable convertible preference shares we issued to Hony Capital in 201 1. All
preferred shares were converted into ordinary shares upon the listing of the Company's

shares on the Stock Exchange.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEFNWR D

Income Tax

Our income tax expense increased by RMB903.4 million, from RMB245.5 million for
FY2012 to RMBI,148.9 million for FY2013. Such increase primarily reflected a significant
increase in taxable income as a result of the revenue generated from sales of properties in

our trade centers.

Profit for the Year

As a result of the foregoing, our profit increased by RMB961.2 million, or 447.5%, from
RMB214.8 million in FY2012 to RMBI,176.0 million in FY2013.

DISCUSSION OF CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL
POSITION ITEMS

Trade and Other Receivables

Our trade and other receivables primarily consist of deposits, prepayments and other
receivables and prepaid business tax and other taxes. The following table sets forth the

major components of our trade and other receivables as of the dates indicated.
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As of 3|1 December

BZ12A318
(RMB000)

(AR#EFT)
2013 2012
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables Ed - BNFEREMERTIE 545,165 788,721
Prepaid business tax and other taxes BREERREMTIE 124,883 53,754
Trade and bills receivables B RKFE LK E R 12,893 66,102
Security deposit with a PRC financial institution (Note) FHRHEEREENRESR — 40,000
Total At 682,941 948,577
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Note:  This relates to a security deposit made in relation to our repayment of a loan from Ping An

Trust Co,, Ltd.

Deposits, prepayments and other receivables primarily represent development
expenditures incurred in connection with properties planned for future development for
which we have not yet obtained land-use rights certificates, and other receivables due
from parties other than our trading customers. In particular, our deposits, prepayments
and other receivables for FY2013 primarily related to our expenditures incurred in
connection with additional properties planned for future development for which we had
not yet obtained land-use rights certificates at the trade center projects in Lanzhou and

Yantai.

Restricted Cash

Restricted cash amounted to RMBI103.0 million for FY2013 compared to RMB22.4
million for FY2012. Restricted cash in FY2013 primarily represented the cash we pledged
to commercial banks for relevant mortgage facilities granted to our customers for the
purpose of purchasing properties by our customers. Pledged cash generally represents
2-10% of the total credit provided by commercial banks. The increase in our restricted
cash in FY2013 primarily reflected the increase in property sales obtaining mortgage loans
provided by commercial banks to our customers which are subject to the cash pledge

arrangement described above during this period.

BEEENWRE DM

i ABRRMRERTZEAERACAFER
fEHEVERE -

e BNRARAGREREATIEREHR
{3 R 1S L PR AR R St B M R OR P 3 A
MEMEENRESH  URBREAESE
PSS TH A EKEIR « K 5I= - BIAIR
WIHHFRENES - BNFRRLE MR
BXEAAAMMDAEERRAZOELY
EMEENXH  ZFVEURBMNRESH
BERT OB H ARG LI EREE -

ZRERE

WHRHBFENRXRARSEARE 10308
B MORHBFEIRARE24EE
Lo 03B BEERNXR IR € FERHM
EPREBEVEMERNABIRERE KR
TEAERITHRE - EARCBFREERT
Pzt BIEEREN2%ZE 10%° 2013 BFE
BMOZBREARENENFERRTEPES
BERTEBERTREOMEHENEM - 1
ARBERAR EX MR ARETNR e E
BB

HYDOO INTERNATIONAL HOLDING LIMITED £ ZEE B ZERER AT

Annual Report 2013 £

35



36

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEFNWR D

Trade and Other Payables

Trade and other payables primarily consist of receipts in advance and trade payables. The
following table sets forth the major components of our trade and other payables as of the

dates indicated.

B REMEARE

B R AMENFATEBRBRRTARERN
BH5RE - TREJIBPEEMREHNES
REMENTROEERD o

As of 3| December

BZ12831H
(RMB’000)

(AR#FT)

2013 2012
Trade payables ERNESHHE 1,267,036 786,860
Receipts in advance L 2,376,504 750918
Other payables and accruals HA0 RS R FERT R 184,564 154,637
Special dividend RIS — 20,05
Total CHI 3,828,104 1,712,620

Trade payables mainly represent amounts due to construction contractors and
payables recorded in connection with our acquisition of land-use rights. Our payment
to construction contractors is generally made in installments according to pre-agreed
payment milestones as set out in the construction contracts. We generally fully settle the
payment to construction contractors within one month, except that we normally retain
2-10% of the contract amount to cover any damages as a result of any construction
defects. Such retention money payables are generally settled one year after the completion
of the construction work. The increase in our trade payables balance from FY2012 to
FY2013 primarily reflected increases of amounts due to construction contractors relating

to construction work at our trade center projects in Ganzhou and Heze.

Receipts in advance primarily consist of proceeds from property pre-sales paid by our
customers before relevant properties are delivered to our customers. Such proceeds
received are recognized as turnover when the construction of the relevant properties is
completed and the properties are delivered to purchasers. The significant increase in our
balance of receipts in advance from FY2012 to FY2013 was due to the proceeds received
in connection with the pre-sales of properties at our trade center projects in Ganzhou and
Mianyang in FY2013, partially offset by the delivery of properties at trade center projects

in Yulin and Jining.

HYDOO INTERNATIONAL HOLDING LIMITED £ =R I=R B R 2 A
Annual Report 2013 4 $§

BNESFRRTRIEEMNAZBOZTAREM
BB L REMEGORNRE - BMAR
AEBELNNFREREZESNAESE
BENNTRDPET - RABEE—EAR
MARBERGEENS  ERMARRE%E
10%MB AT ABHE IR TREMS
BROEMEX - ZEFRNRECBRARET
BRI -FREE - AMNENEZRAER
R2ONHBREEZEWBHHEEEN 2
R T HAENTEEERT OEAH
LTI N ARANFARZ -

BRFEFERRRMANEPEERNERY
XA MM EREMGEIIE - ZE5E WA
BHECEBANERIIRNFERKERA
EEE  FMMBURRELEHRR 20N HREFE
ZNBHABEEBELEN - REAZK20I35
BEERBEMREMREHBEENRT LB
B A EWERAFRIE - B E 5 1818 B R AR
IHREBEEFEYRTOEBOEMFESE



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Deferred Income

Deferred income as of a period end primarily represents the total amount of government
grants recognised prior to such date after netting off the portion of the government grants
that have been credited to cost of sales prior to such date. During FY2013 and FY2012,
we recognised government grants of RMB957.8 million and RMB586.9 million, respectively.
During the same periods, RMB620.9 million and RMB285.2 million were credited to cost
of properties sold, respectively. As a result, our deferred income amounted to RMB863.9
million and RMB524.6 million as of 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012,
respectively. Our government grants recognised in FY2013 and FY2012 were primarily

related to development activities at Jining, Ganzhou and Yantai Trade Centers.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Our primary uses of cash are to pay for construction costs and land acquisition costs,
fund working capital, service our indebtedness, purchase property, plant and equipment
for our own use. To date, we have primarily financed our operational expenditures
through intemally generated cash flows including proceeds from the pre-sales and sales
of properties, equity investments made by our pre-IPO investors, borrowings from
commercial banks and other financial institutions and proceeds from our initial public

offering.

Cash Flow

In FY2013, we had RMB4,293.0 million in cash and cash equivalents. The following table

sets forth a summary of our consolidated cash flow statements for the periods indicated.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEBNWMRDN

Selected consolidated cash flow statement data

FEAHRERERYE

Net cash generated from/(used in) operating activities
Net cash generated from investing activities

Net cash generated from financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at | January

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December

BeEDMG/ (B RLFE
RBEBMERSTR
RERHEREFHE
ReRRSEEMENFE
RIAIBORERASEEY
INEEXZENT L
RI2A3IBRRERREEEY
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For the year ended
31 December
BZNA3IBLEE
(RMB'000)

(AR#TF7)

2013 2012

(1,087,583)

194,405

1,044,213

151,035

436,941
(3,597)
584,379
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Bank Loans and Other Borrowings

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The following table sets forth our outstanding bank loans and other borrowings as of the

dates indicated.

BEEENWRE DM

RITERREMEER

TEREIRATARRAOREERTEFR
HipfE g -

The Group
A%
2013 2012
(RMB000) (RMB'000)
(AR#Fr) (AEETFT)
Current mE
Secured BER
- short term bank loans and other borrowings —RERTERREMEE 70,000 630,000
- current portion of secured non-current bank loans —FERERBRITERREMEERN
and other borrowings mENER 183,860 43,000

Unsecured EEA
- short term bank loans —RERITER 28,000 16,000
Subtotal et 281,860 689,000
Non-current *RE
Repayable after | year but within 2 years - secured —FREMFAET - FHER 181,000 —
Repayable after 2 years but within 5 years - secured MERBRAFNER - BER 421,000 60,000
Subtotal et 602,000 60,000
Total® @msto 883,860 749,000
Note: fifzE -

(1) Certain assets of the Group were pledged for purpose of bank loans. Please refer to note 23

to the financial statements for details.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEFNWR D

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

We make arrangements with PRC commercial banks so that such banks may provide
mortgage facilities to our customers to purchase our properties. In accordance with
market practice, we are required to provide guarantees to these banks in respect of
mortgages provided to such customers. Guarantees for such mortgages are generally
discharged at the earlier of: (i) the due registration of the mortgage interest held by the
commercial bank upon the subject properties, or (i) the settlement of mortgage loans
between the mortgagee banks and the purchasers. In addition, we are required by the
banks to place a security deposit to secure our guarantee obligations. If a purchaser
defaults on the mortgage loan, we are typically required to purchase the underlying
properties by paying off the mortgage loan with any accrued and unpaid interest and
penalty based on the loan agreement. If we fail to do so, the mortgagee banks will auction
the underlying properties and recover the balance from us if the outstanding loan amount
exceeds the net foreclosure sale proceeds. Such amount may also be settled through
withholding the security deposit we place with the banks. In line with industry practice, we
do not conduct independent credit checks on our customers but rely on the credit checks
conducted by the mortgagee banks. As of 31 December 2013, our maximum amount of
guarantees provided to banks for mortgage facilities granted to our customers amounted
to RMB1,482.1 million.

COMMITMENTS

Commitments on Development Costs

The following table sets forth our commitments in respect of property development
expenditures as of the dates indicated. Our commitments were primarily related to the

development costs contracted but not provided for as of the dates indicated.
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As of 3|1 December
BZNA3BLEE

(RMB'000)
(AR#EFT)
2013 2012
Contracted but not provided for BERABRES 1,223,694 1,222,759
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENT

We lease a number of properties for our internal use under operating leases. The leases
typically have an initial term of one to two years, with an option to renew based on
renegotiated lease terms. The following table sets forth our operating lease commitments

as of the dates indicated.

BEEENWRE DM

REHRRE

BARBEELHOBELREERBEA -

BERN—ROS /Y —EZMF - BRERER
BHEGERER - TREJINAR B R
IR TER R -

As of 31 December
BEZNA3NHILEEE

(RMB'000)
(AR¥FT)
2013 2012
Within | year —ER 13,893 9,537
After | year but within 2 years —FREMENR 12,373 16,421
Total CHI 26,266 25958

KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS

The following table sets out our current ratio, gearing ratio, returmn on assets and return on

equity as of the dates or for the periods indicated.

FRUKLR

TRENBRFARFARE PPN RB L E -
BEAEBRE  BEDRXRERDRE -

As of and for the year ended 31

December
BZENA3IBLEE
2013 2012
Current ratio () MENLEO 1.81 157
Gearing ratio @ BEABLEO 8.0% 25.9%
Return on assets BED®REO 17.6% 8.9%
Return on equity @ B EHRE© 51.7% 50.8%
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEFNWR D

Notes:

(1) Our current ratio is calculated by dividing current assets by current liabilities as of the end of

the respective reporting period.

(2)  Our gearing ratio is calculated as the Group's total interest bearing borrowings as of the
respective reporting period (includes bank loans and other borrowings and redeemable
convertible preference shares) divided by total assets as of the end of the respective

reporting period and multiplying by 100%.

(3)  Our retum on assets equals the Group's core operating net profit for the year divided by

average total assets as of the end of the respective reporting period and multiplying by 100%.

(4)  Our retum on equity equals the Group's core operating net profit for the year divided by
average equity and multiplying by 100%.

QUALITATIVE AND QUANTITATIVE DISCLOSURE ABOUT FINANCIAL
RISK

Reflecting the nature of our property development, investment and management
operations, we are exposed to various financial risks in the normal course of our business.
For example, our sales were primarily denominated in RMB, being the functional currency
of our major operating subsidiaries, therefore, our Board expects the future exchange rate
fluctuation will not have any material effect on our business. We did not use any financial

instruments for hedging purpose.

ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARY

Except for the acquisition of the 51% equity interest in Ganzhou Jiuzhi in June 2013, the
Group had no material acquisition and disposal of subsidiary and associated company

during the year under review.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

RESTRICTION ON SALES

As of 31 December 2013, we entered into master investment agreements with local
government authorities regarding the development of ten projects. Under the terms of
certain master investment agreements, such as our agreements in regard to Ningxiang,
Mianyang and Ganzhou Trade Centers, we are required to maintain a certain portion of
the trade center properties, typically 20%-30% in terms of GFA, for self-use or leasing
purpose. We believe that such requirement is in line with our overall development plan
for these projects. Except for the conditions mentioned above, there is no restriction on

sales of the land acquired by the Group.

HUMAN RESOURCES

As of 31 December 2013, the Group had a workforce of approximately 2,000 people.
The number of staff had increased by 5.4% since 31 December 2012. During the year
under review, the total employee benefit expenses amounted to RMB160.9 million,
increased by 112.8% (FY2012: RMB75.6 million). We actively recruit skilled and
qualified personnel in the Chinese local markets, including students newly graduated
from universities as well as employees with relevant work experience. For the senior
management team and selected management positions, we may also seek to recruit
personnel with international experience. The remuneration package of our employees
includes salary, bonuses and other cash subsidies. In general, we determine employee
salaries based on each employee's qualifications, experience, position and seniority. We
have designed an annual review system to assess the performance of our employees,
which forms the basis of our determination on salary raises, bonuses and promotion.
During FY2013, the Company has granted |8.75 share options (adjusted to 900,000 share
options pursuant to the adjustment mechanism under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

Rules) to certain directors.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
MBHE

For the year ended 3| December

BEt-A=1t-HL%E

2013 2012 2011 2010
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000
AR¥TR ARBTT ARETT AR®TR
Results E
Turnover =E 1,607,114 832,683 95715
Gross Profit EM 776271 433,823 77,378
Profit before taxation BATAE 460,282 288,728 23,126
Income tax PG5 (245491) (59,751) (10,953)
Profit for the year FE R 214,791 228977 12,173
Profit for the year attributable to: & EEFREER -
Equity shareholders of the Company ARAIERERR 216,506 228977 12,173
Non-controlling interests R ER (1,715) — —
Profit for the year FANHE 214,791 228977 12,173
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

B BEE
At 3| December
W+=A=+-H
2013 2012 2011 2010
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETT ARBTT AR®ETR
Financial position BN

Non-current assets FRBEE 302,143 188,135 112,895 56,887
Current assets MEEE 10,701,554 4954970 2,869,070 1811959
Current liabilities mEEE 5,901,028 3,149,808 2053418 1,659,836
Net current assets MEEEFE 4,800,526 1,805,162 815,652 152,123
Total assets less current liabilities BEERTEBARG 5,102,669 1,993,297 928547 209,010
Non-current liabilities FRBEE 670,881 937230 555,874 20,000
Net assets BEFE 4,431,788 1,056,067 372673 189,010
Share capital R 31,945 365 333 90,333
Reserves & 4,389,126 949,417 372340 98,677

Total equity attributable to equity ARRIER R R B
shareholders of the Company BREHE 4,421,071 949,782 372,673 189,010
Non-controlling interests JEIE R 10,717 106,285 — —
Total Equity et 4,431,788 1,056,067 372673 189,010
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEERE

The Board has pleasure in presenting this annual report and the audited consolidated

financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2013.

INITIAL PUBLIC OFFERING

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted company with
limited liability under the Companies Law (2013 Revision) of the Cayman Islands (the
“Cayman Companies Law") on October 19, 2010. The Company listed its Shares on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (the “Listing") on 31 October 2013 (the “Listing
Date") and issued 768,256,000 Shares at an offer price of HK$2.15 per Share. On 27
November 2013, the Company further issued 11,950,000 Shares pursuant to the partial

exercise of the over-allotment option at an offer price of HK$2.15 per Share.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Group is developing and operating large-scale trade centers

in third- and fourth-tier, and selected second-tier, cities in China.

The Group seeks to develop each trade center project into the largest integrated
commercial complex in the local region for the wholesale and retail sale of a wide range
of products including hardware, electric tools, building materials, furniture and home
furnishings, home electronics, apparel and small goods. The Group designs its trade
centers to seamlessly integrate the wholesale trading market properties with other on-site
facilities such as shopping malls, commercial and exhibition centers, hotels, residential and

office space, warehouses and other logistics facilities.
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Details of the principal activities of the principal subsidiaries of the Company are set out in

note 15 to the financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review on the Group is set out on pages 14 to 26 of this annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES

The Group is committed to complying with PRC environmental protection laws and
regulations and actively participate in the environmental assessment process and fully
cooperates with accredited environmental assessment organizations. The Group has
taken certain measures to reduce pollution, including the implementation of energy-
saving policies that reduces its electricity consumption, the implementation of a rain and
sewage diversion system in certain trade centers, smoke filtering systems in kitchens of its
cafeterias and restaurants and the installation of sound insulation in its backup generators

and cooling machines, and the use of solar-powered heaters.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND REGULATIONS

There were no incidents of non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a

significant impact on the Company.

RESULTS

The Group's results for FY2013 are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss

on pages 95 to 96 of this annual report.

DIVIDEND

The Board recommends the payment of a proposed final dividend in respect of FY2013
of HKI9.5 cents per Share (or equivalent to approximately RMBI5.3 cents per Share)
(the "Proposed Final Dividend"). Subject to the approval of the Proposed Final Dividend
by the shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”) at the AGM of the Company
to be held on |13 May 2014, the Proposed Final Dividend will be distributed on or about
30 May 2014 to Shareholders whose names appear on the register of members of the

Company on 21 May 2014.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEERE

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company during FY2013 are set out

in note 30(b) to the financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company during FY2013 are
set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity and note 30(a) to the financial

statements, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, details of the Company's reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the provisions of the Cayman Companies Law

are set out in note 30 to the financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group during

FY2013 are set out in note | | to the financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The aggregate sales to the Group's single largest customer and five largest customers

accounted for less than 30% of the Group's turnover respectively, in FY2013.

The aggregate purchases from the Group's single largest supplier and five largest suppliers
accounted for approximately 14% and 45% respectively, of the Group's total purchases

for FY2013.

None of the Directors or any of their associates, or any Shareholders which to the
knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the Company's issued share capital has

any interests in the Group's five largest suppliers or customers.
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DONATIONS

During FY2013, the charitable contributions and other donations totaled approximately
RMB22,565,000 (FY2012: RMB6,205,000).

SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Company's principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2013 are set out in

note 15 to the financial statements.

PRE-IPO SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company ratified and approved the pre-IPO share option scheme (the “Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme™) on 20 March 2013.

The purpose of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is to recognize the contribution of
the employees of the members of our Group and any persons who have contributed to
the Group at the time of granting Options (the “Qualified Participants”) to the business
development of our Group by granting share options (“Options”) to them as incentive

and/or reward,

(i) the exercise price per Share under each Option is HK$1.014;

(i) asat 31 December 2013, the total number of Options outstanding under the Pre-
IPO Share Option Scheme was 82,320,000 Shares, representing approximately
2.043% of the Shares in issue of the Company;

(i) the grantees are entitled to exercise in full or in part any rested Options from six

months after the Listing Date to December 31, 2018; and

(iv)  no further Options will be granted after the Listing Date.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

EEERE

Particulars of the outstanding Options conditionally granted under the Pre-IPO Share

Option Scheme are set out below:

RIZE R AR EBAERER 818 RIFR R
RMTERBEFEEIINT -

Number of
Options Number of
Number of Number of exercised/ outstanding
Options Options cancelled/  Options as at
held as at granted  lapsed during 31 December
| January 2013 during FY2013 FY2013 2013
Number of 20135 R2013 #2013 R2013 5
Options granted lAIA HEEE HEEE 128318
Grantees Date of grant of Options RiERE BN BEm 76N RTEMH
ERA REBRERH $18 BREHE BREXE BEREHE BREXE
Directors
g%
Wong Choihing 30 November 201 |
THE 2011411 A30H 1,600,000 1,600,000 - - 1,600,000
Huang Dehong 30 November 201
AR 2011114308 4000000 4000000 - - 4,000,000
Yang Xianzu 20 March 2013
HER 20134634200 300,000 - 300,000 - 300,000
Wang Lianzhou 20 March 2013
FEM 201363 A20H 300,000 - 300,000 - 300,000
Lam, Chi Yeun Nelson 20 March 2013
HER 2013%3A20R 300,000 - 300,000 - 300,000
Other employees 30 November 201 |
EftER 2011114308 56,630,000 56,630,000 - - 56,630,000
Other employees [6 October 2012
HftES 2012%10A 16H 9,190,000 9,190,000 - - 9,190,000
Total
RS 82,320,000 81,420,000 900,000 - 82,320,000
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The Options shall vest according to the following schedule:

For Options granted on November 30, 201/
R2011 411530 AR HIERE

Respective Vesting Date

December 31, 2012
December 31, 2013
December 31, 2014
December 31, 2015

For Options granted on October 16, 2012
20124 105 16 RRHHIIERE

Respective Vesting Date

December 31,2013
December 31,2014
December 31, 2015
December 31,2016

For Options granted on March 20, 2013
R2013F3 520 ARHHBRE

Respective Vesting Date

December 31,2014
December 31, 2015
December 31,2016
December 31, 2017

Details of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme are set out in note 28 to the financial

statements.

£yl =k

2012124318
2013128318
2014128318
2015124318

£yl b

2013F12A31H
2014128318
2015 12A31H
2016F12A31H

£yl b

2014F12A31H
20156128318
2016F12A31H
2017F12A31H
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BRERRBATHEREE

Percentage of Shares under

an Option that shall be vested

EEEBREATHNROEIL

25%
50%
75%
100%

Percentage of Shares under

an Option that shall be vested

EEBRERERTNROBEDL

25%
50%
75%
100%

Percentage of Shares under

an Option that shall be vested

EEEBBERERTNROED L

25%
50%
75%
100%

BEREE R ARSKRABREENFBENY
BERRMTE28 -
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEERE

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the period from the Listing Date to 31 December 2013 (the

“Relevant Period") and up to the date of this annual report are:

Executive Directors
Mr. Wong Choihing (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Huang Dehong

Non-Executive Director

Mr. Yuan Bing

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Yang Xianzu

Mr. Wang Lianzhou

Mr. Lam, Chi Yuen Nelson

In accordance with articles 16.2 and 16.3 of the Company's articles of association adopted
by a special resolution passed on 27 September 2013 and effective on the Listing Date
(the “Articles of Association”), any Director appointed by the Board or by an ordinary
resolution either to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board shall hold office
only until the following annual general meeting and shall then be eligible for re-election
at that meeting. Accordingly, Mr. Wong Choihing (executive Director), Mr. Huang
Dehong (executive Director), Mr. Yuan Bing (non-executive Director), Mr. Yang Xianzu
(independent non-executive Director), Mr. Wang Lianzhou (independent non-executive
Director) and Mr. Lam, Chi Yuen Nelson (independent non-executive Director), shall be

eligible for re-election at the AGM.

The Board has received an annual confirmation of independence from each of the
independent non-executive Directors pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules"). The Board considers all

independent non-executive Directors to be independent
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors of the Company has entered into service contract with
the Company for a term of three years, commencing from 27 September 2013 and shall

be terminated by either party thereto by giving not less than three months’ prior notice.

The non-executive Director of the Company has entered into a letter of appointment
with the Company for a term of three years, commencing from 27 September 2013 and
shall be terminated by either party thereto by giving not less than 14 business days" prior

written notice.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors of the Company has entered into
letters of appointment with the Company on 20 March 2013 for a term of three years
and shall be terminated by either party thereto by giving not less than 14 business days'

prior written notice.

None of the Directors has entered into any service contract with the Company which is
not determinable by the Company within one year without payment of compensation,

other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

None of the Directors has or had a material beneficial interest, whether directly or
indirectly, in any significant contract in relation to the Group's business to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries, its holding companies or a subsidiary of its holding

companies was a party during FY2013.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

None of the Controlling Shareholders (as defined below) or its subsidiary has or had
a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any contract of significance, whether
for the provision of services or otherwise, to the business of the Group to which the

Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party during FY2013.
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BIOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The biographical information of the Directors and senior management of the Company
are set out in the section headed “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior

Management” on pages 83 to 92 of this annual report.

ENFORCEMENT OF THE DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

Pursuant to the deed of non-competition dated 27 September 2013 (“Non-Competition
Undertaking") entered into by Mr. Wong Choihing, Mr. Wang Dewen, Mr. Wang Jianli,
Mr. Wang Quanguang, Mr. Wang Desheng, Mr. Wang Dekai, Mr. Huang Dehong and
Mr. Wong Sheungtak (the “Ultimate Controlling Shareholders”), Most Trend Holdings
Limited (“Most Trend"), Mr. Wong Kim and Eminent Ascend Limited (“Eminent Ascend”)
(collectively, the “Controlling Shareholders”), each of the Controlling Shareholders has
unconditionally and irrevocably undertaken to the Company that he/it would not, and
would procure that hefits associates (other than any members of the Group) would not,
during the Restricted Period (as defined below), directly or indirectly, either on his/its
own account or in conjunction with or on behalf of any person, firm or company, among
other things, carry on, participate or be interested or engaged in or acquire or hold (in
each case whether as a shareholder, director, partner, agent, employee or otherwise, and
whether for profit, reward or otherwise) any activity or business which is or may be in
competition directly or indirectly with the business referred to in the Prospectus carried
on or contemplated to be carried on by any member of our Group from time to time
(the “Restricted Business"). The restricted period (“'Restricted Period”) is the period
during which (i) the Shares remain listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange; (ii)
the relevant Controlling Shareholder and his/its associate holds an equity interest in the
Company; and (iii) the relevant Controlling Shareholder and/or his/its associates jointly or
severally are entitled to exercise or control the exercise of not less than 30% in aggregate

of the voting power at general meetings of the Company.
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The Controlling Shareholders have further undertaken to procure that, during the
Restricted Period, any business investment or other commercial opportunity which
directly or indirectly competes, or may lead to competition with the Restricted Business
(the “New Opportunities”) given, identified or offered to him/it and/or any of his/its
associates (other than any members of the Group) (the “Offeror”) is first referred to the
Company in the following manner: (a) each of our Controlling Shareholders is required
to, and shall procure his or its associates (other than members of our Group) to, refer,
or to procure the referral of, the New Opportunities to the Company, and shall give
written notice to the Company of any New Opportunities containing all information
reasonably necessary for the Company; and (b) the Offeror will be entitled to pursue
the New Opportunities only if (i) the Offeror has received a notice from the Company
declining the New Opportunities and confirming that such New Opportunities would not
constitute competition with the core business of the Company, or (ii) the Offeror has
not received such notice from us within 10 business days from the Company's receipt
of the Offer Notice. Upon receipt of the Offer Notice, the Company shall seek opinions
and decisions from the independent non-executive Directors who do not have a material

interest in the matter.

The Company has received confirmations from the Controlling Shareholders confirming
their compliance with the Non-Competition Undertaking for disclosure in this annual
report during the Relevant Period. The independent non-executive Directors have also
reviewed their compliance with the Non-Competition Undertaking during the Relevant

Period.

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST
EMOLUMENTS

Particulars of the Directors, five highest paid individuals and key management personnel
of the Group, paid by the Company for FY2013 are set out in notes 7, 8 and 34 to
the financial statements and the emolument policy of the Company is set out in the

Corporate Governance Report on pages 65 to 82 of this annual report.

No Director has waived or has agreed to waive any emoluments during FY2013,

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

During FY2013, none of the Directors or their respective associates (as defined in the
Listing Rules) had any interest in any business which were in competition or were likely to

compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at 3| December 2013, the interests and short positions of the Directors in the Shares,

underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations

(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) as

notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part

XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which he/she is taken or deemed

to have under such provisions of the SFO), or as recorded in the register maintained by

the Company under section 352 of the SFO, or as notified to the Company and the Stock

Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed

Issuers (the “Model Code”) contained in the Listing Rules, were as follows:

Long position in the Shares and Underlying Shares of the Company

EERTIETHABNESER
ROIBEI12A31H - EERARDAHEEM
HEEZB(EEREFRNERA(TESRE
BRG1)EXVE)ERRG - ARG RESFT
BERBERRBAEKRIEXVHET RSN E
BHEARRARBEBHRIANERIAE (B
REZEZRBPEFEINABGEXMEERRA
BENERRAR)  IBBEEFRPERIIE
3EMATERE LN ZIGATIEE LM AR E
mIOAR - SRR ERBIAMEN ETETA
EREMEFRISGNEETR(RETFA]E
HMeRRARBEBHRIMNERIXENT

\\

+

RAXARGREBRONER

Approximate
percentage of
the Company's
total issued

share capital®

BELT

Corporate Personal BET
Name of Directors ~ Class of Shares interest interest Share Options Family interest Total ARAH
EBfs R&EHR NARR fBAER RRE FERR aft CRER DA
Wong Choihing® Ordinary Shares/Share option 2,070,000,000" — 1,600,000¢ — 2,081,600,000 51.65%
IBAe LRR/BhE
Huang Dehong@ Ordinary Shares/Share option 2,070,000,000 — 4,000,000 — 2,074,000,000 5146%
AR LRR /B
Yang Xianzu Share option — — 300,000 — 300,000 001%
BE BIRE
Wang Lianzhou Share option — — 3000000 — 300,000 001%
TEM BIRE
Lam, Chi Yuen Nelson  Share option — — 300,000 — 300,000 001%
HEE e
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Notes:

These Shares are held by Most Trend. The entire issued share capital of Most Trend is
wholly-owned by the Ultimate Controlling Shareholders. By virtue of an acting-in-concert
declaration executed by the Ultimate Controlling Shareholders on 22 March 2013, the
Ultimate Controlling Shareholders, among other things, confirmed that since | January
2010, they have been operating the Group collectively and would through discussions reach
consensus among themselves before reaching any commercial decisions on an unanimous
basis. As such, the Ultimate Controlling Shareholders are deemed to be interested in the

2,070,000,000 Shares of the Company through Most Trend.

Mr. Wong Choihing is one of the Ultimate Controlling Shareholders and an executive
Director. Mr. Huang Dehong is one of the Ultimate Controlling Shareholders and an

executive Director.

This represents the Options granted pursuant to the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme. Details
of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme are set out in the section headed "Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme” on pages 49 to 51 of this annual report.

The percentage shareholding is calculated on the basis of 4,029,950,000 Shares issued as at
31 December 2013.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2013, to the knowledge of the Board, none

of the Directors or chief executive of the Company had any interests or short positions

in the Shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated

corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were required to be: (i)

notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part

XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which the Directors and chief

executive were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); (i) recorded

in the register kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO; or (iii) notified

to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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INTERESTS OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2013, according to the register of members kept by the Company
pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO and so far as is known to, or can be ascertained after
reasonable enquiry by the Directors, the following person/entity (other than the Directors
or chief executives of the Company) had an interest or short position in the Shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which would fall to be disclosed to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or be directly
and indirectly interested in 5% or more of the nominal value of any class of share capital

carrying rights to vote on all circumstances at general meetings of the Company:
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Approximate
percentage of the
Company'’s total

issued share capital®”

ERRF
Name Nature of interest Number of Shares BRITARKH
=L BEaitE BROEE BREDLO
Most Trend Beneficial owner 2,070,000,000 51.37%
R ERBEBA
Mr. Wang Jianli Interest in controlled corporation® 2,070,000,000 51.37%
TREMEE R EEER O
Mr. Wang Quanguang Interest in controlled corporation® 2,070,000,000 51.37%
Iakr4t R EEER O
Mr. Wang Dewen Interest in controlled corporation® 2,070,000,000 51.37%
IEXEE R EEER O
Mr. Wang Desheng Interest in controlled corporation® 2,070,000,000 51.37%
FRmrst R EEER O
Mr. Wang Dekai Interest in controlled corporation® 2,070,000,000 51.37%
IRRALE R EEER
Mr. Wong Sheungtak Interest in controlled corporation® 2,070,000,000 51.37%
TEREE R EEER
Top Amuse Holdings Limited Beneficial owner 600,000,000 14.89%
HEZERERAT ERBEBEA
Hony Capital Fund 2008, L.P. Interest in controlled corporation® 600,000,000 14.89%
R EEER O
Hony Capital Fund 2008 GP, LP. Interest in controlled corporation® 600,000,000 14.89%
R EEER O
Hony Capital Fund 2008 GP Limited Interest in controlled corporation® 600,000,000 14.89%
R EEER O
Hony Capital Management Limited Interest in controlled corporation® 600,000,000 14.89%
R EEER ©
Hony Managing Partners Limited Interest in controlled corporation” 600,000,000 14.89%
R EEER
Mr. Zhao John Huan Interest in controlled corporation® 600,000,000 14.89%
jicd bt R EEER
Eminent Ascend Beneficial owner 300,000,000 7.44%
RS ERBEBA
Mr. Wong Kim Interest in controlled corporation® 300,000,000 7.44%
B p ik R EEER O
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Notes:

The percentage shareholding is calculated on the basis of 4,029,950,000 Shares issued as at
31 December 2013.

These Shares are held by Most Trend. The entire issued share capital of Most Trend is
wholly-owned by the Ultimate Controlling Shareholders. By virtue of an acting-in-concert
declaration executed by the Ultimate Controlling Shareholders on 22 March 2013, the
Ultimate Controlling Shareholders, among other things, confirmed that since | January
2010, they have been operating the Group collectively and would through discussions reach
consensus among themselves before reaching any commercial decisions on an unanimous
basis. As such, the Ultimate Controlling Shareholders together control 51.37% interest in the
issued share capital of the Company through Most Trend.

Top Amuse Holdings Limited (“Top Amuse”) is wholly-owned by Hony Capital Fund 2008,
L.P, hence Hony Capital Fund 2008, L.P. is deemed to be interested in 600,000,000 Shares
held by Top Amuse.

Hony Capital Fund 2008, L.P. is wholly-owned by Hony Capital Fund 2008, GP, L.P, hence
Hony Capital Fund 2008, GP, L.P. is deemed to be interested in 600,000,000 Shares held by
Top Amuse.

Hony Capital Fund 2008, GP, L.P. is wholly-owned by Hony Capital Fund 2008 GP Limited,
hence Hony Capital Fund 2008 GP Limited is deemed to be interested in 600,000,000 Shares
held by Top Amuse.

Hony Capital Fund 2008 GP Limited is wholly-owned by Hony Capital Management Limited,
hence Hony Capital Management Limited is deemed to be interested in 600,000,000 Shares
held by Top Amuse.

Hony Managing Partners Limited hold 80% of the shares of Hony Capital Management
Limited, hence Hony Managing Partners Limited is deemed to be interested in 600,000,000
Shares held by Top Amuse.

Hony Managing Partners Limited is wholly-owned by Mr. Zhao John Huan, hence Mr. Zhao
John Huan is deemed to be interested in 600,000,000 Shares held by Top Amuse.

Eminent Ascend is wholly-owned by Mr. Wong Kim, hence Mr. Wong Kim is deemed to be
interested in 300,000,000 Shares held by Eminent Ascend.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2013, to the knowledge of the Directors, no
other person (other than a Director or chief executive of the Company) had, or were
deemed or taken to have interest or short position in the Shares or underlying Shares
which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and
3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register kept by the Company
pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBT SECURITIES

Save as disclosed in the sections headed “Directors” and Chief Executive’s Interests in
Securities” and "Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme” in this annual report and in note 28 to
the financial statements, at no time during the year under review was the Company or any
of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors or chief executives
of the Company (including their spouses or children under 18 years of age) to acquire
benefits by means of acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other

body corporate.

CONNECTED TRANSACTION

The Board confirmed that none of the related party transactions set out in note 34 to
the financial statements constituted non-exempt connected transactions or continuing
connected transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. During the Relevant
Period, the Group had not entered into any connected transactions or continuing
connected transactions which are required to be disclosed in this annual report pursuant

to the Listing Rules.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, redeemed or sold any of

the Company's listed securities during the Relevant Period.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles, or the laws of Cayman
Islands being the jurisdiction in which the Company is incorporated under which would

oblige the Company to offer new Shares on a pro-rata basis to existing Shareholders.
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BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Details of the bank loans and other borrowings of the Group as at 31 December 2013

are set out in note 23 to the financial statements.

USE OF NET PROCEEDS FROM INITIAL PUBLIC OFFERING

The net proceeds (after deduction of the related issuance expenses) from the Global
Offering (as defined in the Prospectus) and the partial exercise of the over-allotment
options on 27 November 2013 amounted to approximately HK$1,568.0 million
(equivalent to approximately RMBI,232.7 million), which are intended to be applied in
accordance with the intended use of proceeds set out in the section headed “Future Plans

and Use of Proceeds” in the Prospectus.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Save as disclosed in this annual report, the Board is of the opinion that the Company had
complied with the code provisions as set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the
“CG Code") contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules during the Relevant Period.
Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the Company are set out in the

Corporate Governance Report on pages 65 to 82 of this annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors at the latest practicable date prior to the issue of this annual
report, the Company has maintained the public float of the issued shares of the Company

as required under the Listing Rules.
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CLOSURE OF THE REGISTER OF MEMBERS

(@)  For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the AGM

The register of members of the Company will be closed from 8 May 2014 to
I3 May 2014, both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of Shares will
be effected. In order to determine the identity of members who are entitled to
attend and vote at the AGM, all share transfer documents accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company's share registrar,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited (“Computershare”) at Shops
|712—1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong
Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on 7 May 2014.

(b)  For determining the entitlement to the Proposed Final Dividend
The register of members of the Company will be closed from 19 May 2014 to 21
May 2014, both days inclusive. In order to qualify for the Proposed Final Dividend,
all completed transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates must
be lodged for registration with Computershare at Shops 1712—1716, 17th Floor,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong, not later than 4:30
p.m.on 16 May 2014.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the last four
years is set out on pages 44 to 45 of this annual report. This summary does not form part

of the audited consolidated financial statements.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

During FY2013, no contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole

or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or existed.
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NON-ADJUSTMENT EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

The non-adjustment event after the end of the reporting period is set out in note 35 to

the financial statements.

AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2013 have been audited by KPMG who were appointed as auditors of the Company since
the Listing.

KPMG will retire at the forthcoming AGM and a resolution for the reappointment of
KPMG as auditors of the Company will be proposed at the AGM.

For and on behalf of the Board
WONG CHOIHING

Chairman & Executive Director

Hong Kong, 24 March 2014
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Board is pleased to present this corporate governance report in the annual report of

the Company for the Relevant Period.

The Company recognizes the value and importance of achieving high standard of
corporate governance to enhance the corporate performance accountability and is
committed to doing so. The Board is also committed to the principles of the CG Code.
Save and except for the deviation disclosed in this annual report, the Directors are of the
opinion that the Company has complied with the provisions set out in the CG Code since
the Listing Date and up to the date of this annual report. The Company will continue to
review and enhance its corporate governance practice to ensure compliance with the CG

Code.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Board Composition

The Board currently comprises six Directors, including two executive Directors, one non-
executive Director and three independent non-executive Directors. The brief biographical
details of the Directors are set out in the section headed “Biographical Details of the
Directors and Senior Management” on pages 83 to 92 of this annual report. The overall
management and supervision of the Company's operation and the function of formulating

overall business strategies were vested in the Board.

During the Relevant Period and up to the date of this annual report, the Board has met
the requirements of Rules 3.10 and 3.10A of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment
of at least three independent non-executive Directors with at least one independent non-
executive director possessing appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or
related financial management expertise and the requirement that the independent non-

executive Directors represent at least one-third of the Board.
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The Company has received annual confirmation from each independent non-executive
Director of his independence pursuant to the requirements of the Listing Rules. The
Company considers that each of the independent non-executive Directors to be
independent in accordance with the independence guidelines as set out in the Listing

Rules.

All Directors, including independent non-executive Directors, have brought a wide
spectrum of valuable business experience, knowledge and professionalism to the Board
for its efficient and effective functioning. Independent non-executive Directors are invited
to serve on the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination

Committee.

The CG Code requires Directors to disclose to the Company, the number and nature of
offices held in public companies or organizations and other significant commitments, as
well as their identity and the time involved. The Directors have agreed to disclose their

commitments to the Company in a timely manner.

ROLE AND FUNCTION AND DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

The Board is responsible for and has general powers for the management and conduct
of the business of the Company. It delegates day to day management of the Company to
the executive Directors and the senior management of the Company, within the control
and the authority framework set by the Board. This delegated functions and responsibilities

are periodically reviewed by the Board.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Board reserves for its decision on all major matters of the Company, including
approval and monitoring of all policy matters, overall strategies and budgets, internal
control and risk management systems, material transactions (in particular those that
may involve conflict of interests), financial information, appointment of Directors and
other significant financial and operational matters. Directors could have recourse to seek
independent professional advice in performing their duties at the Company's expense
and are encouraged to access and to consult with the Company's senior management

independently.

In addition, the Board has also delegated to the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee various responsibilities as set out in their
respective terms of reference. Further details of these committees are set out in this

annual report.

All Directors shall ensure that they carry out duties in good faith, in compliance with
applicable laws and regulations, and in the interest of the Company and its shareholders at

all times.

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance to indemnify its Directors in

respect of legal actions against them.

Relationship between Directors

Save that Mr. Wong Choihing is the uncle of Mr. Huang Dehong, there are no financial,

business, family or other material relationships among the members of the Board.
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CHANGES IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS

The changes in the information of the Directors since the Listing Date and up to the date

of this annual report are set out below pursuant to Rule 13.51(B)(I) of the Listing Rules:

Mr. Lam, Chi Yuen Nelson, our independent non-executive Director, retired from his role

as the president of the Society of Chinese Accountants and Auditors in December 201 3.

Other than as disclosed above, there is no information required to be disclosed pursuant
to Rule 13.51B(I) of the Listing Rules.

INDUCTION AND CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Each appointed Director is provided with necessary induction and information to ensure
that he has a proper understanding of the Company's operations and businesses as well
as his responsibilities under relevant statues, laws, rules and regulations. According to the
records of the Company, all Directors attend training sessions on duties and obligations
of directors of companies listed on the Stock Exchange, including connected transactions
and corporate governance, which was conducted by the Company's legal advisers as to
Hong Kong laws. The Company also provided periodic legal updates and developments
on the Listing Rules, the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, news updates from the Stock
Exchange and Securities & Futures Commission of Hong Kong and other relevant legal
and regulatory requirements to all of the Directors, as well as regular updates on the
Company's performance, position and prospects to enable the Board as a whole and each

Director to discharge their duties.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code set forth in Appendix |0 of the Listing Rules
as a code of conduct of the Company for Directors’ securities transactions. Having made
specific enquiry of all Directors, the Directors have complied with the required standard
set out in the Model Code during the Relevant Period. Employees who are, or likely to be,
in possession of unpublished inside information in relation to the Company or its Shares

are prohibited from dealing in Shares during the black-out period.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Save as disclosed below, the Board is of opinion that the Company had complied with the
code provisions as set out in the CG Code contained in Appendix |4 to the Listing Rules
during the Relevant Period.

CODE PROVISION A2.1

Under the code provision A.2.| of the CG Code, the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer should be separate and performed by different individuals. Under the
current organization structure of the Company, Mr. Wong Choihing is the chairman
("Chairman”) and chief executive officer (“CEQ") of the Company. With extensive
experience in the property industry, the Board considers that vesting the roles of
Chairman and CEO in the same person is beneficial to the business prospects and
management of the Group. The balance of power and authority is ensured by the
operation of the senior management and the Board, which comprise experienced and
high caliber individuals. The Board currently comprises two executive Directors, one non-
executive Director and three independent non-executive Directors and therefore has a
fairly strong independence element in its composition. The Group nevertheless will review

the structure from time to time in light of the prevailing circumstances.

CODE PROVISION A.2.7

Code provision of A2.7 of the CG Code requires the chairman to hold meetings at least
annually with the non-executive directors (including independent non-executive directors)
without the executive directors present. As Mr. Wong Choihing, the Chairman, is also
an executive Director, the Company has deviated from Code provision A.2.7 of the CG

Code as it is not applicable.
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APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into service contract with the Company for
a term of three years commencing from 27 September 2013 and may be terminated
in accordance with the respective terms of the service agreements. The non-executive
Director and each of the independent non-executive Directors has entered into a letter of
appointment with the Company on 27 September 2013 and 20 March 2013 respectively,
for a term of three vears, and may be terminated in accordance with the respective terms

of the service agreements.

None of the Directors has a service agreement which is not determinable by the Group

within one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

In accordance with article 162 and 16.3 of the Articles of Association, any Director
appointed by the Board or by an ordinary resolution either to fill a casual vacancy or as
an addition to the Board, shall hold office only until the following general meeting of the
Company and shall then be eligible for re-election at that meeting. Accordingly, Mr. Wong
Choihing (executive Director), Mr. Huang Dehong (executive Director), Mr. Yuan Bing
(non-executive Director), Mr. Yang Xianzu (independent non-executive Director), Mr.
Wang Lianzhou (independent non-executive Director) and Mr. Lam, Chi Yuen Nelson

(independent non-executive Director), shall be eligible for re-election at the AGM.

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and removal of Directors are
set out in the Articles. The Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing the Board
composition and recommending to the Board on the appointment or reappointment of

Directors and succession planning for the Directors, in particular the Chairman and CEO.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

BOARD MEETINGS

The Company will adopt the practice of holding board meetings for at least four times
a year at approximately quarterly intervals pursuant to code provision A.l.l of the CG
Code. Notice of not less than fourteen days are given for all regular board meetings to
provide all Directors with an opportunity to attend and include matters in the agenda for

a regular meeting pursuant to code provision A.1.3 of the CG Code.

All Directors are provided with agenda and relevant information related to the agenda in
advance before the meeting. They can access to the senior management and the company
secretary of the Company at all times and, upon reasonable request, seek independent

professional advice at the Company's expense.

Minutes of the meetings are kept by the Company Secretary with copies circulated to
all Directors for information and records. Minutes of the board meetings and committee
meetings record sufficient details of the matters considered by the Board and the
committees and the decisions reached, including any concerns raised by the Directors.
Draft minutes of each board meeting and committee meeting are sent to the Directors
for comments within a reasonable time after the date on which the meeting is held. The

minutes of the board meetings are open for inspection by the Directors.

As the Company was listed on the Stock Exchange on 31 October 2013, no Board
meeting or general meeting was held during the Relevant Period. However, subsequent
to the end of the Relevant Period and up to the date of this annual report, one Board
meeting was held on 24 March 2014 to review and approve the Group's financial results
for FY2013, the Proposed Final Dividend and this annual report. The attendance of the

Directors at the board meeting was as follows:
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Number of
Directors attendance
BE=x HERY
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. Wong Choihing THEELE I/1
Mr. Huang Dehong BEREE 1/
Non-executive Director FHTES
Mr. Yuan Bing REXE 11
Independent non-executive Director BYFHITES
Mr. Yang Xianzu BEREE 11
Mr. Wang Lianzhou FEMEE I/1
Mr. Lam, Chi Yuen Nelson MWEERLE 1/l
BOARD COMMITTEES EEZREE

The Board has established three committees, namely, the Audit Committee, the ExedU-%Z8e AERZEE ¥
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee, to handle particular MWEEERREZEE BERBESERA
responsibilities of the Board and the Company's affairs. All board committees of the ARNEEER - ARAIMBEZZESHF]
Company are established with defined written terms of reference which have been FRARATNEORESE HUBESES
uploaded to the website of the Stock Exchange and that of the Company, and are ELHEFBEMRARARAMEY - WEBR
provided with sufficient resources to discharge their duties. HEMERABITERE
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an audit committee (the “Audit Committee”) on 27 September
2013 with written terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code and Corporate
Governance Report as set out in Appendix |4 to the Listing Rules and the roles and the
responsibilities delegated to the Audit Committee by the Board. The primary duties of the
Audit Committee are to review the financial information of the Company, to oversee the
financial reporting process and internal control system of our Group, to oversee the audit
process, to make recommendation on the appointment, re-appointment and removal of

external auditor and perform other duties and responsibilities assigned by the Board.

The Audit Committee consists of two independent non-executive Directors and one
non-executive Director. The three members are Mr. Lam, Chi Yuen Nelson, the chairman
of the Audit Committee and an independent non-executive Director, Mr. Yang Xianzu,
an independent non-executive Director, and Mr. Yuan Bing, the non-executive Director.
No Audit Committee meeting was held during the Relevant Period. Subsequent to the
end of the Relevant Period and up to the date of this annual report, one meeting of
the Audit Committee was held on 24 March 2014 to, among other matters, (1) review
and recommend the annual results to the Board for approval; (2) review the Group's
financial controls, internal control and risk management systems; (3) review the Group's
financial and accounting policies and practices; (4) review and consider the whistleblowing
policy and system; (5) review the external auditor's independence and objectivity and
effectiveness of the audit process; and (6) review the terms of reference of Audit

Committee. The attendance of the Directors at the Audit Committee meetings was as
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Number of
Directors attendance
= HERE
Mr. Lam, Chi Yuen Nelson (chairman) WEREEE(FE) I/1
Mr. Yuan Bing RERHE 11
Mr. Yang Xianzu BEREE I/1

From 2014 onwards, the Audit Committee will hold meetings at least twice a year.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a remuneration committee (the “"Remuneration Committee”)
on 27 September 2013 with written terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code
and Corporate Governance Report as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules and the
roles and the responsibilities delegated to the Remuneration Committee by the Board.
The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are to make recommendations to
the policy and structure of the remuneration for the Directors and senior management
and to review and approve the compensation payable to the Directors and senior

management.

The Remuneration Committee comprises two independent non-executive Directors
and one executive Director. The three members are Mr. Wang Lianzhou, the chairman
of the Remuneration Committee and an independent non-executive Director, Mr. Lam,
Chi Yuen Nelson, an independent non-executive Director, and Mr. Wong Choihing, an
executive Director. No Remuneration Committee meeting was held during the Relevant
Period. However, subsequent to the end of the Relevant Period and up to the date of this
annual report, one meeting of the Remuneration Committee was held on 24 March 2014
to, among other matters, (1) determine the policy for the remuneration of the Directors
and senior management; (2) assess performance of executive Directors; (3) approve the
terms of executive Directors’ service contracts; and (4) make recommendations to the
Board on the remuneration packages of individual executive Directors, non-executive
Directors and senior management. The attendance of the Directors at the Remuneration

Committee meeting was as follows:
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Number of
Directors attendance
= R
Mr. Wang Lianzhou (chairman) FEMEE(FE) 11
Mr. Wong Choihing FTHEELE /1
Mr. Lam, Chi Yuen Nelson MEREE 1

From 2014 onwards, the Remuneration Committee will hold meetings at least once a

year.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The primary goal of the Group's remuneration policy for executive Directors is to enable
the Company to retain and motivate executive Directors by linking their compensation
with their individual performance. The remuneration package includes basic salary,
performance and/or discretional bonus, participation in the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
and other benefits. Remuneration of the non-executive Director includes mainly the
director’s fee which is a matter for the Board to decide by reference to the duties and
responsibilities of the non-executive Director. Remuneration of the independent non-
executive Directors includes the director’s fee which is determined by the Board based
on the duties and responsibilities of independent non-executive Directors and their

participation in the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme.

The emoluments of each Director for FY2013 are set out in note 7 to the financial

statements.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”) on
27 September 2013 with written terms of reference in compliance with the requirements
of the CG Code and Corporate Governance Report as set out in the Appendix 14
to the Listing Rules and the roles and the responsibilities delegated to the Nomination
Committee by the Board. The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to
review the structure, size and composition of the Board and make recommendations to
the Board on the appointment and removal of Directors. In the nomination procedures,
the Nomination Committee makes reference to criteria including reputation of candidates

for integrity, accomplishment and experience, professional and educational background.

The Nomination Committee comprises two independent non-executive Directors and
one executive Director. The three members are Mr. Yang Xianzu, the chairman of the
Nomination Committee and an independent non-executive Director, Mr. Wang Lianzhou,

an independent non-executive Director, and Mr. Wong Choihing, an executive Director.
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No Nomination Committee meeting was held during the Relevant Period. However, from
the end of the Relevant Period and up to the date of this annual report, one meeting of
the Nomination Committee was held on 24 March 2014 to, among other matters, (1)
review the structure, size and composition of the Board and to consider and approve the
diversity policy of the Board; (2) assess the independence of independent non-executive
Directors; (3) review, consider and approve the nomination policy; and (4) make
recommendations to the Board on the re-appointment of Directors. The attendance of

the Directors at the Nomination Committee meeting was as follows:
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CEENEREZECERNERMT :

Number of

attendance

HERE

Directors

Bz

Mr. Yang Xianzu (chairman) SEREE(LE)
Mr. Wong Choihing THELE

Mr. Wang Lianzhou FEMEE

From 2014 onwards, the Nomination Committee will hold at least once a year.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY
The Board has adopted a board diversity policy with effect from 24 March 2014 and

discussed all measurable objectives set for implementing the policy. The Company
recognises and embraces the benefits of having a diverse Board with a view to enhancing
its effectiveness and achieving a high standard of corporate governance. It endeavours
to ensure that the Board has a balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives
appropriate to the requirements of the Company's business. Selection of candidates will
be based on a range of diversity perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, experience (professional or otherwise), talents, skills,
knowledge, length of service and other qualities of Directors. The ultimate decision of all
Board appointments should be based on meritocracy and the likely contributions that the

selected candidates will bring to the Board.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

STRATEGIC REVIEW COMMITTEE

The Company established a strategic review committee (the “Strategic Review
Committee”) in September 2013, as an additional corporate governance measure to
evaluate any potential investment opportunities in Harbin presented to the Group. The
Committee consists of one non-executive Director and three independent non-executive

Directors.

The Strategic Review Committee is aware of the restrictions under the non-competition
undertaking (“Harbin NCU") entered into between Mr. Wong Choihing and Mr. Wang
Dewen in favour of Harbin China South City Company Limited in 2012. The duties of the
Strategic Review Committee include reviewing and assessing any investment opportunities
in Harbin that are presented to the Company, at least once every six months, and
identifying the steps to be taken in respect of such opportunities. Neither Mr. Wong
Choihing nor Mr. Wang Dewen will participate in any review, assessment or decisions

made by the Strategic Review Committee.

The Strategic Review Committee met on 24 March 2014, and concluded that there were

no potential investment opportunities in Harbin for the Group.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance duties including:

(8)  to develop and review the Company's policies and practices on corporate

governance and make recommendations to the Board;

(b)  to review and monitor the training and continuous professional development of

Directors and senior management;

(c)  to review and monitor the Company's policies and practices on compliance with

legal and regulatory requirements;

(d)  to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance manual (if

any) applicable to employees and Directors;

(e) to develop, review and monitor the implementation of the shareholders’
communication policy to ensure its effectiveness, and make recommendation to the

Board where appropriate to enhance shareholders' relationship with the Company; and

(e)  to review the Company's compliance with Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules (the
CG Code and Corporate Governance Report).

AN A g
BREBRSE

FHBEEES

ARAIRWIBFIARURKEEESZES([&K
MEEZEE])  ERBINEE AR
EAREBERERBBEUSNERELRERS -
FEEM—RFRTEER-EBUFNITE

REEEZRGIRITRAARERTRIL
ER0NFREBEZEEHERAFAXE

AR AR AGE ([ RERERHRFE
#HDOBH - RBEEZEENBEBREL
EHERETFALAABERRENEMRE

%‘5&%*?9\%*\1%&% —R Iﬁﬁ*ﬁfﬂ&

%%%ﬁ%%@ W&H%E ﬁ%ﬂﬁ

%%%@%E@ 0I4E3F 4B EHEE -
72 RSB EF A BEREKE -

(@) HERBRARANLGXEAHRRE
RITAEFSRNER

d #E BERREFEERESNRTE
BIkaRFMmmE)

(e) HE FERREFERRBARKROAN
BT R BB B EA L E RBRRMN
{REVEE -

H BEAR

RIS LA RIM SR+ (R %
BaTAREEER

ﬁ:l )E"]l|EI>R °

HYDOO INTERNATIONAL HOLDING LIMITED £ ZEE B ZERER AT

Annual Report 2013 £ 3§

77



78

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
LREARE

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FINANCIAL
REPORTING IN RESPECT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial statements for
FY2013 which give a true and fair view of the affairs of the Company and the Group and
of the Group's results and cash flows. The Directors also acknowledge their responsibilities

to ensure that the financial statements of the Group are published in a timely manner.

The management has provided to the Board such explanation and information as are
necessary to enable the Board to carry out an informed assessment of the Company's
consolidated financial statements, which are put to the Board for approval. The Company
provides all members of the Board with updates on Company's performance, positions

and prospects.

The Directors were not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the Group's ability to continue as a going

concern.

The statement by the auditor of the Company regarding their reporting responsibilities
on the consolidated financial statements of the Company is set out in the Independent

Auditor's Report on pages 93 to 94 of this annual report.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board is responsible for the internal control of the Group and for reviewing its
effectiveness. A defined management structure with specified limits of authority and
responsibilities is developed for safeguarding assets against unauthorized use or disposition,
the maintenance of proper accounting records for the provision of reliable financial
information for internal use or for publications and the compliance of applicable laws, rules

and regulations.

An internal audit department has been established to perform regular financial and
operational reviews and recommend necessary actions to the relevant management.
The works carried out by the internal audit department ensure the intemnal controls are
in place and function properly as intended. The results of the internal audit and reviews
are reported to the executive Directors and the Audit Committee of the Company. The
Directors have reviewed the effectiveness of the Group's internal control system and are
satisfied with the adequacy of the system of internal control of the Group for the year

under review.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

For the annual review on the internal controls, the Audit Committee considered the
internal control report was satisfied as to effectiveness of the Group's internal control
system. There were no matters of material concemn relating to financial, operational or
compliance controls. The Board is satisfied with the adequacy of the system of the internal

control of the Group during the year under review.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION
The Group's independent auditors are KPMG. For FY2013, the remuneration paid and
payable by the Group to the independent auditors in respect of audit and non-audit

services provided by them were as follows:

Audit and review services(" BEGNEERKO
Other services?® HAt R @
Notes:

(1) Including IPO reporting accountant and statutory audit and review service fee.

(2)  Other services include tax advisory and interal control review services.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Mok, Mun Lan Linda of Hongkong Managers and Secretaries Limited, an external
service provider, has been engaged by the Company as the company secretary. The
primary corporate contact person at the Company is Mr. Wong Choihing, the Chairman
and CEO, and Ms. Mok, Mun Lan Linda, company secretary of the Company.

Since the Listing Date and up to the date of this annual report, Ms. Mok, Mun Lan Linda
has undertaken not less than 15 hours of relevant professional training respectively in

compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

COMPLIANCE ADVISOR

Since the Listing, the Company has appointed Guotai Junan Capital Limited as the
compliance adviser of the Company to provide guidance and opinion to us in respect of
the compliance with the Listing Rules and other regulations and practice governing listed

issuers in Hong Kong.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTOR
RELATIONSHIP

The Company believes that effective communication with Shareholders and other
investment community is essential. Since the Listing Date, the executive Directors,
chief financial officer and head of investor relations of the Group held regular briefings,
press conferences and analysts meetings of annual results, attended investor forums and
participated in roadshows and conducted meetings with the institutional investors and
financial analysts in China, Hong Kong and overseas countries to keep them abreast of the

Group's business and development. Investors can also communicate with the Company

through email at in@hydoo.com.cn.

The Shareholders’ meeting provides a useful forum for the Shareholders to exchange
views with the Board. The Directors and the chief financial officer of the Group will attend
the Shareholders’ meetings to answer the questions raised by the Shareholders. Published
documents together with the latest corporate information and news are available on the

Company's website at www.hydoo.com.cn.
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Shareholders’ Rights
Convening of extraordinary general meeting

Besides the request of the Board, the extraordinary general meeting shall also be

convened through the following measures:

(@)  on the written requisition of any two or more Shareholders who hold not less than
one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company which carries the right of voting
at general meetings of the Company as at the date of deposit of the requisition of
the Company deposited at the principal office of the Company in Hong Kong or, in
the event the Company ceases to have such a principal office, the registered office

specifying the objects of the meeting and signed by such shareholders;

(b)  on the written requisition of any one shareholder of the Company which is a
recognized clearing house (or its nominee(s)) who holds not less than one-tenth
of the paid up capital of the Company which carries the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company as at the date of deposit deposited at the principal office
of the Company in Hong Kong or, in the event the Company ceases to have such
a principal office, the registered office specifying the objects of the meeting and

signed by the shareholder.

AN A g
BREBRSE

BRRER

BHBRBIAE

FEFSERI - RABB T AR ARBR
BRIAS

@) EUREAMEIAEHFEIIRtAZ

—MEREARARBRRAEG LRRN
ARBABEGRANBERNEERKMA
W BERRBZXREARANEENT
ZEFUHA(HARRITBERELLIR
MER)EMM IR - EFFIHAENT
BHEFH TAXSBEREE

AR —2ERRUEEMLFTE T
PRTDZ M FEARARBBRA
g ERRNARAEHBAN AR AR
RFEARBANERZLMAR A
BERBREALARBENIEER
WER(HARAITBREZLIEMRSF
R)EMPEER - EFFIHAENTER
FFH THARSERRE

HYDOO INTERNATIONAL HOLDING LIMITED £ ZEE B ZERER AT

Annual Report 2013 £ 3§

81



82

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
LREARE

Putting forward proposals

Shareholders may put forward proposals for consideration at a general meeting according
to the applicable laws and the Articles. If a Shareholder, who is entitled to attend and vote
at the relevant general meeting, wishes to nominate a person (not being the nominating
Shareholder) to stand for election as a Director, he or she should give to the secretary
of the Company notice in writing of the intention to propose a person for election as a
Director and notice in writing by that person of his or her willingness to be so elected,
commencing no earlier than the day after the dispatch of the notice of the relevant
general meeting and ending no later than seven days prior to the date of such general

meeting.

As regards proposing a person for election as a Director, the procedures are available on

the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders who intend to put forward their enquiries about the Company to the Board
could send their enquiries to the headquarters of the Company in Shenzhen at 30/F, Block

A, East Pacific International Center, 7888 Shennan Boulevard, Futian District, Shenzhen

PRC (email address: ir@hydoo.com.cn).

CHANGE IN CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During FY2013, there were no significant changes in the constitutional documents of the

Company.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wong Choihing (5 #), aged 61, is the Chairman, CEO and executive Director.
Mr. Wong founded the Group and was appointed as a Director in October 2010, and
is primarily responsible for formulating the overall development and strategic plans of
our Group as well as overseeing project planning, business and operations management
of our Group. Mr. Wong has approximately |8 years of experience in the trade center
development and operations industry. Mr. Wong has been the director of Hongkong
Hydoo Group Investment Company Limited (“Hydoo HK") since January 2002 and
chairman and president of Hydoo HK since October 2002 and the supervisor of Jining
Hydoo Logistics Center Development Company Limited since February 2010. From
1995 to 2010, Mr. Wong together with his siblings and their family have developed 19
trade center projects in seven provinces in China. Mr. Wong currently holds positions in
various organizations and associations, and has won numerous awards including: member
of the I'1th and 12th National Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference (HIFE +—EME+_EZEZEE); vice president of China Society
for Promotion of the Guangcai Program (R BIX ¥ FE(THES); standing committee
member of All-China Federation of Industry & Commerce (FXEZ2E T %HE
®); founding president of Hong Kong China Chamber of Commerce (B/8F BRI &);
permanent honorary president of Federation of Hong Kong Shenzhen Association (& 75
RYIALE 42 E)Y; vice chairman of Federation of Industry and Commerce of fiangxi (T 7
BTREEBAE), standing vice president of The Second Council Committee of Jiangxi
Businessmen's Alliance in China (IS HEM A A EFE _/EEES). Mr. Wong is the

uncle of Mr. Huang Dehong, the executive Director of our Company.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERGREEERBE

Mr. Huang Dehong (F7£7%), aged 35, is our executive Director. He was appointed
as executive Director in March 2013 and is primarily responsible for the day to day
management of the business of our Group. Mr. Huang has seven years of experience
in the trade center development and operations industry. He has been the director of
Ningxiang Hydoo Guangcai Trade Center Development Company Limited since July
2009, the general manager of Ningxiang Hydoo Guangcai Trade Center Development
Company Limited since December 2010 and the director and general manager of
Wuzhou Hydoo Commercial and Trade Center Development Company Limited since
April 2012. He was also the deputy general manager of Ningxiang Hydoo Guangcai Trade
Center Development Company Limited from July 2009 to December 2010. From January
2006 to June 2009, he served as the executive deputy general manager of Shuozhou
Howard Commercial and Trade Center Development Company Limited (Ji/ /ZE
5ESREBM AT, and was responsible for assisting the general manager with the
company's operations and management. Mr. Huang graduated from Sun Yat-sen University
with a diploma in law in June 1998. Mr. Huang is the nephew of Mr. Wong Choihing, the

executive Director, Chairman and CEO of the Company..

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Yuan Bing (32 %), aged 45, is our non-executive Director. He was appointed as non-
executive Director in July 2011 and is primarily responsible for providing strategic advice
and guidance on the business and operations of our Group. Mr. Yuan has more than ten
years of experience in the investment banking industry and has extensive knowledge in
corporate financing, listings and mergers and acquisitions transactions. Mr. Yuan joined
Hony Capital in April 2009 and has served as managing director of the investment
department of its Hong Kong office since January 2010. Currently, he is also a director
of Top Amuse and a non-executive and non-independent director and member of
audit and compensation committees of Biosensors International Group, Ltd, a company
listed on Singapore Stock Exchange. Prior to joining Hony Capital, Mr. Yuan served as
managing director of the direct investment department of Morgan Stanley Asia Limited
from October 2006 to 2009. Before that, Mr. Yuan served as managing director of the
PRC enterprises corporate financing department of Morgan Stanley Asia Limited from
April 2004 to June 2006. Mr. Yuan also served as the vice president of Credit Suisse First
Boston (Hong Kong) Limited from September 2001 to March 2004. Mr. Yuan received a
bachelor of arts degree in English from Nanjing University in July 1990. He also obtained
a master's degree in international relations in June 1993 and a juris doctorate's degree in

June 1998 from Yale University.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Yang Xianzu (158

Director of in March 2013. Mr. Yang has more than 30 years of experience in

), aged 74, was appointed as an independent non-executive

telecommunications industry. Currently, he serves as an independent non-executive
director of several companies listed on the Stock Exchange, namely, Dongfeng Motor
Group Company Limited, China Wireless Technologies Limited and CITIC Telecom
International Holdings Limited (stock code: 489, 2369 and 1883, respectively). He is
also an independent director of 263 Network Ltd (ZAN=WBEBEROAERA
&]), a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange. Since 2003, he has served as a
member of the |0th National Committee of CPPCCan external director of Baosteel
Group Corporation (B #fl&EHRA 7)) and China Electronics Corporation (FEIE
FEMEFESEBERF) successively. From 1999 to 2003, he served as the chairman of
China United Telecommunications Corporation Limited (Bl & BERMDERA
A]) (a company listed on Shanghai stock exchange) and from 2000 to 2003, he served
as the chairman of China Unicome (Hong Kong) Limited (a company listed on New
York Stock Exchange and the Stock Exchange). Prior to that, he successively served as
the deputy minister of the Ministry of Post and Telecommunications and the Ministry of
Information Industry. He also served as the director of Henan Administration for Post and
Telecommunications from 1986 to 1990 and the deputy director of Hubei Administration

for Post and Telecommunications from 1983 to 1986.

Mr. Wang Lianzhou (F &), aged 74, was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director in March 2013. Currently, he serves as an independent director of Beijing
Tongrentang Co. Ltd (a company listed on Shanghai Stock Exchange), Hwabao Trust
Co. ltd. (EBIZFLER AT AR, Great Wall Fund Management Co. Ltd., Heaven-
Sent Capital Management Group Co. Ltd. (WAKREZEFEEE), and the director
of the editorial committee of Securities Investment Fund Yearbook. He also acted as
an independent director of China Asset Management Co., Ltd and the independent
supervisor of Baoying Fund Management Co. Ltd, and the president of the Trust and
Fund Institution of the People's University of China. He previously worked at finance
and economy committee of National People's Congress (“NPC Finance and Economy
Committee”) and was responsible for coordinating the work between the NPC Finance
and Economy Committee and the relevant departments of the PRC central government
and to launch the legislation on economic matters. He successively served as the vice
chief and the chief of the finance group of the NPC Finance and Economy Committee
office, the deputy director of the office and economic law office, bureau-level inspector of
research institute. He also served as the group leader in drafting the Securities Law, Trust
Law, and Investment Fund Law of China, consistently dedicating to the construction of

legal system for capital market.
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EERGREEERBE

Mr. Lam, Chi Yuen Nelson (M%&), aged 45, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director in March 2013. He has extensive experience in professional
accountancy in Hong Kong. Currently, he is the sole proprietor of Nelson and Company,
Certified Public Accountants which has been in operation since February 2005. He
has been appointed as a non-official non-executive director of the Urban Renewal
Authority Board of Hong Kong SAR since May 2013. He has been the independent
non-executive director of China Resources Cement Holdings Limited, a company
listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1313), since August 2008. He has also been
appointed as a member of the Financial Reporting Review Panel since July 2013 and
a member of the Air Transport Licensing Authority since August 2013. Mr. Lam is a
practicing fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a
fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and a member
of several professional bodies in Australia, the USA and the United Kingdom, including
CPA Australia, the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of England and Wales. He is also a CFA charter holder and a
fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Directors. Mr. Lam was the president of
the Society of Chinese Accountants and Auditors from December 201 | to December
2013 and is currently the chairman of Accounting Development Foundation Limited. Mr.
Lam received a bachelor of business administration degree in accounting from the Hong
Kong Baptist University (formerly known as Hong Kong Baptist College) in January 1992,
a master of business administration degree from The Hong Kong University of Science
and Technology in November 1998 and a master of science degree in finance from The

Chinese University of Hong Kong in November 2001.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
Mr. Wong Choihing (FH ), please refer to his biography under the paragraph headed

“Executive Directors” in this section.

Mr. Wu Bo (:R)F), aged 44, was appointed as vice president and chief financial officer
of our Company in November 2011 and is primarily responsible for the overall financial
affairs of our Group. Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Wu had been involved in the
establishment of several startup companies from August 2005 to November 201 |, which
included Myetong.com (online stores search engine), Caton Oversee (research and
development of streaming media device), Hinora.com (touch screen module production)
and Vodino.com (interactive system development). From May 2004 to August 2005, Mr.
WU acted as the vice president and chief operating officer of China Finance Online Co,
Ltd. (a company listed on NASDAQ). Before returning to China, from September 1998
to September 2001, Mr. Wu worked at Dun & Bradstreet Corporation during which
he was rotated in Moody's Investor Services and two other companies. In May 2000, he
was promoted to the director of global corporate development of Dun & Bradstreet
Corporation. Mr. Wu received a bachelor of science degree in material science from the
University of Science and Technology in July 1992 and a master's degree in biochemistry
and a master of business administration degree from Rutgers, the State University of New

Jersey in May 1995 and October 1998, respectively.

EERGREEERBE

EREEE
IBRLE AREHFHA2HAMHHTE
-k~

BREE 4458 R0 EFIIREZERR
AR KERENEE  TEAEAEEN
BUBEG - MAKRKER - 1K 2005F8
Ol ABE REESE2EZRAIE
AN T BESBIEEZ(BLEESR

%) - Caton Oversee(Ji BB E) -
BYSRBNEERAR(BEREREE) R
LREFFNBERAA(EHEZSGRE) - B
200465 AE2005F8 H - RAL BEEME
En tTARTRERESKERAANEIEE
FREREER RAERDFER - B7 1998
F9AE2001 59 A B Dun & Bradstreet
Corporation * UL HAf » i 1h B & ERBRE
BREERB LR RBIMER AR ° 72000
5 AFEDun & Bradstreet Corporation 21k
PEERDEE - REERI92F7ARET
ERERMAENHEBEEREE LB
I 75 B 1995 S A K 19985 10 A B G B 1%
i 2mM L REEMCEEEETEMRT
BERBETEM -

B> Hm

DO R
o) ™

P
Ju
4%

)

HYDOO INTERNATIONAL HOLDING LIMITED £ ZEE B ZERER AT

Annual Report 2013 £ 3§

87



88

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERGREEERBE

Mr. Huang Wenbin (& 30&), aged 50, was appointed as a vice president of our
Company in November 201 | and is primarily responsible for sales and marketing
management of our Group. Mr. Huang has |8 years of experience in sales and marketing.
Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Huang was the vice general manager of Hong Kong
Howard Group Company Limited from February 2005 to November 201 I, and was
principally in charge of the sales and marketing of trade center projects. Mr. Huang was
also the deputy general manager of the Jining Hydoo Logistics Center Development
Company Limited from May 2010 to November 201 I, and was responsible for sales and
marketing of the Jining Trade Center. Concurrently, Mr. Huang served as deputy general
manager of China South City Xi'an Company Limited (FAZZ R B R A F)) in charge
of marketing from January 2010 to October 2011, and was responsible for sales and
marketing management. Mr. Huang served as the deputy general manager of Jingdezhen
Howard Trade Center Development Company Limited (R/ZEREE 5 ESHEE
B2 R]) from January 2001 to June 2005. He also acted as the deputy general manager/
general manager of Jiangxi Howard Group Bioengineering Industrial Co., Ltd. (T Fi 512
SEEYIEEFARAT) from November 1998 to December 2000 and the deputy
general manager of Ganzhou Lifa Metal Products Company Limited (58 F1|8 © B &
BIRAE]) from March 1994 to November 1998.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Zhao Yande (fEE1E), aged 37, is a vice president of our Company since November
2011, and a general manager of the Ganzhou project of our Company since December
2012. From November 2011 to November 2012, Mr. Zhao served as the vice president
of construction management of our Company and was primarily responsible for the
overall construction management of our Group. Mr. Zhao has more than ten years
of experience in construction management. Prior to joining our Group, he was also
the deputy general manager of Jining Hydoo Logistics Center Development Company
Limited from February 2010 to November 2011 and was responsible for construction
management of the Jining Trade Center. Concurrently, Mr. Zhao acted as the deputy
general manager of construction in China South City Xi'an Company Limited (FE %2R
AR ZAR]) from October 2009 to October 201 1, and was responsible for managing
the construction of the entire project. From November 2008 to October 2009, Mr.
Zhao acted as the deputy general manager of construction in Jingdezhen Howard Trade
Center Development Company Limited (R1ZHZREE 5 ESFHE AR A A]), and
was responsible for managing the construction of the entire project. From May 2006 to
November 2008, Mr. Zhao worked for Shenzhen China Overseas Construction Limited
(RINFBRETIZEMRAA]), and was responsible for managing the construction of
the Futian Shangri-La Hotel, Kerry Plaza and Zhuhai Silver Bay projects. From July 2000
to May 2006, Mr. Zhao worked for China State Construction International Holdings
Ltd., and was responsible for managing the reconstruction of Kowloon Hospital, the 10
Area project and other projects. Mr. Zhao received a bachelor's degree in construction
management from Chongging University in July 2000, and a masters of science degree in

project management from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University in December 2007.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERGREEERBE

Mr. Chen Zhongmin (B8 K), aged 59, was appointed as a vice president of our
Company in November 201 | and is primarily responsible for the overall project plan and
architectural design management of our Group. Mr. Chen has more than ten years of
experience in city planning, architectural design, commercial real estate development and
operations management. Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Chen acted as the chief planner
of Hong Kong Howard Group Company Limited from April 2007 to November 2011,
and was responsible for site selection, design and planning of all the projects of the group.
Concurrently, Mr. Chen acted as the executive deputy general manager of Jining Hydoo
Logistics Center Development Company Limited from February 2010 to November 201 |
and was responsible for the daily management of the company and the design of Jining
Trade Centre. From April 2006 to April 2007, he was the general manager of Shenzhen
Minghao Investment Company Limited (YI|TT#55#%& 2 R]), and was responsible for
the property development and operations of the project companies, especially Muyang
project. From August 2002 to February 2006, he successively served as the deputy general
manager of Quanying Weiye (Beijing) Investment Management Company Limited (25
BEALR)EEEEER AT, the general manager of Henan Luohe Quanying Weiye
Estate Company Limited (7R 2 & EFREXHFR AT and the deputy general
manager, executive deputy general manager and general manager of Henan Pingdingshan
Trade Center Development Company Limited (I EFIBILE 2 ESFREBRAA),
and was responsible for the project development. Mr. Chen was the director and architect
of the design department of Jiangxi Ganzhou Architecture Design Institute, the director of
Ganzhou City Planning and Survey Design Institute, the director of Ganzhou City Planning
Bureau, a member of the Management Committee of China Association of City Planning
and vice president of the Jiangxi Association of City Planning. Mr. Chen was granted the
title of senior engineer in city planning by the professional title reform leading group (51
BERE/MH) of Jiangxi province in September 1997. Mr. Chen graduated from Jiangxi
Normal University (‘T FERIEE K E2) with a diploma in arts in February 1977.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Zhou Zhiyuan (JETT), aged 41, was appointed as a vice president of our Company
in December 2012 and primarily responsible for the construction for the Group. Mr.
Zhou has nine years of experience in construction management. From December 2010
to December 2012, he served as the general manager of the planning and construction
management department of Kaisa Group Holdings Ltd. (EJKEEEZERBR A A),
responsible for the project development, planning and operation and the construction
management of the group. During the same period, he concurrently served as the general
manager of Taijian Construction Engineering Co., Ltd. (R T2 B R A A]) under
the group. He also served as the deputy general manager of Liyu Construction Design
Company (BERIFEEEELET7AA]) under the group, responsible for decoration, landscape
design and management from June 2012 to December 2012. From March 2010 to
November 2010, he served as the deputy general manager of Changsha Kaifu Wanda
Plaza Investment Company Limited (R Fi1& & ZEE %R E AR A F), in charge of the
construction work. From July 2007 to February 2010, he successively served as the chief
of general housing management center and project general manager of Dongguan Vanke
Real Estate Co, Ltd (R=&RFEHEBMAR]), and was responsible for its project
development and construction management. From July 2004 to July 2007, he served as
the construction manager of Guangdong Century City Group Company Limited (5 ttt
L BB AT, in charge of its project development and construction management.
Mr. Zhou received a bachelor of science degree in water conservancy and hydropower

engineering construction from Tsinghua University in July 1995.

EERGREEERBE

BEREE 415 RWRENARZER
ARFRBE  TZAEAKENEI - AL
EBAENEFHRIEERLER - B20I05128%
WNRENA - thBEFEXEEERERERA
AHREIREIERDBEE  AEZEEER
FE - RENREERBIEE - RER -
BHEZEERTRERETIRER QALK
Boith BRWNFCAZ200FNAEM
ZEEETERRERFTARRALE B8
Kt REFRFTRER - B2010F3HZ2010
FIA HEEARIREEEESRESR
RAOFIEIALE  BEEII(E 5200757
AZEWIVE 2R B AREERZERFE
EERARERAIEEETLIERARAL
B AEEERAEREIEE - 5200457 A
ZF07E7A MBEERRELHEEAR

R 199557 ARG EEASKFIKE TR
REYLEERL R -

HYDOO INTERNATIONAL HOLDING LIMITED £ ZEE B ZERER AT

Annual Report 2013 £

91



92

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERGREEERBE

Mr. Wang Xiangui (E#8 &), aged 56, was appointed as the director of the project
development department of our Company in December 2010 and is primarily responsible
for the project development of the Group. Mr. Wang has more than 15 years of
experience in project development of trade centers. From January 2010 to November
2010, Mr. Wang served as the manager of project development department of Hydoo HK
and was responsible for the project development of the company. From August 1995 to
November 2010, he was the manager of project development department of Hong Kong
Howard Group Company Limited, and was responsible for the project development. He
has been awarded the title of the outstanding entrepreneur with social responsibility of

Weifang city in December 2010.

Mr. Ma Yi (554&), aged 44, was appointed as the assistant-to-president and director of
strategic planning and project operations of our Company in July 2012 and is primarily
responsible for the strategic planning and project operations of our Group. Prior to joining
our Group, Mr. Ma also acted as the assistant-to-president and director of the commerce
department of Diamond Park Creative Design (Shenzhen) Co, Ltd (B BR8] B &G (R
YINAEBR A AD). From July 2007 to August 2009, Mr. Ma acted as the marketing director of
China South International Industrial Materials City (Shenzhen) Co. Ltd ((ERIBIBR TR
R ORI B BR 2 A)), a wholly-owned subsidiary of China South City Holdings Limited.
Mr. Ma also worked in Guangzhou Intemational Commodity Exhibition & Trade Center
Company Limited (BEMEBIFR 7 R B MR 15 B MR 2 7)) and Lionda Holdings (Group)
Co, Ltd (a company listed on Shenzhen Stock Exchange). Mr. Ma received a bachelor of

science degree from Guangxi University of Technology (& 78 T 22Fx) in July 1991.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

epnac

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of Hydoo International Holding
Limited

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Hydoo International Holding
Limited (the “Company") and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) set out on pages 95
to 236, which comprise the consolidated and company statements of financial position
as at 31 December 2013, the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended

and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the International Accounting Standards Board and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or

error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements
based on our audit. This report is made solely to you, as a body, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person

for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material

misstatement.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B 2B E

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on
the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall

presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to

provide a basis for our audit opinion.
Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31 December 2013 and of the Group's
profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure

requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
|0 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

24 March 2014
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

= 32
EHEER
for the year ended 31 December 2013
HZEWIBFNASIBLEFE
(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AAREFIR)

2013 2012
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
Pt £ ARETR ARBTT
Turnover RS 3 4,756,464 1,607,114
Cost of sales HERAK 5(c) (1,824,109) (830,843)
Gross profit E7 2,932,355 776271
Other revenue Hfth s 4 5,353 1,377
Other net income/(loss) Hie A/ (B518)F %8 14,562 (5)
Selling and distribution expenses HERY (129,464) (62,220)
Administrative expenses THAX (312,475) (187,722)
Other operating expenses Hipi & mE (23,097) (6,644)
Profit from operations HS-F I 2,487,234 521,057
Share of loss of a joint venture EiEAEhEMER 12 — (EARND)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HEF 2R K 29(a) — 306,551
Finance income FBA 5(a) 11,079 1,374
Finance costs TN 5@a) (70,183) (73241)
Change in fair value of embedded REAEEE:EP
derivative on redeemable convertible BRAZITETE
preference shares OPNTR R (103,271) (292,348)
Profit before taxation BBt A1 AR 5 2,324,859 460,282
Income tax ST 6(a) (1,148,896) (245491)
Profit for the year FRFE 1,175,963 214791
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
SOtEER

for the year ended 3| December 2013
HZWIBFNANBLFE
(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AARESTR)

2013 2012
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
P EE AR®T R ARETT

Attributable to: N9 1
Equity shareholders of the Company ARAIERRR 9 1,177,782 216,506
Non-controlling interests R S (1,819) (1,715)
Profit for the year FRFE 1,175,963 214791

Earnings per share SRER

Basic (RMB) EX(ARETT) 10 0.4l 0.09
Diluted (RMB) #EARET) 10 039 0.09

The notes on pages 106 to 236 form part of these financial statements. Details of F106E V6B PTHMTRK AN BRKE —
dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company attributable to the profit forthe  #% ° RAFEFBEEN AR AIEERER S
year are set out in note 30(f). RN GEEIGE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
EHfERREMEEKER

for the year ended 3| December 2013
HZEWIBFNASIBLEFE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AAREFIR)

2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETT
Profit for the year FrFE 1,175,963 214791
Other comprehensive income for the year FRHEMZEKA
(after tax and reclassification adjustments): (RBEREHD EAEE) :
[tems that may be reclassified subsequently HERRENIEE
to profit or loss: BRMIER
Exchange differences on translation of HEHMEEER T AR
financial statements of subsidiaries outside W RRNELER
the Mainland China, net of nil tax (EMEETHE) 11,576 893
Total comprehensive income for the year FRE2HBALE 1,187,539 215,684
Attributable to: UT&FRELE:
Equity shareholders of the Company ANEREERR 1,189,358 217,399
Non-controlling interests RS (1,819) (1715)
Total comprehensive income for the year FREMEBALLE 1,187,539 215,684
The notes on pages 106 to 236 form part of these financial statements. FI062 236 B FTH M THEAATBREN —
B e
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

PaN A
| N Vil /.

Of B 38 AR R &
at 31 December 2013
20135124318
(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AARESTR)

2013 2012
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
Pt £ ARETR ARBTTT
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment I ER S I 61,031 45,647
Intangible assets B EE 1,329 44|
Goodwill HE 29(b) 2,252 —
Other non-current financial assets HitERBemEE 13(a) 23,618 19,800
Deferred tax assets EEHIEEE 14(b) 213913 122,247
302,143 188,135
Current assets RBEE
Inventories FE 16 5,390,826 3,303,546
Current tax assets ANEATIIE A B 14(a) 111,762 95,230
Trade and other receivables, B 5 RE A YA -
prepayments and deposits BRNRERES 17 682,941 948,577
Amounts due from related parties e st R e 75 OR 18 — 796
Restricted cash RRHRE 19 103,031 2442
Available-for-sale investments AHHERE [3(b) 120,000 —
Cash and cash equivalents BekReEEN 20 4,292,994 584,379
10,701,554 4,954,970
Current liabilities RBAE
Trade and other payables 85 RAMENTIE 2 3,828,104 1,712,620
Bank loans and other borrowings ROIERRAMEE 23 281,860 689,000
Current tax liabilities HHmERRE 14(a) 932,982 225,693
Amounts due to related parties JE < R 5 3R 24 = 1228
Deferred income BN 25 858,082 521,267
5,901,028 3,149,808
Net current assets RBEEFE 4,800,526 1,805,162
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBERE 5,102,669 1,993,297
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
BT BRI R

at 31 December 2013
20135124318
(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AAREFIR)

2013 2012
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
Pt £ ARETR ARBTT
Non-current liabilities EkRBAER
Bank loans and other borrowings RITERREMEE 23 602,000 60,000
Deferred income BN 25 5,843 3316
Redeemable convertible preference shares A8 o] RTHAR R B ST iR 26 — 581,412
Embedded derivative liabilities REEEIEA -5 tco)
on redeemable convertible preference shares BRANITETABE 26 — 292,502
Deferred tax liabilities BEREAE [4(b) 63,038 -
670,881 937,230
NET ASSETS BEFE 4,431,788 1,056,067
Capital and reserves BRA R &% 30
Share capital A 31,945 365
Reserves Gl 4,389,126 949,417
Total equity attributable to equity shareholders A B R R FE(
of the Company A 4,421,071 949,782
Non-controlling interests FERER 10,717 106,285
TOTAL EQUITY KRB 4,431,788 1,056,067

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 24 March 2014.

Wong Choihing
IEE
Chairman

B

The notes on pages 106 to 236 form part of these financial statements.

R2014F3 24 BEEZ S E RIRETE

Huang Dehong

ERA

Executive Director

BTES

FI6EB6EFMBM B AT EREN—
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
5 75 AR I &

at 31 December 2013
20135124318
(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AARESTR)

2013 2012
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
P EE AR®T R ARETT
Non-current assets kRBEE
Interests in subsidiaries S aNGI:0F 2 15 833,926 859,72
Current assets RBEE
Trade and other receivable, 8 5 R A YA -
prepayments and deposits ANRERESR 17 1,278,062 1,790
Cash and cash equivalents BekReEEY 20 15 7439
1,278,077 9229
Current liabilities RBAE
Trade and other payables 85 RAMENTIE 22 4,596 24775
Amounts due to related parties JE 15 Bl 66 5 R 0R 24 — 4,754
4,596 29,529
Net current assets/(liabilities) REBEE/(BF)FE 1,273,481 (20,300)
Total assets less current liabilities BREERRDAE 2,107,407 839,42
Non-current liabilities EkRBEE
Redeemable convertible preference shares BEAEREEE S 26 — 581,412
Embedded derivative liabilities REERE:T S
on redeemable convertible preference shares BMARITETARRE 26 = 292,502
— 873914
NET ASSETS BEFE 2,107,407 (34493)

100 HYDOO INTERNATIONAL HOLDING LIMITED R EZBBRZERER A 7
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
5 7 AR 0 2%

at 31 December 2013
20135124318
(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AAREFIR)

2013 2012
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
P &% AR¥TF R ARBFT

Capital and reserves RAR % 30
Share capital (LEN 31,945 365
Reserves [ 2,075,462 (34,858)
TOTAL EQUITY BERAE 2,107,407 (34,493)

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 24 March 2014, R201456F3 A 24 AEE S 28 E RIKETIE -

Wong Choihing Huang Dehong
IB®E HER
Chairman Executive Director
£ HTEF

FI06E V6 A FBA AT EREN—

5 -

7]

The notes on pages 106 to 236 form part of these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
EEREHR

for the year ended 31 December 2013

HZE0B3F1NA3NBILEE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

AAREFIR)

Atributable to equity shareholders of the Compény

FRTERRRER
Reserve- Fquty
transaction  setfled share-
with non- based
conroling ~~ payment
PRC nterests resenve Non-
Statutory BRE s controling
Share Share resene Capta AR EENRD  Boeg  Retned interests Tota
aptd premium Mg resenve st X5 resenve profts Total AR equty
BE BhER ieRk  EAER 25 EMMEE  EXRE RENE & Bn  EheE
OO 0@ 300w 0Om) 30 B
Note ~ RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOO  RMBOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOD  RMBOO  RMBO  RMBOO  RMBONO
Wi ARETL ARBTR ARBTR ARETR ARMTT ARETR ARBTR ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETR
At | January 2012 HNNEIAIA Ei) - 451 39904 - 459 14787 W9 6B - B
Changes in equityfor 2012: WERESE:
Proft for the year ERilR - - - = = = = s e (1715 24l
Other comprehensve income LESTON - - - - - - () - 3 - 893
Total comprehensie income 2ENALE - - - - - - 93 eS0T (1715 215684
Fquty sttd sharebased tranactions—— DNEREEMRRBERNRS i) - - - - - 6109 - - 6109 = 4109
Captal nection by non-controling HibERE70RTA
nterests to subsicres ) - - - - - - - - = 108000 108000
bsuance ofnew shares to RERARERIRELZ RS
Pre-PO investors 30b)() B - = % - - - - W - W
Deemed contribution asa result of R ERaEREN
disposal ofnerestnajont venture ERMELINARATE 1 - - - 9404 - - - - 9404 = 9404
Ropropron to PRC satvtoryresene.~ BREREEFEE 00 = ) = = = - B8] = = =
At31 December 2012 HONEAIA 365 - 6708 398473 - 6568 5680 464988 99781 106285 1056067
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
BOER BB R

for the year ended 31 December 2013

HE0B3F A3 BILEE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AARHIIR)
Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
FAIRERRER
Reserve- Equity
transaction settled
withnon-  share based
controling ~~ payment
PRC interests ~ reserve Non-
Statutory i & HBE controllng
Share Share reserve Capital FER EBURE  Echange  Reuned interests Tota
aptdl premium Gl reene &N MR reserve profits Tod  FER equity
B BhEE iERR  EARE X% BENGE  EARR  REWE gt ER BREE
0o 0QEH 300w 0w 30 30
Note ~ RMBOOO ~ RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBON  RMBON  RMBO
I ARMTZ ARMTZ ARBTR ARRTR ARMTR ARETZ ARMTR ARBTR ARETR ARMTL ARMTR
At January 2013 HOBEIAIR 365 - 6708 3941 - 6,568 5680 464988 949780 106265 1036067
Changes in equity for 2013; NBEEERD
Proft for the year ERilR - - - = = = = mm LT (819 LI
Other comprehersive income Ef2EHA = = = = = =I5 = 15T - I
Tota comprehensive ncome SENAEE - - - - - = NS LITTR LIe3 (1819 L8
Net proceeds fomise of ordnery sares - N2 FREEREFTERRAE
upon the Globel Ofering et of VR
isung cost il 30)(i) 618 179687 - - - - - = 128589 = 128589
Captaleion e ERfEf Wi B3 @B = = = = = = = = =
Automic omerson of redeematle ~ AEEATRAT AR
convertble preference shares Brk 26() l - = 1019 - - - = 100l = 10206
Equiy settled share-based ransactions NEREE MR EERNRS 8 - - - - - 5707 - - 5701 = 5,107
Captalton of pecil chicend e ) = = -0 = = = — 00 -0
Acquition ofa subsiday YT ) = = = = = = = = = % %
Capita inection by non-controling FERERY T
nterests to a subsidary it ) - - - - - - - - - 4000 4000
Acquistion o on-contolingnterests AR g0 = = = - (5I8) = = — I8 (814 (150000)
Ropropriton o PAC satvtoryresenve.~ BREREETRE 00 = - 1598 = = = - (15974) = = =
At 31 December 2013 ANBENA3IA 3945 105436 1841 1435617 (51866) 2275 Uue LA 4400 10717 4431788

The notes on pages 106 to 236 form part of these financial statements.
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104

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

x =
EHEERER
for the year ended 31 December 2013
BZEWBFNRANALEE
(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AAREIIR)

2013 2012
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
Pt £ ARETR ARBTTT

Operating activities RETEH
Cash generated from/(used in) operations mEEBHME/(FTR)RE 21 2,891,896 (919,405)
PRC tax paid B ERE (486,767) (168,178)
Net cash generated from/(used in) BEEDME/ (FA)RLFE

operating activities 2,405,129 (1,087,583)
Investing activities REED
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME - BEREE

plant and equipment F{3 A = 10
Proceeds from disposal of a subsidiary, HEFARMSHE

net of cash and cash equivalents disposed HNREHEREKREEEY 29(@a) 240,000 220,662
Payment for purchase of other non-current BEHEMIERDEREENRK

financial assets (2,000) —
Payment for purchase of available-for-sale BEAHLERENK

investments (120,000) —
Payment for purchase of property, BENE  BEK

plant and equipment R (30,873) (27,261)
Payment for intangible assets BERVEENK (1,009) (380)
Acquisition of a subsidiary, net of cash acquired WEFAR - MBRMERRSE (1,218) =
Net gains on disposal of HERHHERE

available-for-sale investments Wz 55 14,562 —
Dividends received EMEE 2,201 —
Interest received B IHLS 11,079 1,374
Net cash generated from investing activities RETHFMERLFR 112,742 194,405

HYDOO INTERNATIONAL HOLDING LIMITED £ ZEIBRZER G R A =
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

EXi

RERER

for the year ended 31 December 2013
BZWBFNANBLEE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AAREFIR)

2013 2012
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
Pt AR®TR ARETT
Financing activities MEEH
Issue of new shares to Pre-IPO investors BOROTERARERINRES
S sE — 343,997
Issue of new shares, net of listing expenses BATHRR - MR E TR X 30(b) i) 1,285,869 —
Proceeds from new bank loans MERTERRAMEE
and other borrowings S TIE 841,500 690,500
Decrease/(increase) in security deposit BFHRPE S R#EL
with a PRC financial institution RESRED,/(EMm) 40,000 (40,000)
Capital injection by non-controlling interests FERERFRA
to subsidiaries HFREEE 30(g) 4,000 108,000
Repayment of bank loans and other borrowings BERTERRHAMEE (706,640) (44,500)
Acquisition of non-controlling interests Wi SE R (150,000) —
Decrease in amounts due from related parties JE i R B 77 BRIER 796 52,640
Decrease in amounts due to related parties JEAF BB 7 IR (1,228) (6,296)
Interest and other borrowing costs paid ENFEREMEEKR (110,358) (60,128)
Net cash generated from financing activities METEHAERETEE 1,203,939 1,044,213
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents RERAEEEMENER 3,721,810 151,035
Cash and cash equivalents at | January RIBIBNBEERBEESEN 20 584,379 436941
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes HEEXRBNTE (13,195) (3.597)
Cash and cash equivalents at 3| December RNRABNEERREEEY 20 4,292,994 584,379

The notes on pages 106 to 236 form part of these financial statements.

o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 7% HR R B o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BAEERN  BUARKIIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(@)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with all
applicable International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs™), which
collective term includes all applicable individual International Financial
Reporting Standards, International Accounting Standards (“IASs") and
Interpretations issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
("IASB") and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. These financial statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the
“Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange™). A summary of the significant accounting policies adopted by the

Group is set out below.

The IASB has issued certain new and revised IFRSs that are first effective
or available for early adoption for the current accounting period of the
Group and the Company. Note |(c) provides information on any changes
in accounting policies resulting from initial application of these developments
to the extent that they are relevant to the Group for the current and prior

accounting periods reflected in these financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

| SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(b)

Basis of preparation and presentation of the financial statements

Hydoo International Holding Limited (the “Company”, formerly known as
Howard International Holding Limited) was incorporated in the Cayman
Islands on 19 October 2010 as an exempted company with limited liability

under the Companies Law (2013 Revision) of the Cayman Islands.

Pursuant to a group reorganisation completed on 18 May 2011 (the
“Reorganisation”) as detailed in the section headed “History and Corporate
Structure” in the Company's prospectus dated |18 October 2013, the
Company became the holding company of the companies now comprising

the Group, details of which are set out in Note |5 below.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 3| December
2013 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the

“Group").

These financial statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB") rounded to
the nearest thousand. The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis except that the following assets
and liabilities are stated at their fair value as explained in the accounting

policies set out below:

= available-for-sale investments (note 1(g)); and

= redeemable convertible preference shares (note | (p)).

B HRAR M &

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BAEEBI  WUAAREIIR)

EXSHBEE)

(b)

MERRNERR25I2E

REERZERERQATAR
& |+ Bl #Howard International
Holding Limited) #2010 10 A
19 B 18 # Companies Law (2013
Revision) of the Cayman Islands 7E
HEREAMULA—BEREE
YN

BER20IIFSAIBARKMNE
BEA(=8)(FRERAARA
HA2013F 108 1I8EMABRER
(B REERE]I—&) AR7A
AR BRI TSR A8 ER
AR BREFEHR T XIS

BE0BFENA3NBILEFENA
HRBREAERRARESTA
al(GRE AEE]) -

ZEVBEREAAREZT] - DB
ERBATAE - REMBHRE
BAEL AR ERE - T
NWEERGERE TAEHHRAD
A E5IE -

- AEHEREMEI()
N

—  HEREARRE LR E
I(p))
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 7% HR R B o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BAEERN  BUARKIIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(b)

Basis of preparation and presentation of the financial statements (Contd)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRSs requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and
expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the
judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily

apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future

periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of IFRSs that have
significant effect on the financial statements and major sources of estimation

uncertainty are discussed in note 2.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

| SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

©

New and revised IFRSs that are first effective for the current accounting

period

The IASB has issued a number of new IFRSs and amendments to IFRSs that
are first effective for the current accounting period of the Group and the
Company. Of these, the following developments are relevant to the Group's

financial statements:

. Amendments to |AS |, Presentation of financial statements -

Presentation of items of other comprehensive income

. IFRS 10, Consolidated financial statements

. IFRS 12, Disclosure of interests in other entities

. IFRS I3, Fair value measurement

. Amendments to IFRS 7 - Disclosures - Offsetting financial assets and
financial liabilities

B HRAR M &

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BAEEBI  WUAAREIIR)

EXSHBEE)

(©)

RETETFHRERERNITR
RETRRMBREED

B g EREEECRHZER
AEBERARAEN G HRER
AR ERM BRE R R
BRI REERERT - Hep - BA
SEMBRREMENEELT -

o HREFENEIRKET
B BHXHZ5 A
EEWzZEEHES]

o [FIBRMEREERNZE 05
AHE R %

¢+ BRMBRSEAE Y-
REWERIBSRE

¢+ BRMBRSEAE Y-

AR ETE

o BERMBREEIETRE
AA-RE-HHTHEE
REMEE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 7% HR R B o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BAEERN  BUARKIIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

©

(d)

New and revised IFRSs that are first effective for the current accounting
period (Contd)

The Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation that is not

yet effective for the current accounting period.

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group controls
an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the entity. When assessing whether the Group has
power, only substantive rights (held by the Group and other parties) are

considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the consolidated financial
statements from the date that control commences until the date that control
ceases. Intra-group balances, transactions and cash flows and any unrealised
profits arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated in full in preparing
the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses resulting from intra-
group transactions are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains but

only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary not attributable
directly or indirectly to the Company, and in respect of which the Group
has not agreed any additional terms with the holders of those interests
which would result in the Group as a whole having a contractual obligation
in respect of those interests that meets the definition of a financial liability.
For each business combination, the Group can elect to measure any non-
controlling interests either at fair value or at the non-controlling interests'

proportionate share of the subsidiary's net identifiable assets.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

| SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(d)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (Contd)

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated statement of
financial position within equity, separately from equity attributable to the
equity shareholders of the Company. Non-controlling interests in the results
of the Group are presented on the face of the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as an allocation of the total profit or loss and total
comprehensive income for the year between non-controlling interests
and the equity shareholders of the Company. Loans from holders of non-
controlling interests and other contractual obligations towards these holders
are presented as financial liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial
position in accordance with notes |(o), (p) or

of the liability.

(q) depending on the nature

Changes in the Group's interests in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss
of control are accounted for as equity transactions, whereby adjustments
are made to the amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests
within consolidated equity to reflect the change in relative interests, but no

adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted for as a
disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with a resulting gain or
loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in that former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost is recognised at fair value and
this amount is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a financial
asset (see note |(g)) or, when appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of

investment in joint ventures (see note | (e)).

In the Company's statement of financial position, an investment in a

subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses (see note | (1)).

B HRAR M &

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BAEEBI  WUAAREIIR)

EXSHBEE)

(d)

FRRARFERER(E)

IR N B GF AR RV HE
R EAR B ERBRE DD
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 7% HR R B o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BAEERN  BUARKIIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(e)

Joint ventures

A joint venture is an arrangement whereby the Group or Company and
other parties contractually agree to share control of the arrangement, and

have rights to the net assets of the arrangement.

An investment in a joint venture is accounted for in the consolidated
financial statements under the equity method, unless it is classified as held
for sale. Under the equity method, the investment is initially recorded at
cost, adjusted for any excess of the Group's share of the acquisition-date fair
values of the investee's identifiable net assets over the cost of the investment
(if any). Thereafter, the investment is adjusted for the post acquisition
change in the Group's share of the investee's net assets and any impairment
loss relating to the investment (see note |(l)). Any acquisition-date excess
over cost, the Group's share of the post-acquisition, post-tax results of
the investees and any impairment losses for the year are recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, whereas the Group's share of
the post-acquisition post tax items of the investees” other comprehensive
income is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and

other comprehensive income.

When the Group's share of losses exceeds its interest in the joint venture,
the Group's interest is reduced to nil and recognition of further losses is
discontinued except to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the investee. For
this purpose, the Group's interest is the carrying amount of the investment
under the equity method together with the Group's long-term interests that

in substance form part of the Group's net investment in the joint venture.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

| SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(e)

Joint ventures (Cont d)

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions between the
Group and its joint venture are eliminated to the extent of the Group's
interest in the investee, except where unrealised losses provide evidence of
an impairment of the asset transferred, in which case they are recognised

immediately in profit or loss.

In all other cases, when the Group ceases to have joint control over a
joint venture, it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in that
investee, with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any
interest retained in that former investee at the date when joint control is lost
is recognised at fair value and this amount is regarded as the fair value on

initial recognition of a financial asset (see note |(g)).

In the Company's statement of financial position, investment in joint ventures

is stated at cost less impairment losses (see note | (1)).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 7% HR R B o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BAEERN  BUARKIIR)

| SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)
()  Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of:

(i)  the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration transferred, the
amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquire and the fair
value of the Group's previously held equity interest in the acquire;

over

(i) the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets and liabilities

measured as at the acquisition date.

When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess is recognised immediately in

profit or loss as a gain on a bargain purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill
arising on a business combination is allocated to each cash-generating unit,
or groups of cash generating units, that is expected to benefit from the

synergies of the combination and is tested annually for impairment (see note

H(D)-

On disposal of a cash generating unit during the year, an attributable amount
of puchased goodwill is included in the calculation of the profit or loss on

disposal.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

| SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(e

Other investments in equity securities

The Group's policies for investments in equity securities, other than

investments in subsidiaries, are as follows:

Investments in equity securities are initially stated at fair value, which is
their transaction price unless it is determined that the fair value at initial
recognition differs from the transaction price and that fair value is evidenced
by a quoted price in an active market for an identical asset or liability
or based on a valuation techniques that uses only data from observable
markets. Cost includes attributable transaction costs, except where indicated
otherwise. These investments are subsequently accounted for as follows,

depending on their classification:

Investments in equity securities held for trading are classified as current
assets. Any attributable transaction costs are recognised in profit or loss as
incurred. At the end of each reporting period the fair value is remeasured,
with any resultant gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. The net gain
or loss recognised in profit or loss does not include any dividends or interest
earned on these investments as these are recognised in accordance with the

policies set out in note [ (v)(iv) and I(v)(V).

Investments in securities which do not fall into any of the above categories
are classified as available-for-sale securities. At the end of each reporting
period the fair value is remeasured, with any resultant gain or loss being
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated separately in
equity in the fair value reserve. As an exception to this, investments in equity
securities that do not have a quoted price in an active market for an identical
instrument and whose fair value cannot otherwise be reliably measured
are recognised in the statement of financial position at cost less impairment
losses (see note I(1)). Dividend income from equity securities and interest
income from debt securities calculated using the effective interest method
are recognised in profit or loss in accordance with the policies set out in
notes |(v)(iv) and |(v)(v), respectively. Foreign exchange gains and losses
resulting from changes in the amortised cost of debt securities are also

recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 7% HR R B o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BAEERN  BUARKIIR)

| SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(®

U]

Other investments in equity securities (Cont d)

When the investments are derecognised or impaired (see note |(1)), the
cumulative gain or loss recognised in equity is reclassified to profit or loss.
Investments are recognised/derecognised on the date the group commits to

purchase/sell the investments or they expire.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are recognised initially at fair value. At the
end of the reporting period the fair value is remeasured. The gain or loss on

remeasurement to fair value is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Property, plant and equipment

[tems of property, plant and equipment are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less accumulated depreciation and

impairment losses (see note | (1)).

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant and equipment includes
the cost of materials, direct labour, the initial estimate, where relevant, of the
costs of dismantling and removing the items and restoring the site on which
they are located, and an appropriate proportion of production overheads

and borrowing costs (see note | (x)).

Construction in progress is transferred to property, plant and equipment
when it is ready for its intended use. No depreciation is provided against

construction in progress.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an item of
property, plant and equipment are determined as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item and are
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss on the date of

retirement or disposal.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

| SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

i)

Property, plant and equipment (Contd)

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of property, plant
and equipment, less their estimated residual value, if any, using the straight

line method over their estimated useful lives as follows:
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a percentage

Buildings BF
Motor vehicles AE
Office equipment N

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different
useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated on a reasonable basis between
the parts and each part is depreciated separately. Both the useful life of an

asset and its residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation (where the estimated useful life is finite) and
impairment losses (see note |(I)(ii)). Amortisation of intangible assets with
finite useful lives is charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the

assets’ estimated useful lives.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 7% HR R B o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BAEERN  BUARKIIR)

| SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

()

Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (Contd)

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful lives is charged to profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the assets” estimated useful lives. The
following intangible asset with finite useful life is amortised from the date it is

available for use and its estimated useful life is as follows:

Software 5 years

Both the period and method of amortisation are reviewed annually.

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of transactions, is or
contains a lease if the Group determines that the arrangement conveys a
right to use a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of time in retumn
for a payment or a series of payments. Such a determination is made based
on an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement and is regardless of

whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.

HYDOO INTERNATIONAL HOLDING LIMITED R EZBBRZERER A 7
Annual Report 2013 4 $§

EXSHBEE)
() EVEE (BERME)

ERERAERFONELEES
HREEGIEAFHRERA
NEE#E - U TABARARE
RESRNEREERNE A HHER
= REEE - B ERFH

it 56

BHEMm LN OB FETER

HEEE

MAREEE —ALHE TR &
BERERER -—REEEELS
HEEMEMN BN KR
NRERRE  BIZBERH(EHR
RHAFENRH) KB E AR
B AREEEZATHNER
ARRIEHERRE - LTEERE
FZREHREBHENZELA o



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BRI

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BAEEBI  WUAAREIIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd) | EXGHBERE)
(k) Leased assets (Contd) k) HEEEE)
(i) Classification of assets leased to the Group () HEFIEBHNEELE

HRAKERBEEOEEN
BE WMHEEMBRENE
AEnEREEFEBEAR
SB BHEAEESIRA
NBERERE - WHRET
SEMBENBRES AR
ROFEBEAKE - A3
BREEHE BTIER

Assets that are leased by the Group under leases which transfer to
the Group substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are
classified as being held under finance leases. Leases which do not
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the

Group are classified as operating leases, with the following exception:

B -

- land held for own use under an operating lease, the fair value - BELHEERESR
of which cannot be measured separately from the fair value MEimms - WMRE
of a building situated thereon at the inception of the lease, is ERBRE HRAE
accounted for as being held under a finance lease, unless the BREMGNE EME
building is also clearly held under an operating lease. For these FORAED A
purposes, the inception of the lease is the time that the lease g AlERRERE
was first entered into by the Group, or taken over from the RAEANE REZE
previous lessee. FRRE-BLEH

ERERA -BUL
BRmE HERA
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HYDOO INTERNATIONAL HOLDING LIMITED @ EIRZRER A 7
Annual Report 2013 £ 3§

119



120

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 7% HR R B o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BAEERN  BUARKIIR)

| SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(k) Leased assets (Contd)

(i)

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under operating leases,
payments made under the leases are charged to profit or loss in
equal instalments over the accounting periods covered by the lease
term, except where an alternative basis is more representative of
the pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased asset. Lease
incentives received are recognised in profit or loss as an integral part
of the aggregate net lease payments made. Contingent rentals are
charged to profit or loss in the accounting period in which they are

incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating lease is amortised
on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease term except
where the property is classified as an investment property, property
under development for sales and completed property held for sale

(see note | (m)).

If a sale and leaseback transaction results in an operating lease, and
it is clear that the transaction is established at fair value, any profit
or loss shall be recognised immediately. If the sale price is below fair
value, any profit or loss shall be recognised immediately except that,
if the loss is compensated for by future lease payments at below
market price, it shall be deferred and amortised in proportion to the
lease payments over the period for which the asset is expected to
be used. If the sale price is above fair value, the excess over fair value
shall be deferred and amortised over the period for which the asset is

expected to be used.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

| SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

() Impairment of assets

()

Impairment of investments in equity securities and other receivables

Investment in equity securities and other current and non-current
receivables that are stated at cost or amortised cost or are classified
as available-for-sale securities are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period to determine whether there is objective evidence of
impairment. Objective evidence of impairment includes observable
data that comes to the attention of the Group about one or more of

the following loss events:

= significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

= a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in

interest or principal payments;

= it becoming probable that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or

other financial reorganisation;

= significant changes in the technological, market, economic or
legal environment that have an adverse effect on the debtor;

and

= a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of an

investment in equity securities below its cost.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 7% HR R B o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BAEERN  BUARKIIR)

| SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

() Impairment of assets (Cont d)

(i) Impairment of investments in equity securities and other receivables
(Contd)

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is determined and

recognised as follows:

= For investments in joint venture accounted for under equity
method, the impairment loss is measured by comparing
the recoverable amount of the investment with its carrying
amount in accordance with note | (I)(ii). The impairment loss is
reversed if there has been a favourable change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount in accordance with
note I (1)(ii).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BRI

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BAEEBI  WUAAREIIR)

| SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd) | EXGHBERE)
() Impairment of assets (Contd) () BERHEE)
(i) Impairment of investments in equity securities and other receivables () BEZBFHREREMENK
(Cont'd) HERRE(E)

For trade and other current receivables and other financial
assets carried at amortised cost, the impairment loss is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the financial asset's original effective interest rate
(i.e. the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition
of these assets), where the effect of discounting is material.
This assessment is made collectively where these financial
assets share similar risk characteristics, such as similar past due
status, and have not been individually assessed as impaired.
Future cash flows for financial assets which are assessed for
impairment collectively are based on historical loss experience

for assets with credit risk characteristics similar to the collective

group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be linked objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised, the
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss. A reversal
of an impairment loss shall not result in the asset's carrying
amount exceeding that which would have been determined

had no impairment loss been recognised in prior years.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt B SRR MY RE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BAEERN  BUARKIIR)

| SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

() Impairment of assets (Cont d)

(i) Impairment of investments in equity securities and other receivables
(Contd)

For available-for-sale securities, the cumulative loss that has
been recognised in the fair value reserve is reclassified to profit
or loss. The amount of the cumulative loss that is recognised
in profit or loss is the difference between the acquisition cost
(net of any principal repayment and amortisation) and current
fair value, less any impairment loss on that asset previously

recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss in respect of
available-for-sale equity securities are not reversed through
profit or loss. Any subsequent increase in the fair value of such

assets is recognised in other comprehensive income.

Impairment losses in respect of available-for-sale debt securities
are reversed if the subsequent increase in fair value can be
objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment
loss was recognised. Reversals of impairment losses in such

circumstances are recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

| SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

() Impairment of assets (Contd)

()

(i)

Impairment of investments in equity securities and other receivables

(Cont'd)

Impairment losses are written off against the corresponding assets
directly, except for impairment losses recognised in respect of
trade debtors and bills receivable included within trade and other
receivables, whose recovery is considered doubtful but not remote. In
this case, the impairment losses for doubtful debts are recorded using
an allowance account. When the Group s satisfied that recovery is
remote, the amount considered irrecoverable is written off against
trade debtors and bills receivable directly and any amounts held in
the allowance account relating to that debt are reversed. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously charged to the allowance account
are reversed against the allowance account. Other changes in the
allowance account and subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off directly are recognised in the consolidated statement of

profit or loss.

Impairment of other assets

Interal and external sources of information are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period to identify indications that the following
assets may be impaired or, except in the case of goodwill, an
impairment loss previously recognised no longer exists or may have

decreased:

= Property, plant and equipment;
= Intangible assets;
= Goodwill; and

- Investments in subsidiaries and joint ventures in the Company's

statement of financial position.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt B SRR MY RE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BAEERN  BUARKIIR)

| SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

() Impairment of assets (Cont d)

(i) Impairment of other assets (Contd)

If any such indication exists, the asset's recoverable amount is

estimated.

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its fair
value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. Where an asset does not generate cash
inflows largely independent of those from other assets, the
recoverable amount is determined for the smallest group of
assets that generates cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-

generating unit).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

()

Impairment of assets (Cont d)

(i)

Impairment of other assets (Contd)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B HRAR M &

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BAEEBI  WUAAREIIR)

| BAEHEERE)
)y EBEREE)

(i) EMEEREE)

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss if the carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-
generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds its recoverable
amount. Impairment losses recognised in respect of cash-
generating units are allocated to reduce the carrying amount
of the other assets in the unit (or group of units) on a pro
rata basis, except that the carrying value of an asset will not be
reduced below its individual fair value less costs of disposal (if

measurable) or value in use (if determinable).

Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a favourable
change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount. An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not

reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to the asset's carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised in prior years. Reversals of impairment
losses are credited to the consolidated statement of profit or

loss in the year in which the reversals are recognised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 7% HR R B o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BAEERN  BUARKIIR)

| SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(m)

Inventories

Inventories in respect of property development activities are carried at the
lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost and net realisable values are

determined as follows:

Properties held for future development for sale and properties under

development for sale

The cost of properties held for future development for sale and
properties under development for sale comprises specifically identified
cost, including land use right, aggregate cost of development, materials
and supplies, wages and other direct expenses, an appropriate
proportion of overheads and borrowing costs capitalised (see note
[(x)). Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price less
estimated costs of completion and costs to be incurred in selling the

property.

Completed properties held for sale

In the case of completed properties developed by the Group, cost
is determined by apportionment of the total development costs for
that development project, attributable to the unsold properties. Net
realisable value represents the estimated selling price less costs to be

incurred in selling the property.

The cost of completed properties held for sale comprises all costs of
purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the

inventories to their present location and condition.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(m)

Inventories (Cont d)

- Transfers from inventories to investment properties

Transfers from inventories to investment properties shall be made
when, and only when, there is a change in use, evidenced by
commencement of an operating lease to another party. Investment
properties are stated at fair value, unless they are still in the course
of construction or development at the end of the reporting period
and their fair value cannot be reliably measured at that time. Any gain
or loss arising from a change in fair value or from the retirement or

disposal of an investment property is recognised in profit or loss.

- Other inventories

Other inventories mainly include low-value consumption goods.
They are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost
is calculated using the weighted average cost formula and comprise
all costs of purchase. When inventories are consumed, the carrying
amount of inventories is recognised as an expense in the year in
which the consumption occurs. The amount of any write-down of
inventories to net realisable value and all losses of inventories are

recognised as an expense in the period the write-down or loss occurs.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair value and
thereafter stated at amortised cost less allowance for impairment of doubtful
debts (see note |(I)), except where the receivables are interest-free loans
made to related parties without any fixed repayment terms or the effect of
discounting would be immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are stated at

cost less allowance for impairment of doubtful debts.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 7% HR R B o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BAEERN  BUARKIIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(©)

(P)

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair value less
attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-
bearing borrowings are stated at amortised cost with any difference between
the amount initially recognised and redemption value being recognised in
profit or loss over the period of the borrowings, together with any interest

and fees payable, using the effective interest method.

Preference share capital

Preference share capital is classified as equity if it is non-redeemable,
or redeemable only at the Company’s option, and any dividends are
discretionary. Dividends on preference share capital classified as equity are

recognised as distributions within equity.

Preference share capital is classified as a liability if it is redeemable on a
specific date or at the option of the shareholders, or if dividend payments
are not discretionary. The liability is recognised in accordance with the
Group's policy for interest-bearing borrowings set out in note | (o) and
accordingly dividends thereon are recognised on an accrual basis in profit or
loss as part of finance costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, the liability is

stated at amortised cost.

Where the preference share capital classified as a liability has an embedded
derivative, the embedded derivative is measured at fair value as part of
derivative financial instruments (see note |(h)) on initial recognition. The
embedded derivative is remeasured at the end of each reporting period
to the fair value. The change in fair value of the embedded derivate is

recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(9)

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value. Trade and

other payables are subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the effect of

discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand, demand

deposits with banks and other financial institutions, and short-term, highly

liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash

and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having been

within three months of maturity at acquisition.

Employee benefits

()

Short term employee benefits and contributions to defined

contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions to defined
contribution retirement plans and the cost of non-monetary benefits
are accrued in the year in which the associated services are rendered
by employees. Where payment or settlement is deferred and the
effect would be material, these amounts are stated at their present

values.

Obligation for contributions to defined contribution retirement plans
pursuant to the relevant labour rules and regulations in the People's
Republic of China (the “PRC") are recognised as an expense in profit
or loss as incurred, except to the extent that they are included in

properties for sale not yet recognised as an expense.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 7% HR R B o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BAEERN  BUARKIIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

)

Employee benefits (Contd)

(i)

Equity settled share-based payment

The fair value of share options granted to employees is recognised
as an employee cost with a corresponding increase in the equity
settled share-based payment reserve within equity. The fair value
is measured at grant date using the binomial option pricing model,
taking into account the terms and conditions upon which the options
were granted. Where the employees have to meet vesting conditions
before becoming unconditionally entitled to the options, the total
estimated fair value of the options is spread over the vesting period,

taking into account the probability that the options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share options that is
expected to vest is reviewed. Any resulting adjustment to the
cumulative fair value recognised in prior years is charged/credited
to the profit or loss for the year of the review, unless the original
employee expenses qualify for recognition as an asset, with a
corresponding adjustment to the equity settled share-based payment
reserve. On vesting date, the amount recognised as an expense is
adjusted to reflect the actual number of options that vest (with a
corresponding adjustment to the equity settled share-based payment)
except where forfeiture is only due to not achieving vesting conditions
that relate to the market price of the Company's shares. The equity
amount is recognised in the equity settled share-based payment
reserve until either the option is exercised (when it is transferred
to the share premium account) or the option expires (when it is

released directly to retained profits).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

)

Employee benefits (Contd)

(i)~ Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of when the Group
can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits and when it
recognises restructuring costs involving the payment of termination

benefits.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements in deferred
tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and movements in deferred tax assets
and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that they
relate to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, in which case the relevant amounts of tax are recognised in other

comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year,
using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting

period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and taxable
temporary differences respectively, being the differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and
their tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses and

unused tax credits.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 7% HR R B o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BAEERN  BUARKIIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(t)

Income tax (Cont d)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax liabilities, and all
deferred tax assets to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profits will be available against which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences include those that will arise
from the reversal of existing taxable temporary differences, provided those
differences relate to the same taxation authority and the same taxable entity,
and are expected to reverse either in the same period as the expected
reversal of the deductible temporary difference or in periods into which a
tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or forward.
The same criteria are adopted when determining whether existing taxable
temporary differences support the recognition of deferred tax assets arising
from unused tax losses and credits, that is, those differences are taken into
account if they relate to the same taxation authority and the same taxable
entity, and are expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in which the tax

loss or credit can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets and liabilities
are those temporary differences arising from goodwill not deductible
for tax purposes, the initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect
neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are not part of a
business combination), and temporary differences relating to investments in
subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case of taxable differences, the Group
controls the timing of the reversal and it is probable that the differences will
not reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible differences,

unless it is probable that they will reverse in the future.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

| SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(t)

Income tax (Cont d)

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based on the expected
manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and
liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the

reporting period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at the end of each
reporting period and is reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow the related tax benefit
to be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes

probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of dividends are

recognised when the liability to pay the related dividends is recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and movements therein,
are presented separately from each other and are not offset. Current tax
assets are offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets against
deferred tax liabilities, if the Group has the legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the following additional

conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the Group intends
either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the

liability simultaneously; or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they relate to

income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either:

= the same taxable entity; or
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 7% HR R B o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BAEERN  BUARKIIR)

| SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(t)  Income tax (Contd)

- different taxable entities, which, in each future period in which
significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered, intend to realise the
current tax assets and settle the current tax liabilities on a net

basis or realise and settle simultaneously.

(u)  Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent liabilities

(i) Financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the issuer (i.e. the
guarantor) to make specified payments to reimburse the beneficiary
of the guarantee (the “holder™) for a loss the holder incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payment when due in accordance with

the terms of a debt instrument.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

| SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(u)  Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent liabilities (Cont @)

Financial guarantees issued (Cont d)

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the fair value of the
guarantee is initially recognised as deferred income within trade and
other payables. The fair value of financial guarantees issued at the
time of issuance is determined by reference to fees charged in an
arm’s length transaction for similar services, when such information
is obtainable, or is otherwise estimated by reference to interest
rate differentials, by comparing the actual rates charged by lenders
when the guarantee is made available with the estimated rates
that lenders would have charged, had the guarantees not been
available, where reliable estimates of such information can be made.
Where consideration is received or receivable for the issuance of
the guarantee, the consideration is recognised in accordance with
the Group's policies applicable to that category of asset. Where no
such consideration is received or receivable, an immediate expense
is recognised in profit or loss on initial recognition of any deferred

income.

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised as deferred income is
amortised in profit or loss over the term of the guarantee as income
from financial guarantees issued. In addition, provisions are recognised
if and when (i) it becomes probable that the holder of the guarantee
will call upon the Group under the guarantee, and (i) the amount of
that claim on the Group is expected to exceed the amount currently
carried in trade and other payables in respect of that guarantee i.e.

the amount initially recognised, less accumulated amortisation.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 7% HR R B o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BAEERN  BUARKIIR)

| SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(u)  Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent liabilities (Cont @)

(i)

Other provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Group or the Company has a legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that an
outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation
and a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value of
money is material, provisions are stated at the present value of the

expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation
is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more future events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless

the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

| SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

\0)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or

receivable. Provided it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to

the Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably,

revenue is recognised in profit or loss as follows:

()

(i)

Sales of properties

Revenue from sales of properties is recognised when the significant
risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the
buyers. The Group considers that the significant risks and rewards
of ownership are transferred when the construction of relevant
properties has been completed and the properties have been

delivered to the buyers.

Revenue from sales of properties excludes business tax or other sales
related taxes and is after deduction of any trade discounts. Deposits
and instalments received on properties sold prior to the date of
revenue recognition are included in the statement of financial position

as receipts in advance.

Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating leases is recognised in profit
or loss in equal instalments over the periods covered by the lease
term, except where an alternative basis is more representative of the
pattern of benefits to be derived from the use of the leased asset.
Lease incentives granted are recognised in profit or loss as an integral
part of the aggregate net lease payments receivable. Contingent
rentals are recognised as income in the accounting period in which

they are earned.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 7% HR R B o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BAEERN  BUARKIIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

v

Revenue recognition (Contd)

(i)

(iv)

)

(vi)

Service fee income

Service fee income in relation to property management service,
advertising service and other ancillary services are recognised when

such services are provided to customers.

Dividends

Dividend income from unlisted investments is recognised when the

shareholder's right to receive payment is established.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the effective interest

method.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the statement of financial
position initially when there is reasonable assurance that they will
be received and that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to them. Grants that compensate the Group for expenses
incurred are recognised as income in profit or loss on a systematic
basis in the same periods in which the expenses are incurred. Grants
that compensate the Group for the cost of inventories are initially
recognised as deferred income and subsequently deducted from the
cost of sales when the inventories are sold upon meeting the relevant

conditions, if any, attaching to them.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

| SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont d)

(W)

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated at the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the end of the reporting period. Exchange gains and losses are

recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the transaction dates. Non-monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies that are stated at fair value are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was

measured.

The results of operations are translated into RMB at the exchange rates
approximating the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates of the
transactions. Statement of financial position items are translated into RMB at

the closing foreign exchange rates at the end of the reporting period.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive

income and accumulated separately in equity in the exchange reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount of the exchange
differences relating to that foreign operation is reclassified from equity to

profit or loss when the profit or loss on disposal is recognised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 7% HR R B o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BAEERN  BUARKIIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(x)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of an asset which necessarily takes a substantial period of time
to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of
that asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they

are incurred,

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of a qualifying asset
commences when expenditure for the asset is being incurred, borrowing
costs are being incurred and activities that are necessary to prepare the
asset for its intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation of borrowing
costs is suspended or ceases when substantially all the activities necessary
to prepare the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are interrupted or

complete.

Non-current assets held for sale

A non-current asset (or disposal group) is classified as held for sale if it is
highly probable that its carrying amount will be recovered through a sale
transaction rather than through continuing use and the asset (or disposal
group) is available for sale in its present condition. A disposal group is a
group of assets to be disposed of together as a group in a single transaction,
and liabilities directly associated with those assets that will be transferred in

the transaction.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

| SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

()

Non-current assets held for sale (Cont d)

Immediately before classification as held for sale, the measurement of the
non-current assets (and all individual assets and liabilities in a disposal group)
is brought up-to-date in accordance with the accounting policies before the
classification. Then, on initial classification as held for sale and until disposal,
the non-current assets (except for certain assets as explained below), or
disposal groups, are recognised at the lower of their carrying amount and
fair value less costs to sell. The principal exceptions to this measurement
policy so far as the financial statements of the Group and the Company are
concemed are deferred taxation. These assets, even if held for sale, would
continue to be measured in accordance with the policies set out elsewhere

in note |.

Impairment losses on initial classification as held for sale, and on subsequent
remeasurement while held for sale, are recognised in profit or loss. As
long as a non-current asset is classified as held for sale, or is included in a
disposal group that is classified as held for sale, the non-current asset is not

depreciated or amortised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 7% HR R B o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BAEERN  BUARKIIR)

| SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(z) Related parties

(@ A person, or a close member of that person’s family is related to the

Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iify s a member of the key management personnel of the Group

or the Group's parent.

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following conditions
applies:

() The entity and the Group are members of the same group
(which means that each parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary

is related to the others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or
an associate or joint venture of a member of a group of which

the other entity is a member).

(i) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other

entity is an associate of the third entity.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BRI

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)
(z)  Related parties (Contd)

(b)  (Contd)

(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit
of employees of either the Group or an entity related to the

Group.

(vi)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the key management personnel of the

entity (or of a parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those family members who
may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that person in their

dealings with the entity.

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 7% HR R B o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BAEERN  BUARKIIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(aa)

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item reported in the
consolidated financial statements, are identified from the financial information
provided regularly to the Group's most senior executive management for
the purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the performance of,

the Group's various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for financial
reporting purposes unless the segments have similar economic characteristics
and are similar in respect of the nature of products and services, the nature
of production processes, the type or class of customers, the methods used
to distribute the products or provide the services, and the nature of the
regulatory environment. Operating segments which are not individually

material may be aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND ESTIMATES

(@)  Critical accounting judgements in applying the group’s accounting policies

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies, management has

made the following accounting judgements:

()

Classification between inventories, owner-occupied properties and

investment properties

The Group develops property projects with an initial intention to
be held for sale and retains a portion of properties held for own
use. The Group also has plans to retain a portion of properties as
investment properties to earn rentals or for capital appreciation or
both. Judgement is made by management in determining whether a
property is designated as a property held for sale, owner-occupied
property or an investment property. The Group considers its
intention for holding the properties at the early development stage
of the related properties. During the course of development, the
related properties under development are accounted for as (I)
properties under development included in current assets if the
properties are intended for sale after their completion; (2) owner-
occupied properties included in properties, plant and equipment if the
properties are intended for own use; and (3) investment properties
under construction if the properties are intended to be held to eam

rentals and/or for capital appreciation.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 7% HR R B o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BAEERN  BUARKIIR)

2 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND ESTIMATES (Conta)

(b)  Sources of estimation uncertainty

Notes 26, 28 and 31 contain information about the assumptions and their
risk factors relating to the fair value of redeemable convertible preference
shares issued, fair value of share options granted and fair value of financial

instruments. Other key sources of estimation uncertainty are as follows:

(i) Impairment of inventories

As explained in note I(m), the Group's land held for future
development, properties under development and completed
properties held for sale are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Based on the Group's recent experience and the
nature of the subject property, the Group makes estimates of the
selling price, the costs of completion in case for properties under

development, and the costs to be incurred in selling the properties.

If there is an increase in costs to completion or a decrease in net sales
value, provision for completed properties held for sale, properties
held for future development and under development for sale may be
resulted. Such provision requires the use of judgment and estimates.
Where the expectation is different from the original estimate, the
carrying value and provision for properties in the periods in which

such estimate is changed will be adjusted accordingly.

Given the volatility of the PRC property market and the distinctive
nature of individual properties, the actual outcomes in terms of costs
and revenue may be higher or lower than estimated at the end of the
reporting period. Any increase or decrease in the provision would

affect profit or loss in future years.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND ESTIMATES (Conta)

(b)  Sources of estimation uncertainty (Cont d)

(i)

(i)

Recognition of deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised and measured based on the
expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount
of the assets, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the
end of the reporting period. In determining the carrying amounts
of deferred tax assets, expected taxable profits are estimated
which involves a number of assumptions relating to the operating
environment of the Group and require a significant level of judgment
exercised by the directors. Any change in such assumptions and
judgment would affect the carrying amounts of deferred tax assets to

be recognised and hence the net profit in future years.

Provision for PRC Land Appreciation Tax (“PRC LAT")

As explained in note 6(b), the Group has estimated, made and
included in tax provision for PRC LAT according to the requirements
set forth in the relevant PRC tax laws and regulations. The actual PRC
LAT liabilities are subject to the determination by the tax authorities
upon completion of the property development projects and the tax
authorities might disagree with the basis on which the provision for
PRC LAT is calculated. Significant judgment is required in determining
the level of provision, as the calculation of which depends on the
ultimate tax determination. Given the uncertainties of the calculation
basis of PRC LAT as interpreted by the local tax bureau, the actual
outcomes may be higher or lower than those estimated at the
end of the reporting period. Any increase or decrease in the actual
outcomes/estimates will impact the income tax provision in the

period in which such determination is made.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 7% HR R B o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BAEERN  BUARKIIR)

2 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND ESTIMATES (Conta)

(b)  Sources of estimation uncertainty (Cont d)

(iv)  Recognition and allocation of construction costs on properties

under development

Development costs of properties are recorded as properties under
development during construction stage and will be transferred to
profit or loss upon the recognition of the sales of the properties.
Before the final settlement of the development costs and other costs
relating to the sales of the properties, these costs are accrued by the

Group based on management's best estimates.

(v)  Fair value of non-derivative financial instruments

Fair value of non-derivative financial instruments carried at amortised
costs, which is determined for disclosure purpose, is calculated based
on the present value of future principal and interest cash flows,

discounted at the market rate of interest at the reporting date.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TURNOVER AND SEGMENT REPORTING

The principal activities of the Group are development, sales and operation of

commercial trade and logistics centers and residential properties in the PRC.

Turnover represents income from sales of properties, property management
services income and rental income net of business tax and other sales related taxes

and is after deduction of any trade discounts.

The amounts of each significant category of revenue recognised in turnover during

the year are as follows:

B HRAR M &

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BAEEBI  WUAAREIIR)
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2013 2012

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TR ARBTT

Sales of properties MEHE 4,748,766 1,605,907
Property management services MEER RS 7,027 847
Rental income AEkA 671 360
4,756,464 1,607,114

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item reported in the
consolidated financial statements, are identified from the financial data and
information provided regularly to the Group's most senior executive management
for the purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the performance of,
the Group's various lines of business and geographical locations. No segment
information is presented in respect of the Group's operating segment as the Group
is principally engaged in one segment in the PRC. The Group does not operate in

any other geographical or business segment during the year.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt B SRR MY RE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BAEERN  BUARKIIR)

4 OTHER REVENUE AND OTHER NET INCOME,(LOSS)

4  HttWBREMKA(BR)FE

2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®FR ARETT
Other revenue Hit s
Dividend income BREWA 4019 —
Others Hith 1,334 1,377
5,353 1,377
Other net income/(loss) Herl A/ (B8) 38
Net gains on disposal of available-for-sale HERAHEERERG 5
investments 14,562 —
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment &Y% « BE KR EEE — )
14,562 5)
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5

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

(a) Finance income and finance costs

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BRI

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BAEEBI  WUAAREIIR)

5 BRBATAE

BB A MEEAR/(GEA) TS RE

/8
=

(a) HBEURARBERLEX

2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®FR ARBETT
Finance income S
Interest income FEWA (11,079) (1,374)
Finance costs BMEMA
Interest on bank loans and
other borrowings RITERREMEENTE 108,558 61,928
Less: interest expense capitalised into B BRMEBAERYED
properties under development * FERZ* (107,977) (61,639)
581 289
Net foreign exchange loss X BR%E 3,602 1,548
Finance expense on redeemable I (o] m] 2 PR 12 52 AR B 7S
convertible preference shares 53 66,000 71,404
70,183 73,241
t The borrowing costs have been capitalised at rates ranging from 6.40% & HZEI3F12A3IHIEFELRE

to 17.00% per annum for the year ended 3| December 2013 (2012:

6.65%-17.00% per annum).

ERARIR6.40%% | 7.00%H) &

BHRERL (20012F : BF
6.65%ZE 17.00%) °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 7% HR R B o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BAEERN  BUARKIIR)

5  PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (Contd) 5 BRBAEFEE)
(b)  Staff costs: (b) EIFHZE:
2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T R ARETT

Contributions to defined contribution TR FURIK

retirement plans BE] 7,402 3,138
Salaries, wages and other benefits e TEREMER 147,792 66,352
Equity settled share-based payment PARE & 45 B DARR D S 1 R Y
expenses (Note 28) iz (FfizE28) 5,707 6,109
160,901 75,599
(c) Other items: (c) BRMHER :
2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®BTR ARBTT
Depreciation and amortisation EREH 16,361 8,220
Auditors’ remuneration ZERE £
— Audit services — B R 2,246 139
— Tax advisory services — BB ARE — 12
Operating lease charges REREX N 10,129 7,420
Cost of properties sold (note i) EEMEMA (ML) 1,817,539 829,265
(i) Cost of properties sold is after netting off benefits from government grants of (i) BEENERAZTEMBREZ20135
RMB620,938,000 for the year ended 31 December 2013 (2012: RMB285,162,000). 2A3IBILFENBAHEARE

620938000 TTEBH (2012F : AR
#85,162,0007T) ©
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BRI

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BAEEBI  WUAAREIIR)

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT 6 AHBERRANREH
OR LOSS
(@)  Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit or loss represents: @) EHERRANTER:
2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTT AREFT
Current tax B EI B
PRC Corporate Income Tax (“PRC CIT") REIREMER([PERERES]) 473,453 259,309
PRC LAT (note iv) H B+ R E T (PR T iv) 687,289 60,907
Under-provision in respect of prior years WEFEBBEIRE
(note v) (FfzEv) 16,782
1,177,524 320216
Deferred tax EEBE
Origination and reversal of TR EENEE
temporary differences K (28,628) (74,725)
1,148,896 245491
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 7% HR R B o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BEZHERIN  IUARKIIR)

6  INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT 6 BHEERANAERE)
OR LOSS (Contd)
(b)  Reconciliation between income tax and accounting profit at applicable tax (b) FIBHERBERNHEIENGHT
rates: HANHE
2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TR ARET T

Profit before taxation Bt A A E 2,324,859 460,282
Notional tax on profit before taxation, LEBRRERNF B E

calculated at the rates applicable TR AR ATA R &

to profits in the countries concerned HENE 634,772 210,254
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses A HB A OB BT E 11,023 5453
Tax effect of non-taxable income BARHRBANT K ZE (1,005) —
Tax effect of unused tax losses AERRSARBEEEN

not recognised HBTE 8,987 298
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses &) A 5% Bl R A 53 i 1E /ES 18 (322) 0
Withholding tax on distributable F B F 2RI A 2K s A A TR

profits of PRC subsidiaries 63,038 —
PRC LAT (note iv) B L 3B AR (P e iv) 687,289 60,907
Tax effect on PRC LAT FE T IR ETR SR E (171,822) (15,227)
Tax effect of adopting prescribed tax HEFARIRAIEENIE

calculation method by SERENBBZE (M)

a PRC subsidiary (note iii) — (16,193)
Tax concessions (note iii) HEEE (M) (99,846) —
Under-provision in respect of NEFEERETRE (M)

prior years (note v) 16,782 —
Total income tax Frigmies 1,148,896 24549
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6  INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT
OR LOSS (Contd)

(b)

Reconciliation between income tax and accounting profit at applicable tax

rates: (Cont'd)

0

(i)

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands, the Group is not

subject to any income tax in this jurisdiction.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax was made as the Group did not eamn

any income subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax for the year (2012: Nil).

PRC CIT

The Group's PRC subsidiaries are subject to statutory tax rate of 25% on
their assessable profits. According to the approval from the tax authority
in Ningxiang, Hunan Province, Ningxiang Hydoo Guangcai Trade Center
Development Company Limited's assessable profits were calculated based on

10% of its gross income for the year ended 31 December 2012.

In July 2013, Ganzhou Hydoo Commercial and Trade Logistics Park
Development Co,, Ltd. (“Ganzhou Trade Center”) was approved to enjoy
a preferential PRC CIT rate of 5% for the years from 2012 to 2020
according to a tax notice issued by the local tax bureau. The preferential tax
treatment was based on various tax rules and regulations in relation to the
PRC government's strategy in encouraging investment and development of

wholesale trading markets in certain regions of China.

B HRAR M &

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BAEEBI  WUAAREIIR)

6 AHERRANREH(F

(b) FERERERBRTENETH
HHHER: (&)

(i)

RERSEBRAULER &
SERZAEERBARBIE
FMEH

R N B4 A 3 4 R ERAE ]
BRMEBRNEROBA - &
WERBENGH T RER
(202F : &) o

PR RAEH

AEEMTETARARLE
RBLF B IR25% K AT TR
o BRENEEEBETBHE
HEHE  ERRELVES
&% 7 % B IR A 76 JE R LRI
HREEHZ2012F 128318
HEEBRAR0%:HE

013578 - ENBEEEWR
BRZERAR ( [EMEE
wmiRFL] ) BRERFRER
BHHOTBBMERB20125F
F00FZX I5%REBEEHH
PERERIE - ZHBER
RERAFERNRBTFEE
THEEEREREEMRE
KBR A @R % B BRI R
Yoy e
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 7% HR R B o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BAEERN  BUARKIIR)

6  INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT
OR LOSS (Contd)

(b)  Reconciliation between income tax and accounting profit at applicable tax

rates: (Cont'd)
(W) PRCLAT

PRC LAT which is levied on properties developed for sale by the Group in
the PRC, at progressive rates ranging from 30% to 60% on the appreciation
value, which under the applicable regulations is calculated based on the
proceeds of sales of properties less deductible expenditures including
lease charges of land use rights, borrowing costs and all qualified property
development expenditures. Deferred tax assets arising from PRC LAT
accrued are calculated based on the applicable income tax rates when they

are expected to be cleared.

In addition, certain subsidiaries of the Group were subject to PRC LAT which
were calculated based on 5% to 8% of their revenue in accordance with the

authorised tax valuation method approved by respective local tax bureau.

(v)  On24 May 2013, Hydoo Estate (Ganzhou) Company Limited (“Hydoo Estate
(Ganzhou)") reached a tax settlement with local tax bureaus and subsequently
paid RMB16,782,000 for certain prior years' PRC CIT exposures.

The directors of the Company are of the opinion that the authorised tax
valuation method is one of the allowable taxation methods in the PRC
and the respective local tax bureaus are the competent tax authorities to
approve the authorised tax valuation method in charging PRC CIT and PRC
LAT to the respective PRC subsidiaries of the Group, and the risk of being
challenged by the State Administration of Taxation or any tax bureau of

higher authority is remote.
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(b) FERERERBRTENETH
HHHER: (&)

(v) HEHIEETR

AEBHENFRAMBAEY
X ERBEERN0%E60%
) RET R0 B L ih3g(E
B BIBEERRG - RE L
EETRIREEYEGTE
AR (BELER
BRESE - EERARMA
BERYERERY) 5tE -
REFHPE LB ERELRN
BB HEEENMIMEREE
FHREAA e RS -

WA AEEME T T ARYS
BEMTELTIEER B8
BEREBSEHIREBL
R AT AR B A EER
AP S 5% = 8%t & -

v) REEX (BM) BRAA
(IHEEZ (M) 1) R
2013F5 A24 B B A TS R
B —IBR BRI - 3 FE
PUNGEENFRECEMEH
JESB T T AR H 16,782,000

TG ©

ARBEERR - AEZARAH
AR AR T ER AT AL
— MAKESEFRERAELA
BT R R BIEZSTRRIAZ
TR BB TFRREMERK
BB+ MIRER A T E TR
AXBZRBBRBREN LREE
RBHBERNERTAK -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BRI

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BEERBIN BAARKIIR)

7  DIRECTORS REMUNERATION 7 EBHM
Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 161 of the Hong Kong BREBFBRAGHE 6 KRBENESS
Companies Ordinance is as follows: BT -

For the year ended 3| December 2013
BENBFNA3IBLEE

Salaries Equity settled

allowances and Retirement share-based

benefits in kind scheme payment

H&-  contrbutions  WEHFE
Directors’ fee RER B DR R Total
Bz BNEN SRR EROAR @t

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR AREBTR AR®TR ARETR ARETR

Executive directors: BITES:
Wong Cholhing THA 5,000 1,945 — 472 7417
Wang Dewen* Tt = 559 6 = 565
Huang Dehong** BEL 1,500 589 7 136 2232
Non-executive director: FUTES:
Yuan Bing RE - - - - -
Independent non-executive BUFHTES !

directors™:
Yang Xianzu BER 201 - - 67 268
Wang Lianzhou TiEM 201 — - 67 268
Lam, Chi Yuen Nelson HEE 200 - - 67 27

7,102 3,093 13 809 11,017
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Annual Report 2013 £ #



160

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 7% HR R B o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BAEERN  BUARKIIR)

7  DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Contd) 7

ESFME)

For the year ended 3| December 2012
HEWNF A3 BILEE

Salaries
allowances and

benefits in kind

g

Directors’ fee EHR
0k ENiEh|
RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTT ARETRT

Equity settled

Retirement share-based

scheme payment

contributions S FHE
BRI L] Total
AR EROEK @t
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000

ARBTT AREBTT ARBTT

Executive directors: HOES !

Wong Choihing THE — 3,136 — 885 4021

Wang Dewen* FiEw* — 2,604 9 — 2613

Non-executive director: FHTES .

Yuan Bing RE - - - - -
— 5740 9 885 6,634

& Resigned in March 2013.

**  Appointed in March 2013.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, no amount was paid or payable by the
Company to the directors or any of the 5 highest paid individuals set out in note
8 as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss
of office. There was no arrangement under which a director waived or agreed to

waive any remuneration (2012: RMB Nil).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, two (2012: two) are directors

whose emoluments are disclosed in note 7. The emoluments in respect of the

other three (2012: three) individual are as follows:

B HRAR M &

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BAEEBI  WUAAREIIR)

BREHFAL

hEZEeHFALHEMEGQ02E : [

RIRES B

MR BRI - &

M=20Q0NE: =&)ATHFHH M

T
2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T ARETTT
Contributions to defined contribution TE R FURIK

retirement plans BE 68 38
Salaries, allowances and other benefits in kind g RMEREMEYERN 7,350 4817

Equity settled share-based payments PR EE ARG B
(note 28) BRI SR (PR EE 28) 1,188 1323
8,606 6,178

The emoluments of the three (2012: three) individual with the highest emoluments

are within the following bands:

=HQ0NEF : =R )R HATHEHH

HK$2,00,001 — HK$2,500,000
HK$2,500,001 — HK$3,000,000
HK$3,000,001 — HK$3,500,000

2,00,001 ¥ 7T Z 2,500,000 77T
2,500,001 7T 3,000,000 78 7T
3,000,001 T2 3,500,000 7 7T

None of these employees received any inducements or compensation for loss of

office, or waived any emoluments during the year (2012: Nil).

NFUTEE
2013 2012
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
AE N
= 2
2 R
|
FRZSEE Y BT RE o B

e TENREAME (20025 F)-
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 7% HR R B o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BAEERN  BUARKIIR)

9 PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS OF THE 9
COMPANY

The consolidated profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
includes a loss of RMBI178,001,000 (2012: loss of RMB372,556,000) which has been

dealt with in the financial statements of the Company.

Details of dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company are set out in
note 30(f).

10 EARNINGS PER SHARE 10

(@)  Basic earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the profit attributable
to ordinary equity shareholders of the Company of RMBI,177,782,000
(2012: RMB216,506,000) and the weighted average of 2,883,306,000
ordinary shares (2012: 2,414,858,000 ordinary shares after adjusting for the

capitalisation issue in 2013) in issue during the vear, calculated as follows:

(i) Weighted average number of ordinary shares

ARREBRREETE

ARRERBRREEEFNERREER
AR #178,001,00070(2012F : BHE A
R#372,556,0007C) * ke BEAEAAR
HBBRKRET

AR AR R S FEHNM
30(f) °

BREN
() BREXRF

BRERBFIZEARR L BESR
REWGFBAR 177,782,000 7T
(2012 : AR¥216,506,0007T) R
F R E % 172,883,306,0000% (2012
F 1 2,414,858,000 % 7 A% (42013
FEMMCETARR)) SRR M
BTOHHE  BROAT

() BERONEFGE

2013 2012

Immediately after capitalisation issue ~ ZEFE &AL 31T
Effect of Global Offering and automatic 2IKR% & &k B BEHRE LK

. ./,
conversion of preference shares 0%

2,649,744,000 2,414,858,000

233,562,000 —

Weighted average number of ordinary 1 12 A 31 B #)& A%
shares at 3| December INFEFHE

2,883,306,000 2,414,858,000
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EARNINGS PER SHARE (Contd) 10

(b)  Diluted earnings per share

The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based on the profit
attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of the Company of
RMB1,347,053,000 (2012: RMB216,506,000) and the weighted average
of 3,423,092,000 ordinary shares (2012: 2,428,628,000 ordinary shares)

calculated as follows:

(i) Profit attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of the Company
(diluted)

B HRAR M &

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BAEEBI  WUAAREIIR)

BREMN(Z)

(b)

BRBEFRT

BREFBMNEAAFALBERR
BRPE(EFE A R 1,347,053,000 7T
(2012%F © AR ¥2165060007C ) &
3,423,092,000 i & 3 AR &9 A0 4 F
1 #(2012%F : 2428628000 % 3@
RIGRIT :

() FATREREREEGH
B#H)

2013 2012
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARBTT

Profit attributable to ordinary equity

shareholders of the Company AR EBERREEENE 1,177,782 216,506
After tax effect of finance expense on

redeemable convertible preference B 5 Sr % A B [0 A]

shares BELBOTRTE 66,000 -
After tax effect of change in fair value

of embedded derivative on BRARITETARRE

redeemable convertible preference ZBY A ER A%

shares RELRNRETE 103,271 -
Profit attributable to ordinary equity

shareholders of the ARELEERRRER

Company (diluted) FE(EE) 1,347,053 216,506
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt B SRR MY RE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BAEERN  BUARKIIR)

10 EARNINGS PER SHARE (Contd)
(b) Diluted earnings per share (Contd)

0 EBRERGE)

b) SREIRAE)

(i) Weighted average number of ordinary shares (diluted) (i) BBERNEFGIE(BE)
2013 2012
’000 '000
Tt T
Weighted average number of ordinary shares 72 12 A 31 B#)E @k
at 31 December INFEFHE 2,883,306 2,414,858
Effect of deemed issue of shares under the BEANRNERARAER
Company's Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme TRt 2l Dx(aéiﬂgﬁf'ﬁ
for nil consideration BIIRGO M E 41,704 13,770
Effect of conversion of redeemable B3] B [o] AT 4 %
convertible preference shares BERNTE 498,082 =
Weighted average number of ordinary shares 712 A 31 B &) @R IN#E
at 31 December (diluted) T8 (88) 3,423,092 2,428,628

BHE2012F12831BIEEE
BB AR RESIER -

 HATEET

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the effect of conversion of

redeemable convertible preference shares was anti-dilutive.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BRI

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BEERBIN BAARKIIR)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT I 9% BERRE
Motor Office
Buildings vehicles equipment Total
BF RE WARE D
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARBTRT AR%Trn AR¥TR AR%Tn
Cost: B
At | January 2012 R2012F 1 A1 H — 22,568 4,562 27,130
Additions AE 9,559 17,985 9276 36,820
Disposals HE — (5414) 361) (5,775)
At 3| December 2012 /1 January 2013 7 2012F 128318/
2013F1A1A8 9,559 35,139 13,477 58,175
Additions RE = 21,522 9,351 30873
Acquisitions through business BBEBGE O MARE
combination (note 29(b)) (FiEE29(b)) — 327 424 751
At 31 December 2013 R20I3F 12831 H 9,559 56,988 23252 89,799
Accumulated depreciation: R2ItIHE:
At | January 2012 R212F1A18 — 3,452 999 4,451
Charge for the year FRX M — 6,132 2,067 8,199
Written back on disposal H & R ) — (90) 32) (122)
At 3| December 2012 /1 January 2013 7 2012F 128318/
2013F1A1H — 9,494 3,034 12,528
Charge for the year FAXH 454 10,807 4,979 16,240
At 31 December 2013 R20I3F 12831 H 454 20,301 8,013 28,768
Net book value: IREEE -
At 3| December 2013 R2013F 124318 9,105 36,687 15,239 61,031
At 31 December 2012 R2012F 12831 H 9,559 25,645 10,443 45,647
The buildings are all situated on land in the PRC. sy e Ay AN BB o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt B SRR MY RE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BAEERN  BUARKIIR)

12 INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE

12 REELENER

The Group
AEE
2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARETTT

Share of net assets

NEBEFE

Representing:

The Group had the following interest in a joint venture:

i
AEERGELENREFBRT

Effective interest

Date and place of Registered/ held registered
establishment paid-in capital by the Group
Name of company aF B 32 a1 rEEREN Principal activities
DARERE BE RIS EhEX B ER FERE
usb 20126 2013F
e 2012 2013
Ganxian Haode Highway 12 May 2008 7,750,000 N/A N/A Highway
Construction Co,, Ltd. The PRC TiEH TEA construction
BERELNERERERAR*  2008%F5A8 128 and operation
i RERRNEE
& The entity is a PRC limited liability company. The English translation of the company * RERATENBRALRR  AF
name is for reference only. The official name of the company is in Chinese. BBORXBEERSS - ZRRN
BEHAREABX -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE (Contd)

Summary financial information on the joint venture

Assets
RMB000

12

Liabilities
A
RMB000

ARBTLE  ARETR

B HRAR M &

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BAEEBI  WUAAREIIR)

REELRNER(E)

ARSELENNBERYER
Profit/(loss)
for the period
Equity Revenve  HAFIE/
i Wg (B#8)
RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000

ARBTE  ARETR  ARETR

At 28 June 2012 R201256A28H
60 per cent 60%
Group's effective interest SEMERER 65,033

36,648

28385 1,549 G111

On 28 June 2012, the Group disposed of its 60% equity interests in the joint
venture to a related party owned by Mr. Wong Choihing and Mr. Wang
Quanguang (certain of the controlling shareholders, see note i) for a consideration
of USD4,650,000 (equivalent to RMB29,543,000). The total consideration was
net off against the Group's liability to the Controlling Shareholders. For the
purpose of these financial statements, the gain on disposal of the joint venture of
RMB9,604,000 is regarded as capital contribution by the Controlling Shareholders
in2012.

(i) Mr. Wong Choihing and Mr. Wang Quanguang together with Mr. Wang Dewen,
Mr. Wang Jianli, Mr. Wang Desheng, Mr. Wang Dekai, Mr. Huang Dehong and Mr.
Wong Sheungtak are the controlling shareholders of the Group (“the Controlling
Shareholders™).

R012F6A28H  KEBBENREE
TENOBRELETTEREERT
SREE(ERNZERRE - RIE)ES
RBEEE 7 - H 1B B4650000F (&
RAR®295430007T) « B BIAKE
BRERERRENBERE - RARHK
REME  HEAELENUREARE
9,604,000 L4 15 A= AR AR 3R 2012 F FT1E
EE o
() TEREE ITE2XELE TEXE
o TREALE TERAE TE
REE BEERLERTERELLER
A& B R ([HERRARER D) ©
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 7% HR R B o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BAEERN  BUARKIIR)

13 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

(@)  Other non-current financial assets

13 HitemEE
) HttERBEMEE

The Group
A&
2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TR ARET T

Available-for-sale unlisted equity securities A EIE TR E S

23,618 19,800

(b)  Available-for-sale investments

(b) THHERE

The Group
* 58
2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®BFR ARETT

Wealth management products A Em

120,000

At 31 December 2013, the available-for-sale investments represented short-

term unlisted wealth management products issued by banks in the PRC.

As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, the directors considered that the

Group's other financial assets were not impaired.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

B HRAR M &

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BEERBIN BAARKIIR)

14 SHMBRRRABFEH

FINANCIAL POSITION
(@) Current taxation in the consolidated statement of financial position ) EHFBRRERANDIEHIEE
represents:

The Group
rEH
2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T R ARETT

Current tax assets: AEARIEEE

PRC CIT B EEH 6,930 13,346

PRC LAT B £ I E 104,832 81,884
111,762 95,230

Current tax liabilities: AEFEEE

PRC CIT R EAEH 455,594 221517

PRC LAT Bt g E R 477,388 4176
932,982 225,693
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 7% HR R B o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BAEERN  BUARKIIR)

14 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 14 AHMERRRANHEHE)
FINANCIAL POSITION (Contd)
(b)  Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised: () CRIABLHBEERAE:

() The components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognised in the ()  REftBBRARERNR
consolidated statement of financial position and the movements EHBEE/(BE)NEK
during the year are as follows: WD RENNEEWT

Withholding
tax on
Temporary distributable
difference on profits of PRC
advertising subsidiaries
costs  Deferred Accrial  HEIFAF
Tax losses ELE income ~ expenditure A 7 K& Total

HEEFR ERMEZR  BERKA  EHREx RAH it
RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO
ARBTL ARETR ARMTL ARETR ARETR ARETR

Deferred tax assets T REEEN

arising from: BEHEEE
At | January 2012 RNFIAIR 2033 6,544 38493 45) = 4750
Credited/(charged) to

the consolidated statement  NAFHERR

of proft or loss A/ (k) (872) 70 75517 — — 74725
At 31 December 2012 RWNENA3IA 16l 6,614 114020 452 - 122247
At | January 2013 RWI3EIAIR L6l 6,614 114,020 452 — 122247
Credited/(charged) to

the consolidated statement  INAHHER K

of profit or loss A/ (H18) 9304 (1981) 84,795 (452)  (63038) 28628
At 31 December 2013 RWNBENA3IA 10465 4633 198815 - (63038) 150,875
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BRI

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BAEEBI  WUAAREIIR)

14 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 14 AHMERRRANHEHE)
FINANCIAL POSITION (Contd)
(b)  Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised: (Cont d) b)) EEIEBEEHEEEREE:
(%)
(i))  Reconciliation to the consolidated statement of financial position (i) EHHBREZEHE
The Group
A&

2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®BFR ARBETT

Deferred tax assets recognised

in the consolidated statement RE HE B R KR

of financial position EREMIEEE 213,913 122,247
Deferred tax liabilities recognised

in the consolidated statement RE B R R ERD

of financial position EREMEEE (63,038) —

150,875 122,247

HYDOO INTERNATIONAL HOLDING LIMITED @ EIRZRER A 7 171
Annual Report 2013 4 #



172

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 7% HR R B o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BAEERN  BUARKIIR)

14 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION (Contd)

(c) Deferred tax assets not recognised

In accordance with the accounting policy set out in note |(t), the Group
has not recognised deferred tax assets in respect of cumulative tax losses
of certain subsidiaries of RMB36,032,000 as at 3|1 December 2013 (2012:
RMBI,371,000). The directors consider it is not probable that future taxable
profits against which the losses can be utilised will be available from these

subsidiaries.

The unrecognised tax losses will expire by the end of the following years, if

14 AHBBRARAINHAEHRE)

(0 REIELHEAEE

RIRFT T | (1) FTE A & 5T ERR - 1Y
2013F 128318 AEEL KR
ETFRARAMEFBEEEAR
#36,032,0007C(2012F : AR ¥
1,371,0007C) ERELEFHBEE ©
BEERATAIRBZSTRAE
B B RE S BB A R SR FE R BRI
i o

R RAEEER - REEROBIRE R

unused: R T EHEREEM
The Group
AEE

2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T AREFT
2017 — |70
2018 84 [,201
2019 35,948 —

HYDOO INTERNATIONAL HOLDING LIMITED R EZBBRZERER A 7
Annual Report 2013 4 $§



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

14 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION (Contd)

(d)

Deferred tax liabilities not recognised

The PRC CIT Law and its implementation rules impose a withholding tax at
109%, unless reduced by a tax treaty or arrangement, for dividends distributed
by PRC-resident enterprises to their non-PRC-resident corporate investors
for profits earned since | January 2008. Under the Sino-Hong Kong Double
Tax Agreement, a qualified Hong Kong tax resident is entitled to a reduced
withholding tax rate of 5% if the Hong Kong tax resident is the “beneficial
owner’ and holds 25% or more of the equity interest of the PRC enterprise

directly.

Since the Group could control the quantum and timing of distribution of
profits of the Group's subsidiaries in the PRC, deferred tax liabilities are only
provided to the extent that such profits are expected to be distributed in

the foreseeable future.

At 31 December 2013, the aggregate amounts of undistributed profits of the
Group's PRC subsidiaries in respect of which the Group has not provided
for dividend withholding tax were approximately RMB995,334,000 (2012:
RMB941,083,000) as the Company controls the dividend policy of these
subsidiaries and it has been determined that it is probable that the profits

will not be distributed in the foreseeable future.

B HRAR M &

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BAEEBI  WUAAREIIR)

14 AHBBRARAINHAEHRE)

(d)

AERELERERE

RE R EMETEREE AR
- B2008F | AIBRE - AEE
RAZEAPMRRAEmEIEREE
REFEREED KRS AMM 10%
WM - RIFRBER KB ER L
BEEITHOR - BB BEEHM L
B MEEABRERERTEMEN
[BRBEAATEZEBSAR 5%
DA ERRHE - BIRTZ B 5% B R T2
MBETE

ARAREEEHARETE TR
AlRE BN BERERE - SAK
EEAEZEMERRSRAERLA
FREOERTARETCHER

&

R2013F 128318 AEE R
RABER SEMBE ER T B E
RAIZADRMBBBLORAR
#995,3340007C (20125 : AR
941,083,0007C) * A ARE BZEH]
ZEFLRNREBKARETH
A ERABRERRDEEF -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 7% HR R B o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BAEERN  BUARKIIR)

I5 INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 15 RFDANEDR
The Company
VNG|
2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB000

AR®TR ARETTT

Unlisted investment, at cost BRAGTERMIELTIRE 79 81
Amounts due from subsidiaries G /NI S| 833,847 859,640
833,926 859,721

The balances with subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed terms RFRBNEHAEER  RENERTER

&=

of repayment. The balances are expected to be recovered after more than one By o ZEREARTEHN —F AR KM -

year.
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15

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Contd)

The following list contains the particulars of principal subsidiaries of the Group at

31 December 2013. The class of shares held is ordinary unless otherwise stated.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B HRAR M &

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)
(BREEBS - HUARKIIT)
15 RFRANERE)
TREJNRNEBER2013F12A318H
FEFRAINSEE -KRISAHA B
BIFT A R AR AL R o

Proportion of ownership interest

Date and place of FrA LAl
incorporation Particulars Group’s
and business of registered and effective Held by the Held by a
AR L B H paid up capital interest Company subsidiary Principal
Name of company R HAR dftk  AEEH PN iR activities
NAER Renk BhEAHE ERER BE TLEARAE TEXH
Hongkong Hydoo Group 8 January 2002 HK$ 10,000,000/ 100% 100% - Investment
Investment Company Limited Hong Kong HK$100,000 management
EAREEEREARAT 20024 1 A 18H 10,000,000 7T,/ REER
) 10,0008 7T
Hongkong Hydoo Holding Limited 25 March 2013 HK$ 10,000,000/ 100% 100% - Investment
BERBEERERAA Hong Kong HKSNIl management
013%F3825H 1000000077,/ RAEE
&% T
Hydoo Estate (Ganzhou) Company 16 July 2002 USD22,050,000/ 100% — 100% Property
Limited The PRC USD22,050,000 development
REER (BM) BRAFN 200257 A 168 22050000% 7T,/ and investment
i 22,050,000 7T holding
VIEEES
RREEKR
Ningxiang Hydoo Guangcai 6 August 2009 RMB60,000,000/ 100% - 100% Property
Trade Center Development The PRC RMB60,000,000 development
Company Limited 2009%8A6A ARE NRFEHE
(“Ningxiang Property Development) 60,000,0007T,/
ERREAVEDES ARE
FREBRAA 60,000,000 7C
(FE8n%mE%])
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt B SRR MY RE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BAEERN  BUARKIIR)

I5 INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Contd)

I5 RFARNERE)

Proportion of ownership interest

Date and place of gt 14!

incorporation Particulars Group's

and business of registered and effective Held by the Held by a

AR L B H paid up capital interest Company subsidiary Principal

Name of company R EUAR & FEEN PN - activities

C Bews BREFHRE HRES BR FLARAE TEEH

Jining Hydoo Modem I3 January 2010 RMB30,000,000/ 100% - 100% Property
Industrial Company The PRC RMB30,000,000 development
Limited 010614138 AR 300000007,/ mER%

EERRANERERAR FE AR 300000007

Jining Hydoo Logistics Center 2 February 2010 RMB200,000,000/ 100% - 100% Property
Development Company Limited The PRC RMB200,000,000 development

EERRMRARS 01062728 AR%2000000007T, ESES
AR F AR 200,000,000 7T

Mianyang West Modem 20 December 2010 RMB200,000,000/ 100% — 100% Property
Trade Center Development The PRC RMB200,000,000 development
Company Limited 2010128208 AR 2000000007,/ SRS

BEREERRRY G AR 2000000007
REERAR*

Guangxi Yulin Modemn 22 March 2011 RMB220,000,000/ 100% — 100% Property
Trade Center Development The PRC RMB220,000,000 development
Company Limited 01138028 AR¥2200000007T,/ Sk

BREHARDR G AR¥ 2000000077,/

REERAR*

Ningxiang Hydoo Guangcai [5 Apnil 201 | RMB3,000,000/ 100% — 100% Property
Trade Center Property Services The PRC RMB3,000,000 management
Company Limited 011F4A8158  ARE3000,0007,/ services

ERRBAVESES FEl AR 30000007 MEERRS
WERBARLDA
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Contd)

B HRAR M &

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BAEEBI  WUAAREIIR)

I5 RFARNERE)

Proportion of ownership interest

Date and place of gt 14!
incorporation Particulars Group's
and business of registered and effective Held by the Held by a
AR L B H paid up capital interest Company subsidiary Principal
Name of company R EUAR & FEEN PN - activities
RAER Bews BhEAHE ERER BR FLARAE TEEH
Jining Hydoo Modern 2 September 201 | USD99,000,000/ 100% - 100% Property
Logistics Company Limited The PRC USD%9,000,000 management
EERERAMRERAR 011F9A28 99,000,000 % 7T,/ services
i 99,000000% 7T NEEERS
Shenzhen Hydoo Investment 27 October 2011 RMB30,000,000/ 100% - 100% Investment
Management Company Limited The PRC RMB30,000,000 management
A MEREEERERAA 20119108278 AR 300000007,/ REER
F AR 300000007
Yulin Hydoo Property 4 January 2012 RMB!,000,000/ 100% — 100% Property
Management Services Co, Ltd. The PRC RMBI,000,000 management
INRENEEE WRFIA4E AR¥1,0000007/ senvices
REARAR* E AR 1,000,000 7T NEERRS
Ganzhou Hydoo Commercial 5March 2012 RMB800,000,000/ 100% - 100% Property
and Trade Logistics Park The PRC RMB800,000,000 development
Development Co, Ltd. WNEIASE  AR¥8000000007T, MERE
(“Ganzhou Trade Center") i A 800,000,000 70
ENBREREDREFRE
ARRA*([BMEEMRD L)
Wuzhou Hydoo Commercial and 4 May 2012 RMB300,000,000/ 100% — 100% Property
Trade Center Development Co, Ltd. ~ The PRC RMB300,000,000 development
BHREHEMARR 0125848 ARE3000000007/ ESES
e YN il AR 3000000007
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 7% HR R B o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BAEERN  BUARKIIR)

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Contd) 15 RFRANERE)
Proportion of ownership interest
Date and place of gt 14!
incorporation Particulars Group's
and business of registered and effective Held by the Held by a
AR L B H paid up capital interest Company subsidiary Principal
Name of company R EUAR & FEEN PN - activities
RAER Bews BhEAHE ERER BR FLARAE TEEH
Mianyang Hydoo Property 10 July 2012 RMB!,000,000/ 100% - 100% Property
Services Company Limited The PRC RMBI,000,000 management
BERENEREERAR 012F7A108  AR¥1,0000007/ services
i AR 1,000,0007T NEERRH
Yantai Hydoo Commercial 12 December 2013 USD$,000,000/ 100% - 100% Trading of
Trade Company Limited The PRC USD6,000,000 Building Related
EeRREERRAR 013128128 Materils
G 6,000000%7T,/ HERE
60000005 7T ey
Jining Hydoo Commercial 12 November 2012 RMB2,000,000/ 100% - 100% Property
Operation and Management The PRC RMB2,000,000 management
Company Limited WREIANA  AR%20000007,/ services
BEREAXELER F AER%2,0000007C NEEERS
BRAF
Xingning Hydoo Commercial and 27 December 2012 RMB200,000,000/ 80% - 80% Property
Trade Center Company Limited The PRC RMB60,000,000 development
HEREREMRAERAA 20129 128278 AR¥200,0000007T,/ ESES
F AR 600000007
Ganzhou Hydoo Property 6 March 2013 RMB3,000,000/ 100% — 100% Property
Services Company Limited The PRC RMB3,000,000 management
#MNRENEREBRAA WI3F3A6H  AR¥3,0000007/ senvices
il AR%3,0000007C NEERR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BRI

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BAEEBI  WUAAREIIR)

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Contd)

I5

R¥DRNER(E)

Proportion of ownership interest

Date and place of Pt pl

incorporation Particulars Group's

and business of registered and effective Held by the Held by a

B A & paid up capital interest Company subsidiary Principal

Name of company R EUAR & FEEN PN - activities

AL BEws BRELHRE ERER BE TLAREA FEXY

Yantai Hydoo Intemational 26 March 2013 RMB 83,000,000/ 100% - 100% Property
Commercial and Trade The PRC RMB183,000,000 development
Center Company Limited 13%3A268 AR 1830000007t/ SRS

EaRREREENARL A RE ARE 1830000007

Lanzhou Hydoo Commercial 20 May 2013 RMB300,000,000/ 100% - 100% Property
and Trade Center The PRC RMB300,000,000 development
Company Limited 201358208 AR¥3000000007T,/ SRS

BMRERERARAR F AR 300,000,000 7T

Ganzhou Hydoo Commercial 30 May 2013 USD50,000,000/ 100% - 100% Property
and Operation Management The PRC USD30,000,000 management
Company Limited 2013F5A430H 50,000,000 %7,/ services

ENBRRXEEER F 30,000,000 %7 WEEERY
BRAE*

Ganzhou Jiuzhi Property | March 2002 RMBS5,200,000/ 51% — 51% Property
Management Services The PRC RMB5,200,000 management
Company Limited 002F3A 18 AR 520000070,/ services
(“Ganzhou Jiuzhi") i AR¥5,2000007 NEER RSB

NP ORNEERARAR
(rEMmAR])

Heze Hydoo Commercial and 28 September 2012 RMB300,000,000/ 100% - 100% Property
Trade Center Company Limited The PRC RMB300,000,000 development

HERREHRMARN 2012698288 AR 3000000007,/ E e
BRAR* F AR 300,000,000 7T

& These entities are all PRC limited liability companies. The English translation of the e ZEEBHATENEREERA o

company names is for reference only. The official names of these companies are in ARIZWNENTEEHRL2E - %5
Chinese. ARAINEABBATRX °

R013KRNFENAIR EERE
BeENBARENtEEHASEBEXR
IR RS o

The directors consider that no individual non-controlling interest is considered

material to the Group as at 3| December 2013 and 2012.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 7% HR R B o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BAEERN  BUARKIIR)

16  INVENTORIES 6 #E
(@) Inventories in the consolidated statement of financial position comprise: ) AHUBRREANFEERSE:
2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T R ARETT
Property development LESE
Properties under development for sale FEEEME 2,043,265 1,369,488
Completed properties held for sale RECTIVE 1,852,241 872,558
Properties held for future development
for sale HERRBRENE 1,495,128 061,386
5,390,634 3,303,432
Others Hity
Low-value consumption goods EES#Em 192 [14
5,390,826 3,303,546
As at 3| December 2013, certain properties under development for sale and N2013F 128318 ETHER
completed properties held for sale, properties held for future development BYE HGEETIVERFER
for sale were pledged for certain bank loans granted to the Group (note 23). RERENEREASEERET

RITERWER(HEE23)

During the year, the directors considered that all of the above properties FR - EFZRRLAMBNEER
were developed for sale, and none of them were specifically designated for FEELE  HENEBIIEER
eaming rental or for capital appreciation or both. Accordingly, none of the MRS EREEIMEFRE -
properties were classified as investment properties at the end of each of the Bt BENERERERRDE
reporting period. RIREM% -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BRI

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BAEEBI  WUAAREIIR)

I6 INVENTORIES (Contd)

(b)

Properties under development for sale in the consolidated statement of

RE(#E)

(b) AHMBRARANTEERNE

financial position comprise: B
2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARETT
Expected to be recovered within one year ~ TEHER —F R[] 852,921 1,012,947

Expected to be recovered after more

than one year BN —FAE R E 1,190,344 356,541
2,043,265 1,369,488

Completed properties held for sale in the consolidated statements of

(0 HBHUBRARANZECTIY

financial position comprise: E Lok
2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETT
Expected to be recovered within one year ~ TEHIRA —F AU 1,262,194 628,117

Expected to be recovered after more

than one year TRER —F LR 590,047 244441
1,852,241 872,558

Properties held for future development for sale in the consolidated

(d BHUBRARASERRBRDN

statement of financial position comprise: MERRE
2013 2012
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR®T R ARETT
Expected to be recovered after more
than one year TRERR —F AR 1,495,128 1,061,386
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt B SRR MY RE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BEZHERIN  IUARKIIR)

16  INVENTORIES (Contd)

(e)  The analysis of carrying value of leasehold land included in properties

RE(#E)

(e) FAREERMENEELBHNE

under development for sale is as follows: EEIMMT
2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETT
In the PRC, with lease term of 40
years or more: FERE - MEITE40F AL 869,979 875,408
I7 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS AND DEPOSITS 17 ESREMEKRTE BARERE
%
The Group The Company
A&HE AT
2013 2012 2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTRT AR®TT ARWTRT AR%TR
Trade and bills receivables B ORI R KR E 12,893 66,102 — —
Prepaid business tax and other taxes AR EER KA MR 124,883 53,754 — -
Deposits, prepayments and T BRREK
other receivables HA EU IR 545,165 788,721 1,278,062 1,790
Security deposit with a PRC financial FRAHE € EEE
institution (note i) HRE S (M) — 40,000 — —
682,941 948,577 1,278,062 1,790
Note (i) In relation to a trust loan provided by a PRC financial institutional, namely fizE() - BPEeRBBTRETARAE

Ping An Trust Co,, Ltd (“Ping An Trust") to the Group, Jining Hydoo Modern

Logistics Company Limited (“Jining Hydoo Modern Logistics”), a wholly-owned

subsidiary of the Group, is required to place a security deposit with Ping An Trust.

According to the relevant agreement, the required level of security deposit would
progressively increase from RMB10,000,000 to RMB600,000,000 over the term of
the corresponding trust loan. As of 31 December 2012 and 2013, the balance of
security deposit amounted to RMB40,000,000 and RMB nil respectively. The trust

loan was settled in June 201 3.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BRI

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BAEEBI  WUAAREIIR)

17 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS AND DEPOSITS 17
(Cont'd)

BEREMERRE  BERERE
&(E&)

(@)  Ageing analysis @) ERDMHN

As at the end of each reporting period, the ageing analysis of trade and bills

receivables (net of allowance for doubtful debts) by due date is as follows:

NEERSHR - REHMAEHH
BHRKFERERRE(FRR
R NREATET :

The Group
F 58

2013 2012

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥T ARET T

Current BEA 12,795 66,102

Within 6 months 6EARA 98 =
Trade and bills receivables, net of allowance & 5 JEY 7018 & fE W Z 1%

for doubtful debts AR 12,893 66,102

The details on the Group's credit policy are set out in note 31 (a).

The directors are of the view that all trade and bills receivables are neither
individually nor collectively considered to be impaired as at 3| December

2013.

Trade and bills receivables are primarily related to proceeds from the sales
of properties. Proceeds from the sales of properties are made in lump-
sum payments or paid by instalments in accordance with the terms of the
corresponding sale and purchase agreements. If payment is made in lump-
sum payment, settlement is normally required by date of signing the sales
contract. If payment is made in instalments, 50% of the purchase price is
required upon executing the contract with the balance payable by date of

signing the contract.

AEENEEBRMNF BN
31(a) °

BEERA IEESREKZERE
WEZRN20I134F 12 A3 BEEE®E
BTN T R AR AR E

BORNGERENEEEZEY
FHEMGRIERRE - MEHEM
SRERBEAEEE R ER—
RMELZRHIDEZIT o fH—RIER
o OBBAREIHESNERT
MEEE - WA BRR - BETLEH
RAEXNBEEBNS%  BREE
AN E B S (T RENE
4’1%0
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 7% HR R B o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BEZHERIN  IUARKIIR)

I8 AMOUNTS DUE FROM RELATED PARTIES 18 FEWEAH T SR
The Group
FEB
2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETT
Amounts due from the Controlling Shareholders PR AR SR 5K0E - 796
19 RESTRICTED CASH 19 ERHEARE
At 31 December 2013 and 2012 , the restricted cash were pledged to banks for R2013K2012F 128318 XRHIRE
certain mortgage facilities granted to purchasers of the Group properties. ERETARENEE T NE TRGR
BT R -
20 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 20 RERREEEN
Cash and cash equivalents comprise: ReRREFENBE
The Group The Company
r&H KRF
2013 2012 2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTR AR®ETT AR®TR AR®TR

Cash at bank and in hand BITERRES 4,292,994 584,379 I5 7439
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B

AR M

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BAEEBI  WUAAREIIR)

CASH GENERATED FROM/(USED IN) OPERATIONS 2 REERHRS/(FA)RL
Reconciliation of profit before taxation to cash generated from/(used in) operations: BREAMERSEEBRG/ (FTA)H
SHHE :
2013 2012
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
Pt AR®TR ARETT
Profit before taxation BR 1 B ¥ 2,324,859 460,282
Adjustments for: BLT5IER AR
Depreciation nE 5(c) 16,240 8,199
Amortisation i3 5(c) 121 21
Loss on disposal of property, HEWE - BER
plant and equipment RIEER 4 — 3
Finance income BITSIA 5(a) (11,079) (1374)
Finance costs RERAR 5(a) 70,183 73,241
Share of loss of a joint venture EhEERENER 12 — EARN
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary
before tax HEF AR ARG 29(a) — (306,551)
Change in fair value of embedded
derivative on redeemable A B8 [l AT #R AR 48 S AR EiR AT
convertible preference shares TETANARES 103,271 292,348
Equity settled share-based DAt 45 E AR =
payments BRI 5(b) 5,707 6,109
Net gains on disposal of HERHEERE
available-for-sale investments W %5 (14,562) —
Dividend income R EWA 4 (4,019) =
2,490,721 535,391
Changes in working capital: EEEREH
Change in inventories FEEE) (1,979,272) (1,815,647)
Increase in trade and other receivables, & 5 & H A FEU IR -
prepayments and deposits BRNRERE LM (12,506) (247,674)
Change in restricted cash XRHIR e % (80,589) .773)
Change in trade and other payables B 5 REMERTIEE S 2,134,200 306,205
Change in deferred income O 339,342 305,093
Cash generated from/(used in)
operations mEEBmE/ (A Be 2,891,896 (919,405)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 7% HR R B o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BAEERN  BUARKIIR)

22 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

22 EBEREMENKE

The Group The Company
A% A2
2013 2012 2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARBTE AR¥TR AR%TR
Trade payables (note i) e E 5 5RIE (MEE) 1,267,036 786,860 — —
Receipts in advance (note ii) TR (T i) 2,376,504 750918 — —
Other payables and accruals Hith e R FEETTE
(note iii) (B &E i) 184,564 154,637 4596 4,570
Special dividend (note iv) RRIAR S (P ETiv) — 20,205 — 20,205
3,828,104 1,712,620 4,596 24,775
Notes: Bzt -
(i) Included in trade and other payables are trade creditors with the following ageing (i) RBEHR  EHRAMERNTIEES

analysis as at the end of the reporting period:

REME - AREDTHT :

The Group
rEHE

2013 2012
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®TT ARETT
Due within | month or on demand INKERIAE D e Sy 467,596 224490
Due after | month but within 3 months RIEABENMESRDH 132,982 222,359
Due after 3 months but within 6 months 38 A% ER6fE A RNEIE 599,780 199,670
Due after 6 months RR61E A 1 25 66,678 140,341
1,267,036 786,860

Trade payables mainly represent amounts due to contractors. Payment to contractors

is in installments according to progress and agreed milestones. The Group normally

retains 2% to 10% as retention payment.

At 3| December 2013, included in trade payables are retention payables of
RMB28,847,000 (2012: RMB27,106,000), which are expected to be settled after more

than one year.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

22 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Contd)

Notes: (Cont d)

(i

(iii)

)

Receipts in advance primarily consisted of deposits and down payments from
customers for purchases of the Group's properties. Such proceeds were recorded
as current liabilities before the associated sales were recognised. Sales of properties
is subsequently recognised to the profit or loss in accordance with the Group's

accounting policy as set out in note | (v)(i).

At 31 December 2013, included in other payables and accruals are deposits of
RMB23,962,000 (2012: RMB14,769,000), which are expected to be settled after more
than one year. All of the other payables and accrued expenses are expected to be

settled within one year.

Pursuant to the Investment Agreement with between Ping An Hawking China
Opportunity Fund ILP (“Ping An Fund”) and the Company, the Company is obliged
to pay Ping An Fund a special dividend fixed at 4% of its subscription amount or
HK$24,920,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB20,205,000) if non-occurrence of a
qualified IPO within one year after the settlement date. At 3| December 2012, the
amount was treated as a financial liability. Upon completion of the qualified IPO on

31 October 2013, the amount is reclassified to the capital reserve accordingly.

B HRAR M &

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BAEEBI  WUAAREIIR)

22 EBERHEMEAREE)

Wiz (&)

(i

(ii)

()

BRREEZREREEEAEEY
ENEFNESRDBRIE - L5
BHRERNIBHERREIMARA
MBBE MEHEEEERENGE
() () FTBASE BN E T BR N B

17
At °

R20134 128318 st \EffE
MREREFRENESAAR
#23,962,0007 (2012%F : AR
14,769,0007T)  ZE BRI EN —
FREE o A EMWENFIERER
B EHEN—FRNLEE -

BH#EPing An Hawking China
Opportunity Fund ILP ( [Ping An
Fund] ) BARARZTMRE R
WREERE —FRNUAEESER
BRARER - AIARDFHEEERPing
An FundZHFIRE - RESBIER
B EM14%5024,920,0008 7T (A&
R AR™20,2050007L) BE - B
012F1A318  Z24BERASE
BAE - R20I3FI0A3IBERAE
BERARAERE  ZZLBEEN
DB ERGEE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 7% HR R B o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BAEERN  BUARKIIR)

23 BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS 23 RITERRHMEE
At 31 December 2013, the Group's bank loans and other borrowings were R213F12A318 - AEBHRTE
repayable as follows: HREMEENERBERLNT
The Group
N |
2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR® TR ARET T

Current Yok

Secured HER

— short term bank loans and other borrowings —RERTERREMEE 70,000 630,000

— current portion of secured non-current bank loans — & H I IER BN IR1TE T K

and other borrowings HiEERRBHH 183,860 43,000

Unsecured A

— short term bank loans —RERITER 28,000 16,000
281,860 689,000

Non-current ERE

Repayable after | year but within 2 years - secured —FREMENER —BEH 181,000 —

Repayable after 2 years but within 5 years - secured M {& {8 L FNIEHK —FHEHF 421,000 60,000
602,000 60,000
883,860 749,000
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

23 BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS (Contd)

()

Certain banking facilities and borrowings of the Group are subject to the
fulfillment of covenants relating to: (1) certain of the Group's operating
subsidiaries’ statement of financial position ratios; (2) restriction of profit
distribution by certain of its operating subsidiaries; or (3) early repayment
of principal to be triggered when 70% of the gross sellable area for the
underlying property project are sold. These requirements are commonly
found in lending arrangements with financial institutions. If the Group was to
breach such covenants, the drawn down facilities would become repayable
on demand. The Group regularly monitors its compliance with these
covenants and communicates with its lenders as and when the directors

foresee any non-compliance due to business needs.

At 3| December 2013, a bank loan of the Group totaling RMBI130,200,000
(2012: nil) was not in compliance with the imposed covenants. Such non-
compliance primarily relates to an operating subsidiary which failed to achieve
certain statement of financial position ratio at the end of the reporting period.
The directors of the Company are of the view that such bank loan is a non-
current liability at 31 December 2013. Such view was based on a notice
from the corresponding financial institution dated 31 December 2013, which
confirmed that the subsidiary would not be regarded as having breached
the covenant and the bank would not demand early repayment from the

subsidiary.

B HRAR M &

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BAEEBI  WUAAREIIR)

23 RITERREMEEE)

(i)

(i

AEEMETRITHERMEER
FEETISEMNEZHEERKE
FEEE: (NVAEEETEE
(g RN 0L B Pl e E
QEREETEENBAREDH
AR S - G EMRBEME
B /A EAEBERN 0% HE
RS HENRATERNASE -
ZERATERRNASREE L
MERZH - WAEEEREH
L AERDABEBTIZE
BRABKEREER - AEETH
ERHETRERANER B
EESTHBANERT LERE
EETR  ANEEGRERAR
;@o

R2013F12A318 « REBAYER
TERA #£ AR 130,200,0007T
(2012%F « ) RESFATHEINH)
L AABTRERAFEE -
ARBERRERE THBARR
ERGRNEENBARAR -
RAREERR  R20135F 124
318 - BERITERRIERDE
& - ZERNERIBES BigE
R2013F 12431 BB MBEE
B ZBERIAZMBRAATE
BREAEREERZBITIEE
KM BN EIRATER o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 7% HR R B o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BAEERN  BUARKIIR)

23

BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS (Contd)

At 31 December 2013, the bank loans and other borrowings were analysed as

follows:

23

BITERRHEMEE(E)
R2013E 128318 RAERRHM
fEEAMIT

The Group
rEE

2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETT
Secured bank loans and other borrowings BEARITERREMBEER 855,860 733,000
Unsecured bank loans EERRITER 28,000 16,000
883,860 749,000

At 31 December 2013, certain secured bank loans of the Group totaling
RMB168,660,000 (2012: RMB60,000,000) were guaranteed by a subsidiary of the
Group and a third party company.

As at 31 December 2013, the bank loans and borrowings from other financial
institutions are all denominated in functional currency of respective subsidiaries now

comprising the Group.

Further details of the Group's management of liquidity risk are set out in note

31(b).

Bank loans and other borrowings bear interest ranging from 6.40% to 17.00% per
annum for the year ended 31 December 2013 (2012: 6.65% — 17.00% per annum),

and are secured by the following assets:

RNBFEINAIE AEBEHAA
R #168660000L(20RF: A R &
60,000,000 7T ) B & FEEIRRITE AR
SETRARR—HME=ZF AR LRIREE
Ko

M203F12A3I8 ROTERKREM
CTRBEBEEEOUAEERFETSE
FARIMEEEEE -

FEBERENRBECRARNE—F
ABENMIE3I(b) °

REBEW03FENAINBIEEE "
TERREAMEE D BRN F640%
Z1700%H) F M (20125 : 665%FE
17.00%)5t 8. » WA THIBEEER

The Group
AEH

2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® TR ARET T
Properties under development for sale FELRYE 722,620 1,076,983
Completed properties held for sale RECTIYE 460,535 120,075
Properties held for future development for sale FERKFHEDE 133,360 —
1,316,515 1,197,058
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24  AMOUNTS DUE TO RELATED PARTIES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BRI

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BAEEBI  WUAAREIIR)

24 BNEBLRE

The Group The Company
AR AAT
2013 2012 2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000

AR®TR ARETE AR%TR AR%TR

Amounts due to subsidiaries T FARIFUR — — — 4526
Amounts due to the Controlling Shareholders & {2 A% iR SR 538 — 228 — 228
Amounts due to other related parties JE T EL A BB 7 TR0 - 1,000 - -

— 1,228 — 4,754

Amount due to related parties are unsecured, interest free and have no fixed term

of repayment.

EERE

ENEER I SUASEER 2R RER

25 DEFERRED INCOME 25 EBEWA
The Group
&M
2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T R ARET T

At | January RIAIA 524,583 219,490
Movement during the year FNE

— Govemment grants recognised (note i) — B HER TR B (L) 957,753 586,939

— Deferred revenue in relation to - ARAHE e ERMED

sale and operating leaseback arrangement (note i) RO IR e (P EE i) 2,527 3316
— Amortisation of government grants — F NI B R
during the year (620,938) (285,162)
863,925 524,583

Less: amount included under current liabilities B EARBRENSE (858,082) (521,267)
Amount included under non-current liabilities SIARRBRENESE 5,843 3316
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 7% HR R B o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BAEERN  BUARKIIR)

25

DEFERRED INCOME (Contd)

Notes:

0

Pursuant to the respective agreements between the Group and local governments,
such grants are for subsidising the infrastructure construction of certain project
undertaken by some of the Group's subsidiaries, namely Ningxiang Property
Development, Guangxi Yulin Modern Trade Center Development Company
Limited, Jining Hydoo Logistics Center Development Company Limited, Mianyang
West Modern Trade Center Development Company Limited, Ganzhou Hydoo
Commercial and Trade Logistics Park Development Company Limited, Wuzhou
Hydoo Commercial and Trade Center Development Company Limited, Yantai
Hydoo International Commercial and Trade Center Company Limited and Heze
Hydoo Commercial and Trade Center Company Limited. During the year ended
31 December 2013, the Group further recognised RMB957,753,000 (2012:
RMB586,939,000) from certain governments for the Group's projects.

In conjunction with certain sale contracts entered into by Jining Hydoo Logistics
Center Development Company Limited for sales of properties, the Group
subsequently leased back certain sold properties from the respective buyers under
operating leases for terms of 3 to 10 years at agreed rental rates. Upon recognition
of the sales of such properties, a portion of the sales proceeds, which represent the
excess of sales price over fair value of such properties, is deferred and amortised
over the respective lease terms. For the year ended 31 December 2013, the
deferred revenue arising from such sales and leaseback arrangements amounted
to RMB2,527,000 (2012: RMB3,316,000). The revenue (net of business tax and
surcharge) recognised from sales of such properties amounted to RMB25,875,000
(2012: RMB59,632,000).

HYDOO INTERNATIONAL HOLDING LIMITED R EZBBRZERER A 7
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BEWA(E)

i & -

()

(i)

REASEEEMBRETNEE G
#RERPRABAEAKEET T
AR (BERNERE  BEAEHR

RYRBFEEERRAE  BEREY
RAFRBEERANE - BEABERY
MBAZERAA  ENREHED
REFRZEERAE BMREBEY
RAFRBEERAR  EaREERR

EHAR AR KT EREDEN RS
BRAR) FARETHEENERE
WER - BE2013F 1231 BIEE
B ASEREBEEERNEBR
FFEpraE B A A R#957,753,0007T
(2012 « AR¥586,939,00075) °

ERNEERENRRARERAAE
FRETHEHRESR  ARERR
RRBENESINEERERRXER
HMEFHEETEELNE BHA
3EI0F - ZEMERALER  H
EEREARBEDSNHBEEL
WA BT BB SH - ALE2013F 12
JIREFE  BRLEREGREER
BEEMETEREAARE2527,000
7t (2012%F : AR#¥3316,0007T) °
HEZSVMENERAYE (NKRE
EBWRMME) AARE258750007T
(2012 « AR¥59,632,0000C) ©
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B

AR M

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BAEEBI  WUAAREIIR)

REDEEMABLE CONVERTIBLE PREFERENCE SHARES 26 ARETRRELKR
Carrying value Fair value
fREE DRE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TF AR¥T R
At 31 December 2012: 20125 12A318 :
Redeemable convertible preference shares AR AR E LR 581,412 608,524
Embedded derivative liabilities on QEAERET S Gl
redeemable convertible preference shares TTETARR 292,502 292,502
873914 901,026
At 31 October 2013: R2013F10A318
Redeemable convertible preference shares A [ A AR B e AR 633,683 633,683
Embedded derivative liabilities on QBRSSP Gl NN
redeemable convertible preference shares TETAGRE 388,333 388,333
1,022,016 1,022,016
Automatic conversion of preference shares FIEE T B BER
upon completion of the Global Offering Bk
(notes (iif) and (v)) (PEE G B (v)) (1,022,016) (1,022,016)

At 31 December 2013:

720135128318 :
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 7% HR R B o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BAEERN  BUARKIIR)

26

REDEEMABLE CONVERTIBLE PREFERENCE SHARES (Contd)

Pursuant to a share purchase agreement entered into between the Company,

Most Trend Holding Limited, a company owned by the Controlling Shareholders,

and an independent third party, Top Amuse Holdings Limited (“Top Amuse” or

the “Preferred Shareholder™), the Company issued 12,500 redeemable convertible

preference shares (the "Preference Shares”) to Top Amuse for an aggregate

purchase price of USD80.0 million on 5 July 201 I.

The Preference Shares have the same voting rights as the ordinary shares and

contain the following terms:

U]

(ii)

Dividend rights

The holder of the Preference Shares is entitled to receive dividends,
out of any funds legally available therefore, prior and in preference to
any declaration or payment of any dividend on the ordinary shares.
Such dividends shall accrue when, as and if declared by the board of the
Company, and any declared but unpaid dividend shall be cumulative and

non-compounding.

Conversion of Preference Shares and Cash redemption option

Each Preference Share shall be convertible, at the option of the holder
thereof at any time, into such number of fully paid and non-assessable
ordinary shares as is determined by dividing the subscription price by the
then effective conversion price, which shall be calculated after adjustments of

certain events.

At any time after the third anniversary date of issurance date of the
Preference Shares, the Preferred Shareholder shall have the right to
require the Company to redeem all or part of such outstanding Preference
Shares at a redemption price equal to the proportionate purchase price
per Preference Share plus an amount which would enable such Preferred

Shareholder to achieve the annual return rate at 12%.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

26 REDEEMABLE CONVERTIBLE PREFERENCE SHARES (Contd)

(iii)

(iv)

v

Automatic conversion feature

Each Preference Share shall be automatically converted by way of
redemption of such Preference Shares and the issue fully paid of the
ordinary shares at the conversion price at the time in effect immediately
upon the earlier of (i) the consummation of a Qualified IPO, (i) immediately
prior to the closing of an acquisition by, merger or other combination with
another entity where the Company is not the surviving entity where such
surviving entity is listed on an internationally recognised stock exchange, or
(iii) the date specified by written consent or agreement of the Preferred

Shareholder.

The Preference Shares were recognised as an interest-bearing borrowing in
accordance with the Group's accounting policy when the Preference Shares
were issued. Subsequently, the Preference shares were stated at amortised

cost.

The embedded derivative of the Preference Shares is measured at the end
of each reporting period to the fair value. Such remeasurements are shown

as part of finance costs in profit or loss.

Upon completion of the Global Offering on 31 October 2013, the
Preference Shares were automatically converted to equity. The fair value of
the embedded derivative is measured based on the Option-Pricing Method

and Convertible Bond Model.

B HRAR M &

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BAEEBI  WUAAREIIR)

2% ARETRRELERE)

(iii)

BREREHE

SRELERGABRE LR RET
BrREBROFTAREEATEE
BRRERLEEVANEHELR : ()T
MEBRBERAAER : (i) B
NEMSES-BEAHNE K
BRER  MARRWIHFEES
BEBGEERERABEERTMNE
FRGET  F (i) BEBRBER
EERERGHRIEEN B -

BARERTRREAEENS
ARRERRTEEE - B&
B BIRHEHA AR

ERRNRANMTET AR KRS
HREAAEHE - BEFERE
H 2 BBERKE—HD

R20I13FI10A3I BRHBEELR
& BEREEDERARE -
BARSTET AN DR ERRE
HEEBEARITRRESESR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 7% HR R B o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BAEERN  BUARKIIR)

27 EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

Defined contribution retirement plans

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme ("the MPF scheme”)
under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for
employees employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance. The MPF scheme is a defined contribution retirement plan administered
by independent trustees. Under the MPF scheme, the employer and its employees
are each required to make contributions to the plan at 5% of the employees'
relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of HK$25,000.

Contributions to the plan vest immediately.

As stipulated by the regulations of the PRC, the Group participates in various
defined contribution retirement plans organised by municipal and provincial
governments for its employees. The Group is required to make contributions to
the retirement plans ranging from 10% to 20% of the salaries, bonuses and certain
allowances of the employees. A member of the plan is entitled to a pension equal
to a fixed proportion of the salary prevailing at the member's retirement date.
The Group has no other material obligation for the payment of pension benefits

associated with these plans beyond the annual contributions described above.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BRI

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BEERBIN BAARKIIR)

EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS 28 UREREEURGBERNNYK

The Company has a share option scheme (the “Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme”), ARBR20FIIAN0EERENE
which was first adopted on 30 November 201 I, whereby the directors of the BREFE(TERARSRABRE
Company were authorised, at their discretion, to invite employees of the Group, 2l Bt ARRESEERE S
including directors of any company in the Group, to take up options to subscribe MERE  BBEAEEEES(BELAEE
for shares of the Company. Additional options were further granted to certain ERARMNES ) ERERENRELL
employees of the Group on 16 October 2012 and 20 March 2013 respectively. Al AR n - BN EEARAE 2 RIIRS 2012 FF
After such grants, a total number of |,715 share options were granted to I0R 16BR%2013E3 A20ABERTASE
employees. Each option gives the holder the right to subscribe for | ordinary share ETEE ERLZEBERER &
in the Company and is settled gross in shares. BRITSHBREERTES - 8

BEE T RAAENRBEARA | LA
B YABRD2HEE -

(@)  The terms and conditions of the grants are as follows: @) BRENERREEDT :

Number of Contractual life

instruments of options

TA¥A BRESHH

Total number of options granted EREERERS 1715
Options granted on 30 November 201 | R2011 4 11 A30 BRI mERE
— directors -&5 325 85 months
85 & A
— employees —E& [,180 85 months
8518 A

Percentage of

Vesting date vested shares
FREAH EER

BRABWED
31 December 2012 2012 12 A31 H 25%
3| December 2013 2013 12 A31 H 50%
31 December 2014 201412431 8 75%
31 December 2015 2015 12 A31 H 100%
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 7% HR R B o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BEZHERIN  IUARKIIR)

28

EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Contd)

@

The terms and conditions of the grants are as follows: (Cont d)

28 DRESEEUBRORERNER (8

(2)

RENRRREGNOT : ()

Number of Contractual life

instruments of options

TA%E BRESOH

Options granted on |6 October 2012

20124 10 A 16 B H RO RS AR#E

— employees —EB
Vesting date
HEAH
31 December 2013 20135 12831 B
3| December 2014 2014 12831 B
31 December 2015 2015 12 A31 H
31 December 2016 2016 12831 B

Options granted on 20 March 2013

R 201343 A 20 BIRH R EERE

— directors —-EX
Vesting date
BEAH
31 December 2014 2014% 12831 B
31 December 2015 2015 12831 B
3| December 2016 2016 12831 B
3| December 2017 2017F 12431 8

91 74 months
7418 A

Percentage of
vested shares

=3
ROMEDH

25%
50%
75%
100%

19 69 months
69 & A

Percentage of

vested shares
ERE
BROENE D

25%
50%
75%
100%

The options are exercisable from six months after the Company's Global
Offering date to 31 December 2018.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

28 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Contq)

(b)

The number and weighted average exercise price of share option are as

follows:

The exercise price for each option upon grant was HK$48,654 and was

subsequently adjusted to HK$1.014 pursuant to the adjustment mechanism

(note 28(d)).

28

B HRAR M &

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BEERBIN BAARKIIR)

UREREEURGRERNNTR
(&)
(b) BREMNZERMETLHTEED
T

BEEBEEHBRENTEER
48,654 87T W HEIRZHEM
HABE 101487 (HFE28(d)) °

Number of Number of
options options

(upon issue) (as adjusted)

(note 28(d)) (note 28(d))
BRERA BRERA
(BfTH (RHE)
(Ff=£28(d)) (FE28(d))

Outstanding on | January 201 | 2011 F1 A1 BERITHE — —
Granted during the year FREL 1,505 72,230,000
Exercised during the year FATE -
Forfeited during the year FRRK —
Outstanding on 31 December 201 | 2011 F 12 431 BRTEE 1,505 72,230,000
Exercisable on 31 December 201 | 201112 A31 BAIfTHE —
Outstanding on | January 2012 R2012 1 A 1 BRITHR 1,505 72,230,000
Granted during the year FARH 191 9,190,000
Exercised during the year FNITE -
Forfeited during the year FRRK -
Outstanding on 3| December 2012 R2012% 12 A31 BRTE 1,696 81,420,000
Exercisable on 3| December 2012 R20124F 12 31 BAEI7{E —
Outstanding on | January 2013 R20I13 1 A 1 BARITRE -
Granted during the year FARH 19 900,000
Exercised during the year FNITE -
Forfeited during the year FRRK -
Outstanding on 3| December 2013 R20135F 12 A31 BRTE 82,320,000

Exercisable on 3| December 2013

R20135F 12 A31 BAI1T{E

The options outstanding at 31 December 2013 had a remaining contractual

life of 5 years (2012: 6 years).

R20I13E 12 A3 BARITEBERKE
BERESFRNHRTALH(012F : 6
F)o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 7% HR R B o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BAEERN  BUARKIIR)

28 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Contq)

28 DRESEEUBRORERNER (8

(c)  Fair value of share options and assumptions ) BRENAAERRBR
The fair value of services received in return for share options granted is RIBIE R BRENESREH
measured by reference to the fair value of share options granted. The ARERZRERLEBEREND A
estimate of the fair value of the share options granted is measured based on Bt E - EREBRENDAER
a binomial lattice model. The contractual life of the share option is used as ARERZIEAHBERNE - B
an input into this model. Expectations of early exercise are incorporated into IRHE S K EAE A fE IS AL 6l A BX
the binomial lattice model. B RETENEREGETAZ
B S -
Tranche | Tranche 2 Tranche 3 Tranche 4
it E-H F=H Eutkiig
Grant date of 30 November 2011 2011 % 11 A 30 R#Y#% i B &
Fair value at measurement date (HK$) RErEBERA L BE(ETT) 9,125 9,136 9,175 9,231
Share value (HK$) BHEBGST) 29,054 29,054 29,054 29,054
Expected volatility (/) TEERIE(/) 4387% 43.87% 4387% 43.87%
Dividend yield (2) BREMERE2) — = = —
Risk-free interest rate (3) ERBRME () 1.08% 1.08% 1.08% 1.08%
Suboptimal exercise factor RBIERE 30 30 30 30
Forfeiture rate R UL & — — — —
Tranche | Tranche 2 Tranche 3 Tranche 4
F—H#t EHt F=#t FIH
Grant date of 16 October 2012 2012610 A 16 BRI A
Fair value at measurement date (HK$) RErERHNRABGET) 42430 4743 43035 43237
Share value (HK$) RiABEGET) 79,664 79,664 79,664 79,664
Expected volatility (/) BHKRE (/) 38.19% 38.19% 38.19% 38.19%
Dividend yield (2) REMEE2) — — — —
Risk-free interest rate (3) BRERNE () 1.10% 1.10% 1.10% 1.10%
Suboptimal exercise factor RETERZ 30 30 30 30
Forfeiture rate R UL & - - - -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BRI

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BEERBIN BAARKIIR)

28 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Contd) 28 LIERZHEURGORERONR (B
(c)  Fair value of share options and assumptions (Cont d) ) BRENAABRERE)
Tranche | Tranche 2 Tranche 3 Tranche 4

-t ot E4Ht FHt

Grant date of 20 March 2013 201363 A20 BHRH B H
Fair value at measurement date (HK$) M52 BEIR AR E(GET) 49,308 49,583 49,76 49,851
Share value (HK$) RHEBECET) 89,689 89,689 89,689 89,689
Expected volatility (/) TERIE (/) 36.74% 36.74% 36.74% 36.74%
Dividend yield (2) REdEE2) — — — —
Risk-free interest rate (3) BERNE () 051% 051% 051% 051%
Suboptimal exercise factor RETERZR 30 30 30 30
Forfeiture rate R Ut & — — — —
(1)  Volatilicy () BiE
The volatility of the underlying ordinary shares during the life of the HEAEERNERESRRA
options was estimated based on the historical and implied equity HRIERIREE ETAILERA
stock price volatility of listed comparable companies over a period A BB AR R TR ER AR A L
comparable to the expected term of the options. BHBRANELRESRE
RIEfhEL
(2)  Dividend yield 2) EKEU#ZF
The dividend yield was estimated by the Company based on its BREM S EHARAIREE
expected dividend policy over the expected term of the options. PR 4 78 HA EA P PO O TR AR S
BEREE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 7% HR R B o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BAEERN  BUARKIIR)

28 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Contq)

©

(d)

Fair value of share options and assumptions (Cont d)
(3)  Risk-free interest rate

Risk-free interest rate was estimated based on the yield of Hong
Kong Exchange Fund Bills/Notes with a maturity period equal to the

expected term of the options as of the valuation date.

Changes in the above subjective input assumptions could materially affect the
fair value estimate. Share options were granted under a service condition.
This condition has not been taken into account in the grant date fair value
measurement of the services received. There were no market conditions

associated with the share option grants.

Adjustments on number of share options and exercise price

Pursuant to the adjustment mechanism under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme, on 3| October 2013, being the listing date of the Shares of the
Company, each share with a par value of US$1.00 each under each Option
granted was automatically adjusted to 48,000 Options and the exercise
price per Share of each Option was adjusted from HK$48,654 to HK$1.014
accordingly. As a result, Options to subscribe for an aggregate of 82,320,000
Shares at an exercise price of HK$1.014 per Share were outstanding as of
31 December 201 3.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BRI

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BAEEBI  WUAAREIIR)

28 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Contd) 28 LIERZHEURGORERONR (B
(d)  Adjustments on number of share options and exercise price (Cont d) d) BREZERTEENREE)
The movement of the number of Share Options on an as adjusted basis 2013 10A31BZEI12A31 BZH#
from 31 October to 31 December 2013 was as follows: BRIECERBRIES B ST
Number of
Share Options
BREZE

Outstanding at 31 October 2013 (as adjusted) R20I13FI0A3IB (KHAR) &
and 31 December 2013 2013F 12 /31 BARITE 82,320,000
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 7% HR R B o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BAEERN  BUARKIIR)

29 DISPOSAL AND ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

(@) Disposal of a subsidiary

On 31 December 2012, the Group transferred its entire equity interest
in Harbin Hydoo Commercial and Trade Center Development Company
Limited (“Harbin Trade Center") to Harbin China South City Company
Limited, an independent third party, for a consideration of RMB500,000,000.

29 HERWETAR
@ HETAF

R12FI12A31H AEEBE
REREREEEHAREAR AR
([MeRBREM ]2 PIREEE
TEUE=RBREERRARA
a - §E R AR 5000000007 °

Year ended
31 December 2012
HE01F
12831 BILFE
RMB'000
AREFT
Results of Harbin Trade Center RREBERMNESR
Revenue Yo g —
Expenses Fx (8647)
Results from operating activities REEE TS EE (8,647)
Tax | _
Results from operating activities, net of tax REEBTEEE  MBRTE (8,647)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HEF AR 306,55
Tax on gain on disposal of a subsidiary HEFRARIMENTIE (76,638)
Profit for the year FRFE 229913
Attributable to the equity shareholders of the Company AR RS REREGTE 229913
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Disposal of a subsidiary (Cont d)

DISPOSAL AND ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Cont ) 29

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B HRAR M &

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BAEEBI  WUAAREIIR)

HERWEFAR(E)
@) HWEFARE)

Year ended
31 December 2012
BZE012F
2R3 BILFE
RMB'000
AREFT
Cash flows generated from Harbin Trade Center WHEEEEREHERE

Net cash used in operating activities mEEE AR FE (48,963)
Net cash generated from financing activities RERDAERFE 200,000
Net cash flows for the year FRAHEEREFRE 151,037

Effect of disposal on the financial position of the Group HEHASEMBRRNZE
Property, plant and equipment ¥ - BERRE 5638
Inventories FE 278,753
Trade and other receivables B 5 RE M YR 183,572
Cash and cash equivalents ReRkBReEEN 39,338
Trade and other payables 85 REMENFIE (315,955)
Net assets BEFE 191,346
Cash consideration received in 2012* R2012FEUREHE* 260,000
Cash and cash equivalents disposed BHERE KRS EEY (39,338)
Net cash inflow RERAFHE 220,662

* The remaining consideration of RMB240,000,000 out of the total consideration

of RMB500,000,000 was received in 201 3.

* AR #500,000,0007T H) 42 41 (8
Fh 5 B9 A R #5240,000,0007C
2201 35 IR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt B SRR MY RE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BAEERN  BUARKIIR)

(b)

29  DISPOSAL AND ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Contd) 29 HERKWBTFARE)
Acquisition of a subsidiary b) WEFARF
On 30 June 2013, the Group obtained the control of Ganzhou Jiuzhi 2013F6H308 - REERBMN
by acquiring 51% equity interest from an independent third party for a HEARK2652000TRBLE
consideration of RMB2,652,000. Ganzhou Jiuzhi is engaged in provision of =R S 1% MBI EMN AR
property management services. RO HIAE - BN AR EMEER
R
The acquisition has the following effect on the Group's assets and liabilities: ZREHREENEERBEEIN
TRE:

At 30 June 2013

R2013F6A30H

RMB’000

ARBTR

Cash and cash equivalents ReRkBeEEN 1,434

Inventories 753 31

Other receivables and prepayments H fth W 3RIB R TB AT KR 1,858

Property, plant and equipment Y ER S 751
Trade and other payables B9 REMERNTIE (3,289)

Net assets BEFE 785
Non-controlling interests IR R (385)

Fair value of net identifiable assets acquired BRI AR EEFENALE 400
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BRI

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BAEEBI  WUAAREIIR)

29  DISPOSAL AND ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Contd) 29 HERKWBTFARE)
(b)  Acquisition of a subsidiary (Cont d) b) WETFAR (&)
Calculation of goodwill is as follows: BENENT

At 30 June 2013
R2013F6A30H

RMB’000

ARBTFR

Cash paid EfNRE 2,652
Fair value of net identifiable assets acquired BRI A EEFENARE (400)

Goodwil S 2,252
Had the acquisition been occurred on | January 2013, the Group's W4 B R2013F IR 1B %%
consolidated revenue for the year ended 31 December 2013 would have AEBHE013FI12A318 1E
been increased by RMB5,739,000, and the Group's consolidated profit FENEHURAEEMARS
for the year ended 31 December 2013 would have been decreased by 57390007 * RAEEE 2013
RMB65,000. F1ABLEFENAHMNER

WD AR 65,0007 °

HYDOO INTERNATIONAL HOLDING LIMITED % ZEEERER AT 207
Annual Report 2013 £ 3§



208

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 7% HR R B o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BAEERN  BUARKIIR)

30 CAPITAL AND RESERVES 30 RARMHE
(a)  Movements in components of equity @) HZEARBINED
The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances of each AEEAOERSEKE DB FA
component of the Group's consolidated equity is set out in the consolidated RELERNEREN S HiERS
statement of changes in equity. Details of the changes in the Company's Bk - ARAERERAKES
individual components of equity between the beginning and the end of the FOEFRNEESFFEIMT
years are set out below:
Equity
settled
share-based
payment
reserve
DEREE  Exchange Accumulated Total
Share Share  Capital  BAERID  resenve losses equity
aptd premum  reseve  X1A 378 B R
R BARE AAEE  ARER it BR e
Note RMBOOO ~ RMB000 ~ RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBO00
fiE  ARETR ARETR ARMTR ARBTT ARETT ARBTT ARETT
030 30w 30 30(c)ii)
At | January 2012 RWNFIAIA 333 = = 459 102 (14461)  (13567)
Changes in equity for 2012: 2012 FHEREE
Total comprehensive income ~ EAZEMA
for the year g - - - - 1524 (372556) (371032
Equity settled share-based W EIRA
transactions RERNRS 28 = = = 6,109 = = 6,109
Issuance of new shares to MERARERA
Pre-IPO investors REZRTHR 30() ) 2 — 34395 = = — 313997
At 31 December 2012 ®2012€128318 365 — 343965 6,568 1626 (387017)  (34493)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BRI

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BEERBIN BAARKIIR)

30 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Contd) 30 RAERREEE)
(@)  Movements in components of equity (Contd) ) HREARDAINEH(E)
Equity
settled

share-based
payment
reserve
IEREE  Exchange Accumulated Total
Share Share Capital HERB reserve losses equity
capital  premium  reserve  XfIA EX 2if i
Bx BRABE E4Gk E#REk 1] BR 1
Note RMB000 ~ RMB000  RMB000  RMB000  RMB'000  RMB000  RMB'000
i ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR
00)0)  30@v)  30()v)  30(c)(ii)

At [ January 2013 RWBEIAIA 365 — 343965 6,568 1,626 (387017) (34493
Changes in equity for 2013: 2013 FEREE .

Total comprehensive income ~ EAZEMA

for the year g - - - —  (138%) (178001)  (191,897)
Net proceeds from issue of WA EFREE R

ordinary shares upon ETERRAGIE

Global Offering, net FHREH

offissuing cost SR 30(o) i) 6182 1,279,687 - - = — 1285869
Capitalisation issue BALET 30(b)ii) 25321 (25,321) - - - - -
Automatic conversion of EEL3

redeemable convertible nEE

preference shares HRRELR 26() 7 — 1021939 = - — 1022016
Fquty settled share-based ~ MUEREE MR (D

transactions RERNRS 28 - - - 5,707 - — 5,707
Captalsation of special dividend & 2L EAIFI 8 () - — 20205 - - — 2005
At 31 December 2013 R03%E1NA3IA 31,945 1254366 1,386,109 12,275 (12270)  (565,018) 2,107,407
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 7% HR R B o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BAEERN  BUARKIIR)

30 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Contd)

(b)  Share capital

()

Authorised and issued share capital

The Company was incorporated on 19 October 2010 with an
authorised capital of US$50,000 divided into 50,000 ordinary shares
with a par value of US$1.00.

On 5 July 2011, the authorised share capital of the Company was
increased to US$62,500 divided into 50,000 ordinary shares and
12,500 preferred shares by the creation of 12,500 preferred shares of
a par value of US$1.00 each.

On 22 November 2012, the authorised share capital of the Company
was increased to US$67,703 divided into 55,203 ordinary shares of a
par value of US$1.00 each and 12,500 preferred shares of a par value
of US$1.00 each, by the creation of an aggregate of 5203 ordinary

shares at a par value of US$1.00 each.
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30

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Contd)

(b)

Share capital (Contd)

()

Authorised and issued share capital (Cont d)

On 29 April 2013, the Company re-denominated its authorised
share capital from US dollars into Hong Kong dollars. The Company
authorised additional share capital of HK$80,000,000 by the creation
of 6,522,960,000 ordinary shares with a par value of HK$0.0l per
share and 1,477,040,000 preferred shares with a par value of HK$0.01
per share. The Company then repurchased all the outstanding US
dollar ordinary shares and preferred shares at par. For each of the
US dollar ordinary share/preferred share repurchased, the Company
also issued to the shareholder 775 Hong Kong dollar ordinary shares/
preferred shares at par. Inmediately following the repurchase, the
Company cancelled all the unissued US dollar ordinary shares and
preferred shares. After the re-denomination and cancellation, the
Company's issued capital comprises 42,782,325 ordinary shares and
9,687,500 preferred shares at a par value of HK$0.01 each.

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as
declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per share
at meetings of the Company. All ordinary shares rank equally with

regard to the Company's residual assets.

B HRAR M &

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BAEEBI  WUAAREIIR)

BRARGHE(E)
L ENE-P)
() ZERCERITREE

R2013F48298 &
AABEEERABET
BRMABT  ARARBEA
# 5565229600000 & K&
EECOIE T H E B K
1,477,040,0008% & & E &
001 B TTHIE S IREEIMEM
7% TE % 75 80,000,000 7% T ©
AREHEBEEAERDMA
BITEMIETERRRE
vl R NI ) WingzigA I
gRETEER BERE
HERRGFEAEITIS
RETLER BER B
BEREEE - ARRITHEMA
ABITNELLTBREES
Ro bitEHRFHE
ARAMBEBITRABE
427823251 B IR @ E 00!
& T B B @ R 59,687,500
BEREEATHESL

BB o

ERBREE ABEKRAE
BRNKRE - YEBRAER
ARgE LRBERE K
BRI ES-RMfl2EE
e MALAKRAIARAR
HEEDFARSERN o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 7% HR R B o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BAEERN  BUARKIIR)

30 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Contd)
(b)  Share capital (Contd)

(i) Shares issued by share offer:

The shares of the Company were listed on the Stock Exchange on 3
October 2013, with a total number of 4,018,000,000 shares, among
which 768,256,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each were issued
to the public at a price of HK$2.15 per share. On 27 November
2013, pursuant to a partial exercise of the over-allotment option in
connection with the Global Offering, the Company further issued
11,950,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each at a price of HK$2.15
per share. The gross proceeds received by the Company from the
Global Offering were approximately HK$1,677,442,900.

(i) Capitalisation issue:

On 31 October 2013, 3,197,274,175 ordinary shares of HK$0.0|
each were issued at par value to the shareholders of the Company by
way of capitalisation of HK$31,972,742 (equivalent to approximately
RMB25,321,000) from the Company's share premium account.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BRI

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BAEEBI  WUAAREIIR)

CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Contd) 30 BARRE#E)
(c)  Reserves (c) f#fE
(i) Share premium () ROEE
Under the Companies Law (2013 Revision) of the Cayman Islands, 18 #& Companies Law (2013
the share premium account of the Company may be applied for Revision) of the Cayman
payment of distributions or dividends to shareholders provided that Islands * A8 2% A AR 17 )4 (B Bk
immediately following the date on which the distribution or dividend RENGEES PN
is proposed to be paid, the Company is able to pay its debts as they B EARRERREZXM
fall due in the ordinary course of business. Dk EB#E - AAF
BRNXNBEEKBREF
B0 ERS o
(i) PRC statutory reserve (i)  FEEE@HE
Pursuant to the Articles of Association of the Group's PRC BEREEDETFARIA
subsidiaries and relevant statutory regulations, appropriations to BRERMAMRABEEE
the statutory reserve fund were made at 10% of profit after tax Mo BRARPEEHHRAR
determined in accordance with accounting rules and regulations of the 5 M TE B9 BR B 12 AR B
PRC until the reserve balance reaches 50% of the registered capital. 0% REEHBEEN B
This reserve fund can be utilised in setting off accumulated losses or ERBEEREINTMERS
increasing capital of the PRC subsidiaries provided that the balance 50% ° ZidEHEE R AR EE
after such conversion is not less than 25% of their registered capital, FEF QAR EESIE
and is non-distributable other than in liquidation. B hEERARRERERD
DR E AR 25% + BER
WERE - AHARDIK °
(iii)  Exchange reserve (i) EZ@EE

The exchange reserve comprises all relevant exchange differences
arising from the translation of the financial statements of operations
with functional currency other than Renminbi. The reserve is dealt

with in accordance with the accounting policy set out in note | (w).

EAREERRREFAR
RO EREEMBER

RMELKAARBELE

B AR EEIE |(w) FTE
VR BREE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 7% HR R B o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BAEERN  BUARKIIR)

30 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Contd)
()  Reserves (Contd)

(iv)  Equity settled share-based payment reserve

Equity settled share-based payment reserve represents the fair
value of the actual or estimated number of unexercised share
options granted to employees of the Group in accordance with the

accounting policy adopted for share-based payments in note | (s)(ii).

(v)  Other reserve

Other reserve is resulted from transactions with owners in their
capacity as the equity owners. The balance comprises capital reserve
surplus/deficit arising from the difference between the disposal/
acquisition consideration and its net assets value at the respective

date of disposal/acquisition.

(d)  Distributability of reserves

As at 31 December 2013, the Company's reserves available for distribution,
calculated in accordance with the Companies Law (2013 Revision) of the
Cayman Islands, amounted to approximately RMB689,348,000 (2012: Nil).
It represents the Company's share premium account of approximately
RMBI,254,366,000 (2012: Nil) and accumulated losses of approximately
RMB565,018,000 (2012: RMB387,017,000) in aggregate as at 3| December
2013, which may be distributed provided that immediately following the
date on which the dividend is proposed to be distributed, the Company will
be in a position to pay off its debts as and when they fall due in the ordinary

course of business.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

30 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Contd)

©)

()

B HRAR M &

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BAEEBI  WUAAREIIR)

30 RARGEEE)

Capital management (e) HBAXEH
The Group's primary objective when managing capital are to safeguard the AEEEBREANTERRARRE
Group's ability to continue as a going concern in order to fund its property AEBRBLENT  KREY
development projects, provide returmns for shareholders and benefits for XAZEARMES  UREER
other stakeholders by pricing properties commensurately with the level of RBKTE RAGERARGHE S
risk and by securing access to finance at a reasonable cost. BT BMEEBMARERE
e A AR B & SR A 2 3 B s
The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital structure AEERBERECRERAEER
to maintain a balance between the higher shareholder returns that might be RiE - AERESEEKT R
possible with higher levels of borrowings and the advantages and security EIENGTPEEETER S AN W
afforded by a sound capital position, and makes adjustments to the capital HRNEBE RERBENTE - I
structure in light of changes in economic conditions. BREERANEZHARELRE
B
Consistent with industry practice, the Group monitors its capital structure BITZEEREF  AEEREE
on the basis of gearing ratio. The Group defines this ratio as total interest- ERARLEREREERAERE - K
bearing liabilities (includes bank loans and other borrowings and redeemable SERATMEXREFEARR
convertible preference shares ) divided by total assets of the Group. At 31 BEROEFRAMEERATED
December 2013, the gearing ratio of the Group was 8.0% (2012: 25.9%). AMRELER)RAREEEESR
E°R2013F 128318 £X&E
ZEERRBHERB0%(2012%F :
259%) °
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject to externally ARAIHEEAFRAGAZINE
imposed capital requirements. I E R E R -
Dividends n KRE
2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T ARETT
Final dividend proposed after the end of R REE B 195810 (2012 : )
the reporting period of HKI9.5 cents
per ordinary share (2012: Nil) 616,582 —

The directors of the Company resolved on 24 March 2014 that a dividend
of HKI9.5 cents (or equivalent to approximately RMBI5.3 cents) per share
is to be distributed to the shareholders for 2013, subject to the approval of
the shareholders at the coming annual general meeting. The final dividend
proposed after the end of the reporting period has not been recognised as a

liability at the end of the reporting period.

ARBIEER014F3824H3
RERREEWBENREER
BOSBILGEEROERARS
1537)  HEAFRREREERR
BERE LRE - REHRY ERE
RMERERERAREARAE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 7% HR R B o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BAEERN  BUARKIIR)

30 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Contd) 30

(g  Non-controlling interests

(i) During the year ended 31 December 20/3:

The non-controlling equity holder of Xingning Hydoo Commercial
and Trade Center Company Limited injected another RMB4,000,000.

In January 2013, the Group acquired the 20% equity interest in
Ganzhou Trade Center from the non-controlling equity holder for
a consideration of RMBI50 million, which was settled on |7 January
2013. The difference between the net identifiable assets at the
settlement date of Ganzhou Trade Center and the consideration paid
of RMB5 1,866,000 is deducted from Reserve — transactions with non-

controlling interests in the equity.

(i) During the year ended 31 December 20/2:

The Group established Ganzhou Trade Center, a non-wholly
owned subsidiary. The paid-up capital is RMB732,000,000, of which
RMB 100,000,000 was paid up by the non-controlling equity holder.

The Group established Xingning Hydoo Commercial and Trade
Center Company Limited, a non-wholly owned subsidiary. The paid-
up capital is RMB40,000,000, of which RMB8,000,000 was paid up by

the non-controlling equity holder.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks arises in the normal
course of the Group's business. The group's exposure to these risks and the
financial risk management policies and practices used by the group to manage these

risks are described below.

(@)  Credit risk

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to bank deposits, and trade
and other receivables. The Group maintains a defined credit policy and the

exposures to these credit risks are monitored on an ongoing basis.

Cash is deposited with financial institutions with sound credit ratings and the
Group has exposure limit to any single financial institution. Given their high
credit ratings, management does not expect any of these financial institutions

will fail to meet their obligations.

At 31 December 2013 and 2012, the Group had no concentrations of credit
risk in view of its large number of customers. The Group did not record

significant bad debts losses during the year.

31
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 7% HR R B o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BAEERN  BUARKIIR)

31

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES (Contd)

(@)

Credit risk (Cont d)

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying amount
of each financial asset in the consolidated statement of financial position.
Except for the financial guarantees given by the Group as set out in note
33, the Group does not provide any other guarantees which would expose
the Group to credit risk. The maximum exposure to credit risk in respect of
these financial guarantees at the end of the reporting period is disclosed in

note 33.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group's exposure to credit

risk arising from trade and other receivables are set out in note |7.

Liquidity risk

The Group management reviews the liquidity position of the Group on an
ongoing basis, including review of the expected cash inflows and outflows,
sale/pre-sale results of respective property projects, maturity of loans
and borrowings and the progress of the planned property development
projects in order to monitor the Group's liquidity requirements in the
short and longer terms. The Group's policy is to regularly monitor liquidity
requirements and its compliance with lending covenants, to ensure that it
maintains sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed lines of funding
from major financial institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the

short and longer term.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B HRAR M &

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BAEEBI  WUAAREIIR)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES (Contd) 3l SRERBEERAAE(E)
Liquidity risk (Cont d) b) RBESER(E)
The following tables show the remaining contractual maturities at the TREFIAEBRARAIERAR
end of the reporting period of the Group's and the Company's financial (TEEASEREURNERT
liabilities excluding receipts in advance, which the Group expects to settle by W& TEBGRIR) RS RE H
delivery of completed properties. The contractual maturities are based on REBRTERER - SNHRZR
contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments computed BENARURRENE(BEUS
using contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates current at the end of the RN (% 8) S REARRT
reporting period) and the earliest date the Group and the Company can be BN R F BN BT R RARE
required to pay: BRAARREERNRT A M
g
The Group: REF :
2013
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
BRRMERAERT
Within -~ Morethan ~ More than
| year | yearbut 2 yearsbut
or on less than less than
demand 2 years 5years  More than Carrying
—FR% BE-F HBEWEF 5 years Total amount
RER BORME BIREF HENL At fREE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRL AR®TR AR®TR ARBTR ARBTR ARETR
Bank loans and RIEHR
other borrowings Hfg & 338,868 228719 485,289 — 1,052,876 883,860
Trade and other payables & 5 K EHAth
FERFR 1,398,791 52,809 — — 1451600 3,828,104
1,737,659 281,528 485,289 — 2504476 4711964
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt B SRR MY RE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BAEERN  BUARKIIR)

31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES (Contd) 3l SRERBEERAAE(E)
(b)  Liquidity risk (Contd) b) RBESER(E)
The Group: (Cont d) AEE: (B)
2012
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
BHNRBRR SR
Within -~ Morethan ~ More than
| year | yearbut 2 vyearsbut
oron less than less than
demand 2 years 5years  More than Canrying
—FA%x BRE-F HBERTF 5 years Total amount
REX BIRME BIRLE  AFNE 85t mE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT ARETT ARETRT
Bank loans and RITERR
other borrowings HifEE 754,404 60,429 — — 814,833 749,000
Trade and other payables & 5 K E A
FER50R 909,440 52262 — — %1702 1712620
Amounts due to
related parties JE 5 BB 5 IR 1,228 — — — 1,228 1228
Redeemable convertible T & B AJ #5%
preference shares B = 726,530 = = 726,530 581,412
665,072 839,221 — — 2504293 3,044,260
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES (Contd)

(b)

B HRAR M &

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BEERBIN BAARKIIR)

3 ERMEREERAAEE)

Liquidity risk (Cont d) b) wBELERE)
The Company: /NI
2013
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
BHRRBRRER
Within ~ More than ~ More than
| year | yearbut 2 yearsbut
oron less than less than
demand 2 years 5years  More than Carrying
—Epy BBE-F HEBWEF 5 years Total amount
RER BORME BIREF HEHUL Azt REE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT ARBTR AR®TR ARBTR AR¥TR AR%TR
Trade and other payables &5 Rk H At
e 50R 4,59 — — — 459 459%
4,596 — — — 4,596 4,596
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt B SRR MY RE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BAEERN  BUARKIIR)

31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES (Contd)

(b)  Liquidity risk (Contd)

The Company: (Contd)

3 eREREERAAEE)
b) RBESERE)

LNCIRRG: )

2012
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
BHNRBRR SR
Within -~ Morethan ~ More than
| year | yearbut 2 vyearsbut
oron less than less than
demand 2 years 5years  More than Canrying
—FA%x BRE-F HBERTF 5 years Total amount
REX BIRME BIRLE  AFNE 85t mE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT ARETT ARETRT
Trade and other payables &5 REA
TR 24,775 — — — 24775 24775
Amounts due to FERRRE S 58
related parties 4754 — — — 4,754 4754
Redeemable convertible  AJEEEI AT #AR
preference shares BER = 726,530 = = 726,530 581,412
29,529 726,530 — — 756,059 610941
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES (Contd)

©

Interest rate risk

The Group's interest rate risk arises primarily from cash and cash equivalents,

restricted cash and borrowings issued at variable rates.

The Group does not anticipate significant impact to cash and cash
equivalents and the pledged deposits because the interest rates of bank

deposits are not expected to change significantly.

The interest rates and terms of repayment of bank loans of the Group are
disclosed in note 23 to the financial statements. The Group does not carry

out any hedging activities to manage its interest rate exposure.

Sensitivity analysis

At 3| December 2013, it is estimated that a general increase/decrease of 50
basis points (2012: 50 basis points) in interest rates, with all other variables
held constant, would increase/decrease the Group's profit after tax and total
equity attributable to equity shareholders of the Company by approximately
RMB16,485,000 (2012: decrease/increase profit after tax by approximately
RMBI3,000).

Other components of consolidated equity would not be affected by the

changes in interest rates.

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the instantaneous change in the
Group's profit/loss after tax and retained profits and other components of
consolidated equity that would arise assuming that the change in interest
rates had occurred at the end of each reporting period and had been
applied to re-measure those financial instruments held by the Group which
expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk at the end of each reporting
period. The analysis is performed on the same basis for the year ended 31
December 2012.

B HRAR M &

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)
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B 7% HR R B o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BAEERN  BUARKIIR)

31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES (Contd) 3l SRERBEERAAE(E)

(d)  Currency risk (d)

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk primarily on bank deposits
to which the transactions relate. The currencies giving rise to this risk are

primarily US dollars.

The following table details the Group's exposure at the end of each
reporting period to currency risk arising from recognised assets or liabilities
denominated in a currency other than the functional currency of the entity
to which they relate. For presentation purpose, the amounts of the exposure
are shown in RMB, translated using the spot rate at the end of each

reporting period.

EREk

AEEmEINERR - TEREE
RHBRANRITER ° oI HAER
BEOERIERET

TRFADAEENEHEHREE
NABERVEERUANEREHE
MEEREEXRAELNEER
o BENME  RREBAAR
BN  IRERERRERRE
ERAE -

The Group
AEH
2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®BTR ARETT

Net exposure arising from recognised ERREERBEEENREERFE
assets and liabilities:

Cash and cash equivalents — denominated RekReBEEY - UETHE
in USD

36,596 72,053

The functional currency of the Company is USD. The Company did not
have material assets or liabilities that are denominated in a currency other
than its functional currency and accordingly the Company has no significant

exposure to foreign currency risk as at 31 December 2013 and 2012.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES (Contd) 31

(d)  Currency risk (Contd)

Sensitivity analysis

The following table indicates the instantaneous change in the Group's profit
after tax (and retained profits) that would arise if foreign exchange rates to
which the group has significant exposure at the end of the reporting period

had changed at that date, assuming all other risk variables remained constant.

B HRAR M &

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BAEEBI  WUAAREIIR)

CREAREERAAEE)

E¥ERE)

HBESH

ﬁﬁﬁ¢%Xﬂ$Elﬁiﬁ%u
ESME L E % A BB E)
BRFAEMERESRIETE
TRETAEENBRBENE(R
{REBFIES) AT AL A OB

S

The Group
31
2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARETT

Cash and cash equivalents — denominated R & RIREFEY —UETEHE
in USD

(1372) (2,702)

The foreign currency sensitivity analysis is calculated based on the major net
foreign currency exposure of the Group as at the reporting dates, assuming
5% shift of RMB against USD on the profit after tax and retained profits and
excludes differences that would result from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations into the Group's presentation currency.

The analysis is performed on the same basis for 2012.

INEFREDTDREARER
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B 7% HR R B o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BAEERN  BUARKIIR)

31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES (Contd)

(e)  Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price changes arising from equity
investments classified as available-for-sale unlisted equity securities (see note
13).

The Group's unquoted investments are held for long term strategic
purposes. Their performance is assessed at least bi-annually against
performance of similar listed entities, based on the limited information
available to the Group, together with an assessment of their relevance to the

Group's long term strategic plan.

(f)  Fair value
(i) Financial instruments measured at fair value

The following table presents the carrying value of financial instruments
measured at fair value at the end of the reporting period on a
recurring basis, categorised into the three-level fair value hierarchy as
defined in IFRS |3, fair value measurement. The level into which a
fair value measurement is classified is determined with reference to
the observability and significance of the inputs used in the valuation

technigue as follows:

Level | valuations: Fair value measured using only Level | inputs i.e.
unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or

liabilities at the measurement date

Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level 2 inputs i.e.
observable inputs which fail to meet Level |, and not using significant
unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs are inputs for which market

data are not available.

Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using significant unobservable

inputs
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES (Contd)

() Fair value (Contd)

(i) Financial instruments measured at fair value (Cont @)

B HRAR M &

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)
(BEERBIN BAARKIIR)
3 ERMEAREERAAEE)

H DREE)
() BAABEFENEBRIA

(%)
Fair value at Fair value measurements as at Fair value at Fair value measurements as at
3| December 31 December 2013 categorisedinto ~ 31December 31 December 2012 categorised into
R12A318 ROIBEA3IBAE RI2A31H RONENA3IBAHE
MARE ITHRREHE MARE MTHAREE
2013 Level | Level 2 Level 3 2012 Level | Level 2 Level 3
g Ef E=R g EB E=R
RMB0OO ~ RMBOOO ~ RMB0O0 ~ RMBOOO ~ RMBOO0  RMBOOO ~ RMBOOO  RMBIO0O

ARETT ARET ARETR

ARET ARETR ARMTR ARMTT ARETR

Recurring fair value
measurements
Assets:
Avallable-for-sale investment:
-Wealth management
products
Embedded denvative

liabilities on redeemable

convertible preference shares

AfHERE -

— 16t

Em 120,000 —
AEETRRE LR

RATE

IRRf - - -

120,000

292502

Valuation techniques and inputs used in Level 2 fair value

measurements

The fair value of wealth management products in Level 2 is the

estimated amount that the Group would receive upon expiry or

termination at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the

related current interest rates.

F_RAREEMANG
EmERBAZE

F_ANERERAAEBR
fhEt AR BB R RE B RY
BHERIRLSE &
E&t RIABRITHE -
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B 7% HR R B o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BAEERN  BUARKIIR)

31

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES (Contd)

(

Fair value (Contd)

0

Financial instruments measured at fair value (Cont d)

During the year, there were no transfers between Level | and Level 2,
or transfers into or out of Level 3. The Group's policy is to recognise
transfers between levels and fair value hierarchy as at the end of
the reporting period in which they occur. Upon consummation of
Qualified IPO on 31 October 2013, the redeemable convertible
preference shares and embedded derivative liabilities on redeemable
convertible preference shares in level 3 were automatically converted

to equity.

Valuation techniques and inputs used in Level 3 fair value

measurements

An external valuer was appointed to prepare valuation of the
Group's fair values of embedded derivative liabilities on redeemable
convertible preference shares at 31 December 2012, details of which
are disclosed in note 26. The fair value of embedded derivative
liabilities on redeemable convertible preference shares are determined
using binomial tree model and the significant unobservable input used
in the fair value measurement is expected volatility. The fair value

measurement is positively correlated to the expected volatility.

All other significant financial assets and liabilities are carried at amounts

not materially different from their fair values as at 31 December 2013.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BRI

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BAEEBI  WUAAREIIR)

31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES (Contd) 3l SRERBEERAAE(E)
() Fair value (Contq) ) DREGE)
(i) Fair values of financial instruments carried at other than fair value (iy BAREKIMNIRNERT
YN
The carrying amounts of the Group's financial instruments carried A& IR BN SO S A AR B
at cost or amortised cost are not materially different from their fair EremTANREERR
values as at 3| December 2013 and 2012 except as follows: R2013%2012F 12 A31 A
MAREYEEREZE
ATEBRS :
Carrying Fair Fair value measurements Carrying Fair
amountat 3l valueat3| asat 3| December 2013 amount at value at
December  December categonised into 31 December 31 December
2013 2013 Level | Level 2 Level 3 2012 2012
ROBE  R0I3E VDL VIS
2A318 12A3IE 2R TMRAIR013% A3 12R318
MEEE WARE 12831 B 58 WEEE HARE

R 2R E=R
RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO
ARBTTL ARETR ARETL ARMTL ARETL ARETR ARETR

Redeemable convertble A I AR IRE LR

preference shares - - - - - 581412 608524
Valuation techniques and inputs used in Level 3 fair value FZROAEFERAOMG
measurements (EETPNETPN - ¢/t
An external valuer was appointed to prepare valuation of the Group's EREIMNE 4 EE AR BLA
fair values of the redeemable convertible preference shares at 3| SETE LA RRESLKR
December 2012, details of which are disclosed in note 26. The fair R2012F12A3IBHRAR
value of the redeemable convertible preference shares are determined B BRI 26 5T - 7]
using binomial tree model and the significant unobservable input used BorpRELRNAAE
in the fair value measurement is expected volatility. The fair value ER-EABMRERERE
measurement is positively correlated to the expected volatility. MAREHETRANER

AABER AR RTESR
18- An A EEBHKIE
Bt
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 7% HR R B o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BEZHERIN  IUARKIIR)

32 COMMITMENTS

(@)

(b)

Capital commitments outstanding at 3| December 2013 not provided for

in the financial statements were as follows:

32 EE

Q) HERRALEBENR2013F
12831 HOEARRENT :

2013 2012

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARMT ARBTT

Contracted but not provided for BATKEREHE 1,223,694 1,222,759

At 3| December 2013, the total value minimum lease payments under

non-cancellable operating lease are payable as follows:

(b) M2013F12A318 BREFTH
HREHERIREESAETH

BRAOT
2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR AR®ETTT
Within | year —FR 13,893 9,537
After | year but within 2 years —FREMFRA 12,373 16,421
26,266 25958

The Group leases a number of building facilities under operating leases. The
leases typically run for an initial period of 2 years, with an option to renew
the lease after that date at which time all terms are renegotiated. None of

the leases includes contingent rentals.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Guarantees

The Group provided guarantees in respect of mortgage facilities granted by certain
banks in connection with the mortgage loans entered into by purchasers of the
Group's properties. Pursuant to the terms of the guarantees, if there is default of
the mortgage payments by these purchasers, the Group is responsible to repay
the outstanding mortgage loans together with any accrued interest and penalty
owned by the defaulted purchasers to the banks. The Group's guarantee period
commences from the dates of grant of the relevant mortgage loans and ends upon
the earlier of the buyer obtained the individual property ownership certificate and

the full settlement of mortgage loans by the buyer.

The maximum amount of guarantees given to banks for mortgage facilities granted
to the purchasers of the Group's properties at the end of each reporting period is

as follows:

33

B HRAR M &

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BAEEBI  WUAAREIIR)

HREE
B’

AEBAETRITRASRENEET
AU MEBEBERMK HNRBRERM
R - REBERGT - HZEETER
BEAZR WAKEAREEEREAN
RBETERZOE L EX N TRTH
AR M E KA - AEEHERS
HERRBERRL AL E2ER
S ERI R EE L2 AN RBER A
RRELBE)RAL -

RERERRAARENEE S ERD
RANZBBEMRRTELNERS
BT

2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR AR®TTT
Guarantees given to banks for mortgage MAKEMEE A RENIRBRE
facilities granted to purchasers of the M RERITHEH AR
Group's properties 1,482,069 474994

The directors of the Company consider that it is not probable that the Group will
sustain a loss under these guarantees as the Group can take over the ownerships
of the related properties and sell the properties to recover any amounts paid by
the Group to the banks. The directors of the Company also consider that the fair
market value of the underlying properties is able to cover the outstanding mortgage
loans guaranteed by the Group in the event the purchasers default payments to the

banks.

The Group has not recognised any deferred income in respect of these guarantees

as its fair value is considered to be minimal by the directors of the Company.

ARAEZRA ARAKEAREM
BOENMERLHERBYE K
EAKERRTXANEMNSE - Rt
AEBIAMREZERERMERE
B ARBESZNAR WENHEXE
BRITHR MEBENENRATERE
BRARERERNRERKBER

HRARAEERRAFTERNDAE
WK WAREY KRR XS ERERE
BTN
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BAEERN  BUARKIIR)

34

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

For the year ended 31 December 2013 and 2012, transactions with the following

parties are considered to be related party transactions:

Name of party

B

Shenzhen Howard Industrial Co., Ltd.
(FINTREEEERAT

Ji'An Trade Center Development Co., Ltd.
(FREZRSREBRAA)

Shenzhen Howard Investment Co., Ltd.
(FINTREREFR AT

Jincheng Howard Guangcai Trade Center Development Co., Ltd.
(BREEAXE S EZRERRARH

Linyi Howard Guangcai Trade Center Development Co,, Ltd.
R REAESREREERAT)

Included in the balances as at 3|1 December 2013 and 2012 set out in note 34(c)

are unsecured, interest free advance made to/from related parties of the Group.

ko These entities are all PRC limited liability companies. The English translation of the *

company names is for reference only. The official names of these companies are in

Chinese.

Note | In 2012, the Controlling Shareholders transferred their equity interests in these

entities to third parties. At 3| December 2012, these companies were no longer

considered related parties to the Group.
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34 BEABHERZ
BZ203K20N2FNANABLEEE
HTH 287 EITNR S KR R B
HR5

Relationship

B#

Associate company of the Controlling Shareholders (note 1)

ERRBCR A B = AR (FIEE 1)

Entity controlled by the Controlling Shareholders (note |)
ZR AR RIZ BN E R (FTEE 1)

Entity controlled by the Controlling Shareholders (note |)
ZR AR RIZ BN E R (FTEE 1)

Entity controlled by the Controlling Shareholders (note |)
ZR A RIZ BB RE (FTEE 1)

Entity controlled by the Controlling Shareholders (note |)
ZR A RIZ BB RE (FTEE 1)

B 55 34(c) BT & 72013 2 2012F 12 A 31 B &
ERBEASBA TS REE L RED
EmER - BB -

ZERBMATEARAT - AA%
BOEXBRERSE  REATM

ERER L

BiEl W2012F - ERBREBERZEER
HBREEE TS =7 - R2012F 128
3B ZERAATBHEALEEN
ki



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

34 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Contd)

(@)

Key management personnel remuneration

Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group, including

amounts paid to the Company's directors as disclosed in note 7 and certain

of the highest paid employees as disclosed in note 8, is as follows:

B HRAR M &

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BAEEBI  WUAAREIIR)

34 EABEAIRZ(E)

(2)

TEEEASHH

TREEABHMBREMET MR
BRAAAREEXNERRME
BFTIRERE T R=HER X TH
B BT

2013 2012
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBT R ARETT

Contribution to defined ERH TR
contribution retirement plans HEL 137 83
Wages, salaries and other benefits in kind e IAREMERN 20,213 13,687
Equity settled share-based payments DA R B DARR D RETEA
(note 28) R (P 28) 2,655 2,868
23,005 16,638

Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see note 5(b)).

FHEEHN E TRAI(FEL2H
BiEES(b)) °
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Bt B SRR MY RE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BAEERN  BUARKIIR)

34 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont'd) 34 BABHRERZ(E)
(b)  Transactions with related parties (b) BEEBAINRXZ
2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR AREFT
Receipts from related parties W ER B e 7 B0 5K0B

— the Controlling shareholders —PRBRR 796 3,039
— Shenzhen Howard Industrial Co,, Ltd. AIMREEEARAA — 110,804
— Shenzhen Howard Investment Co., Ltd. AT REREARAA — 170,000

— Jincheng Howard Guangcai Trade Center —EWMREXRFKE ZEHHE
Development Co,, Ltd. BRAR = 70,000

— Linyi Howard Guangcai Trade Center -BAREXVESRGRE
Development Co, Ltd, BRAR — 20,000
— JI/An Trade Center Development Co, Ltd —FZEBES5ESREERAF — 5,000
— Others —Hft — 1,500
796 380,343

Payments to related parties X RARE T B 50R

—the Controlling shareholders — R (228) (39,868)
— Shenzhen Howard Industrial Co,, Ltd. AYMREEXAERAA — (58,674)
— Shenzhen Howard Investment Co,, Ltd. —RIMREREBR LA = (170,000)

— Jincheng Howard Guangcai Trade Center —EBWREXFEHESME
Development Co,, Ltd. ARRAF] — (70,000)

— Linyi Howard Guangcai Trade Center —-BAREAVESREGRE
Development Co,, Ltd. BRAR — (20,000)
— Ji/An Trade Center Development Co, Ltd —H&XEBEZELREERA — (5,000)
— Others —EHfth (1,000) =
(1,228) (363542)
Sales of properties to related parties HEMETBMA 607 —
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B HRAR M &

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BEERBIN BAARKIIR)

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Contd) 34 EXBHRARZ(E)
(c)  Balances with related parties (c) EEREBANELR
2013 2012
2013 20126
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARETT
Other receivable due from related parties Hoh A BBk 5 5RO
— the Controlling shareholders —ERIRE — 796
Other payable due to related parties Hfth & 5 BB 7 SUIR
— the Controlling shareholders —ERIRR — (228)
— other related parties —H A — (1,000)
— (1,228)
(d)  Applicability of the Listing Rules relating to connected transactions. d) LHRAHBERZNERMY
None of the above related party transactions falls under the definition of LB AR 58 BN EmRA
connected transaction or continuing connected transaction as defined in FTOAEMEENRER S I
Chapter |4A of the Listing Rules. BHERS -
NON-ADJUSTMENT EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 35 RERRFARSIR
After the end of the reporting period the directors proposed a final dividend. REMERE  EFRBFRERAR
Further details are disclosed in note 30(f). B o E— S ERBERME 300
IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE CONTROLLING PARTY 36 HERBAEZRE

As at 31 December 2013, the directors consider the immediate parent and
ultimate controlling party of the Group to be Most Trend Holding Limited, which is
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited liability and beneficially owned
by the Controlling Shareholders. This entity does not produce financial statements

available for public use.

R13FI12A318 EEREELEHE
ERENRAIRGRERATRERERE
RAR ZARRKBERRESEM
RABEBERRBDVEERREERE
B -ZEBERIERREAFREOMNE
W] e
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B 7% HR R B o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

(BEZHERIN  IUARKIIR)

37 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS AND 37
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the IASB has issued a few
amendments and a new standard which are not vyet effective for the year ended 31
December 2013 and which have not been adopted in these financial statements.

These include the following which may be relevant to the Group.

CHEAGEREZ2013F 12831 BLE
EMREMMNIET - HEARZEN

EEE

BEAMBHRRTEAY BEREE
REEeCEMZEET R —EME
B RSB R ERRBEWNIF
12431 BIEFRNARER B AR %
R o K THRA AR AR E
Ik

Effective for
accounting periods

beginning on or after

BUT B

ZRBRM

SHEENR

Amendments to IAS 32, Financial instruments: Presentation— Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities | January 2014
NG ERIENR(BAR)  2HTA 27 -KHcHEEREHEAR 2014F 1 A1 H
IFRS 9, Financial instruments | January 2015
EREHERERANEIR  2H LA 201551 A 18

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the impact of these
amendments is expected to be in the period of initial application. So far it has
concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant impact on the

consolidated financial statements.
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